HOLLY TOWNSHIP
PROPOSED AGENDA
PLANNING COMMISSION

June 11, 2025 at 6:30 PM
Holly Township Hall (Upstairs)
102 Civic Dr., Holly, Michigan 48442
CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL: Glen Mitchell Ray Kerton Michael McCanney Ben Armstead
Chuck Stoner Leslie Jorgensen Derek Sommer

AGENDA APPROVAL
PUBLIC COMMENT - For Items on the Agenda Only.

PUBLIC HEARINGS: Special Land Use Application by the Michigan Renaissance Festival to
operate a Festival and other Events on parcel number 01-12-476-002 and 01-12-401-003 in an
AGRE. Zoning District.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES — April 9, 2025.

COMMUNICATIONS: None.

OLD BUSINESS: None.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Special Land Use Application by the Michigan Renaissance Festival to operate a Festival and
other Events on parcel number 01-12-476-002 and 01-12-401-003 in an AGRE. Zoning

District,

2. Site Plan Application by the Michigan Renaissance Festival to operate a Festival and other
Events on parcel number 01-12-476-002 and 01-12-401-003 in an AGRE Zoning District.

REPORTS
PUBLIC COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT

Public Hearing Rules — see other side



RULES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Welcome to this public hearing. We appreciate your taking the time to present your opinions.
Everyone will be given an opportunity to speak. In order for us to have an effective public
hearing, we ask that you abide by the following rules:
1. Please wait for the Chairperson to acknowledge you before you speak.

2. Begin by stating your name and address.

3. Give us your comments, opinions, and concerns. Each speaker will have 3 minutes to
present during the public hearing.

4. Do not talk or interrupt while another person is speaking at the microphone.
5. The commission does not respond directly to questions during a public hearing. This

is because the purpose of the public hearing is to provide time for the public to speak, not
for the commission to discuss or debate the item at hand.

6. Please be respectful of the board, the applicant, and your neighbors.

Again, thank you for attending.



Holly Township
Planning Commission — Regular Meeting
Minutes of April 9, 2025

CALL TO ORDER: Commissioner Mitchell called the regular meeting of the Holly Township
Planning Commission to order at 6:30 p.m. Located at the Holly Township Offices (Upstairs),
102 Civic Drive, Holly, Michigan 48442

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Members Present Members Absent — None.

Glen Mitchell

Ray Kerton Others Present

Ben Armstead Karin Winchester, Clerk/Zoning Administrator
Chuck Stoner Alexis Farrell, McKenna & Assoc.

Leslie Jorgensen Joe Nawrocki, Trilogy Health

Michael McCanney
Derek Sommer

AGENDA APPROVAL

> Motion by Sommer to approve the agenda as presented. Supported by Kerton. A voice vote
was taken. All present voted yes. The motion carried 7/0.

PUBLIC COMMENT: For items on the agenda only.
Martin Andreski, 2105 Middle Ridge Drive addressed the Commission.
PUBLIC HEARINGS: None.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES — March 12, 2025
> Motion by Commissioner Sommer to approve the minutes as presented. Supported by
Commissioner Armstead. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion was
carried 7/0.
COMMUNICATIONS: None.
OLD BUSINESS: None.
NEW BUSINESS
1. Site Plan Application from Trilogy Health Services 303 N. Hurstbourne Parkway, Suite 200,

Louisville K'Y 40222 for a Planned Development that will consist of a convalescent home and
independent living housing on Parcel Number 01-28-101-018.



Holly Township Planning Commission — Regular Meeting April 9, 2025 Page 2 of 3

Alexis Farrell, McKenna & Associates presented an overview of the process to date for new
Commission members. The site plan application is for a 65,000 square foot, single story building
with 84 units for a convalescent center with 86 beds. There will also be 30 villas on the back half
of the site that will be constructed as attached condos. The reason for the amendment (New
Business, Item 2) is because the site has changed slightly since the original approval.

The applicant secured an additional 3 acres along the south side of the site that will mainly be
used for storm water detention and at southeast they were able to add 2 additional villas. The
Public Hearing has already been held. The reason for the planned development piece is that there
are items that deviate from underlying zoning restrictions — a cupola that slightly exceeds height,
some deviations from setbacks from internal drives. McKenna & Associates found the deviations
acceptable. A pathway along the frontage is a benefit that the developers are offering. It fits into
the Township’s vision for creating pedestrian connections. There is also a pathway connection
proposed to the northeast of the site fo connect to future development on the neighboring parcel.
The developers will seek separate approval for signs. The developers are not deviating from
design standards. Parking slightly exceeds the requirements of the ordinance. A tree replacement
program is not included in tonight’s packet, so approval should be conditional on an agreeable
program to be submitted to administration at a later date.

Joe Nawrocki, representing Trilogy Health, addressed the Commission. He addressed the
following: the frontage pathway will be hot-mixed asphalt; there are 92 parking spaces for the
campus which exceeds the ordinance requirement by 30 spaces; the primary drive will be hot-
mixed asphalt (a heavy-duty product), there are many walkways on the property; there are two
entrance drives. The additional acreage on the south will allow them to construct a storm water
system that exceeds the county standards. All fire requirements for the site have been satisfied.

» Motion by Commissioner Kerton to approve the Site Plan Application from Trilogy
Health Services 303 N. Hurstbourne Parkway, Suite 200, Louisville KY 40222 for
Planned Development that will consist of a convalescent home and independent
living housing on Parcel Number 01-28-101-018 on the conditions noted in the
McKenna letter dated April 1,2025. Supported by Commissioner Sommer. A voice
vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion carried 7/0.

2. Special Land Use Amendment for Trilogy Health Services 303 N. Hurstbourne Parkway, Suite
200, Louisville K'Y 40222 for the Approved Special Land Use for Planned Development that will
consist of a convalescent home and independent living housing on Parcel Number 01-28-101-
018,

» Motion by Commissioner McCanney to approve the Special Land Use Amendment
for Trilogy Health Services 303 N. Hurstbourne Parkway, Suite 200, Louisville KY
40222 for the Approved Special Land Use for a Planned Development that will
consist of a convalescent home and independent living housing on Parcel Number
01-28-101-018 based on their plans dated March 17,2025 and based on our site plan
review report dated April 1, 2025 on the condition that the compliant tree survey
and replacement plan are submitted, which can be reviewed administratively.
Supported by Commissioner Stoner. A voice vote was taken. All present voted yes.
The motion carried 7/0.

REPORTS - No Reports.

PUBLIC COMMENT




Holly Township Planning Commission — Regular Meeting April 9, 2025 Page 3 of 3

Joe Nawrocki, Trilogy Health Services, addressed the Commission.

ADJOURNMENT — Chair Mitchell adjourned the meeting at 7:43 pm.

Submitted by Diane Hill, Recording Secretary

Karin S. Winchester, Clerk






MCKENNA .

Site Plan and Special Land Use Review

F=s=amy
Holly Township Planning Commission
10: clo Karin Winchester, Township Clerk
) 102 Civic Drive,
Holly Township, Ml 48442
Alexis Farrell
FR H
oM John Jackson, AICP
SUBJECT: Michigan Renaissance Festival 2025 - Review #1
DATE: June 3, 2025

Dear Planning Commissioners:

The Michigan Renaissance Festival (MRF) operates seven weekends a year starting in mid-August through the
end of September. In 2001, the Township worked with the MRF to create permit conditions for an orderly annual
review of this massive and unique event. The MRF contains over 300 acres, although about 75 acres are in
neighboring Groveland Township. Traffic management improvements made since 2015 and the elimination of on-
site camping in 2018 contribute to a much smoother operating season. In 2024, the Planning Commission
approved the use with a variety of conditions, including:

1. Allow administrative review and approval for non-Michigan Renaissance Festival events on site with more
than 1,000 attendees.

2. Allow administrative review and approval for documentation of a variety of operational items, such as dust
control services, trash removal services, insurance coverage, vendor contact information and leases, and
permits from the Township Building Official, Fire Department, Oakland County Health Department, or any

other applicable Township official or regulatory body.

3. Attendance at regular meetings with Township officials, the Township Building Official, the North Oakland
County Fire Department (NOCFA), and the Township Planning and Engineering consultants after theA .
conclusion of the main festival season in October 2024 to discuss a timeline for completing the following items

in arder to obtain approval for the 2025 season.

4. The following items addressed by April 1, 2025:

a. Submission of revised, compliant site plans including up-to-date locations of all site fer—.}tures, all changes
that have been made to the internal layout, such as drive lanes or internal roads, buildings, walkways, or
other structures, up-to-date stormwater management plans, grading and drainage plans, and up-to-date

traffic control plans.

b. Compliance with all condemnation notices issued by the Building Official and condemned structures
marked as off-limits unless the applicant successfully obtains a Certificate of Occupancy from the

Building Official.

HEADQUARTERS
235 East Main Street 0 2485960920
Suite 105 F 248.5960930

Northville, Michigan 48167 MOKA.COM Communities for real life.



ey
14

c. Development of a work plan and timeline for any outstanding site improvements as discussed with
Township Officials that are required prior to the opening of the 2025 season,

To date, the applicant has met all the conditions from the 2024 approval. The Township continues to work and
meet with the MRF staff and representatives to address on-going operational compliance concerns as noted in
the NOCFA letters dated October 30, 2024, January 27, 2025, and March 3, 2025, and email from the Township
Building Official dated May 8, 2025. Also included in your packets are several letters from the MRF regarding
work plan progress updates.

2025 SPECIAL LAND USE REVIEW PROCESS

We based our review of the Michigan Renaissance Festival (MRF) application for Site Plan Review and Special
Land on the 2025 Site Plan and Special Land Use submission, correspondence from Renaissance Festival
Manager Chip Schultz, previously mentioned documents from the Building Official and NOCFA, discussions
between the Township and MRF, and the site plans dated April 2025. Additional comments on the plans can be
found in the Site Plan Review section of this letter.

The Renaissance Festival seeks Special Land Use approval to conduct the annual seven-week festival beginning
August 16, 2025, as well as 21 days spread throughout November and December 2025 for Hollydazzle. We are
recommending that the approval be granted with the attached conditions, with the special land use permit expiring
on June 11, 2025, If substantial changes are made to the site plan between the date of appraval and the opening
of the festival, a site plan shall be resubmitted to the Township for review and approval.

We reviewed the above referenced site plan and special land use applications along with the submitted response
letters according to the Holly Township Zoning Ordinance, the Michigan Renaissance Festival Master Plan (dated
1989), past approvals, and sound planning practices. The subject site is zoned AGRE and has hosted the MRF
since 1989. In 2023 the festival hosted 254,027 patrons during the main festival weekends and 5,933 patrons
during Hollydazzle, and in 2024 hosted a total of 269,464 during the main festival weekends, and 7,119 during
Hollydazzle.

We offer the following comments for your consideration.

SITE PLAN REVIEW
Sec. 32-233. - Criteria of site plan review,

1. The proposed use will not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood.

The Michigan Renaissance Festival has been held at this site for over thirty years. The festival will
maintain the existing screening between properties and is committed to minimizing traffic impacts through
an updated comprehensive traffic and parking management plan. In 2023, MRF hired a private parking
company, Elite Parking Solutions Inc., which successfully reduced traffic on Dixie Highway during the
2023 and 2024 seasons. The submission indicates that the MRF will maintain private parking services in
2025, Additionally, the applicant collaborates closely with the Township to mitigate any negative effects
on the surrounding neighborhood.

2. There is a proper relationship between major thoroughfares and proposed service drives,
driveways and parking areas and provisions have been made for acceleration, deceleration and
passing lanes or approaches to preserve the safety and convenience of pedestrian and vehicular

traffic.

June 3, 2025 2
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



The main entrances to the MRF are from Dixie Highway. The 2025 plan shows two entrances on the
north and south sides of the festival offices and maintains the one-way out driveway and exit at the south
end of the site on Dixie Highway, which was established in 2022. The MRF is currently continuing to
make improvements along this exit drive, working with the Michigan Department of Environment, Great
Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) to remediate wetland disturbance in the area and install culverts. The
submission also includes signage plans for Dixie Highway and I-75 to direct traffic to the site.

The 2025 site plans also detail the existing parking and access to the festival grounds, including an
internal perimeter drive around the southern parking area to allow for vehicle stacking. Additionally, the
plan provides for a maneuvering lane within the grass parking area, a no-parking fire lane, and
designated large vehicle parking for the festival.

The MRF presented a Traffic Management strategy to Groveland Township in May of 2023, which details
plans to prevent traffic from stacking up along Dixie Highway and blocking access for the Groveland
Township Fire Department. They presented a similar strategy in April 2024, and the Groveland Township
Board granted the MRF a special use permit for the 2024 season on May 13, 2024. For the 2025
season, the MRF sought a 3-year approval from Groveland Township at the Planning Commission (PC)
meeting on May 19, 2025. Groveland Township's PC motioned to recommend that their Township Board
approve this request. This item will be before Groveland Township's Board of Trustees on their June 9,
2025 meeting. We will follow up on the outcome of this to update Holly’s PC at our June 11, 2025

meeting.

3. The location of buildings, outside storage receptacles, parking areas, screen walls and utility
areas are such that the adverse effects of such uses will be minimized for the occupants of that

use and surrounding areas.

The existing buildings and parking areas of the MRF are reasonably screened by the existing trees that
help minimize the adverse effects of the festival for the occupants of the surrounding area.

4. It provides for proper development of roads, easements and public utilities and protects the
general health, safety, welfare and character of the township.

There are two main internal roads for the site, the main road to the north that leads to the festival area
and the south road loop that leads to parking, and ultimately back to Dixie Highway as an exit. The plan
includes the location, and signage for, fire lanes throughout the site. These fire lanes must comply with
the Fire Departments requirements for access, which we defer to NOCFA to address.

In 2018, the MRF began construction of a second entry into the festival, which is now fully operational.
The main entrance on the north side was also widened to allow for two lanes of flow in and out of the site.
In 2022, a third egress onto Dixie Highway was constructed as an exit-only drive at the very south of the
property. This drive is nearly complete with the exception of several culverts being installed and wetland
remediation carried out per EGLE requirements.

5. It meets the requirements and standards for grading and surface drainage and for the design and
construction of storm sewers, stormwater facilities, parking lots, driveways, water mains, sanitary
sewers and for acceleration, deceleration and passing lanes or approaches as determined by the
township engineers and set forth in the township design and construction standards.

The 2025 site plan includes existing site grading and does not propose any changes at this time. Itis
important to understand the potential drainage patterns to determine any off-site impacts. Any future
proposed changes or expansion of the festival must include proposed grading plans.

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



ney
i

6. Proper access to all portions of the site and all sides of any structure is provided. All structures or
groups of structures shall be so arranged as to permit emergency vehicle access by some
practical means to all sides. Site features such as, but not limited to, trees and other plant
materials, fences, retaining walls, berms, outdoor furniture, outdoor structures, and natural and
artificial water bodies shall be arranged to permit adequate emergency vehicle access.

This item will be subject to the review of the North Oakland County Fire Department (NOCFA) Fire Chief,
Please refer to the Fire Chief's letters dated October 30, 2024, January 27, 2025, and March 3, 2025 for
more information regarding emergency access.

7. Natural resources will be preserved to the maximum extent possible in the site design by
developing in a manner which will not detrimentally affect or destroy natural features such as
lakes, ponds, streams, wetlands, steep slopes, groundwater and woodlands.

In 2018, the festival removed trees to access the second entry and for an emergency access-only drive
that is required by the Fire Department. Most of the site remains wooded. None of the trees removed are
visible off site. The 2025 site plan does not show additional tree removal or cutting. Future tree removal
will be subject to the Township's Woodland Protection Ordinance. Any future changes that include tree
removal subject to the Woodland Protection Ordinance must be demonstrated on plans which will be
reviewed in respect to natural feature preservation.

8. The proposed development respects the natural topography to the maximum extent possible by
minimizing the amount of cutting, filling and grading required.

No changes to topography or grading are shown on the 2025 plans. Any future proposed changes must
be shown on revised plans and will be re-evaluated in respect to this standard.

9. The proposed development will not cause soil erosion or sedimentation.

Grading or construction may require a Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC) permit from the
State of Michigan.

10. Stormwater management systems and facilities will preserve the natural drainage characteristics
and enhance the aesthetics of the site to the maximum extent possible and will not substantially
reduce or increase the natural retention or storage capacity of any wetland, water body or water
course, or cause alterations which could increase flooding or water pollution on or off-site.

A stormwater management plan has not been provided at this time. Once the MRF is prepared to
construct the new proposed improvements for a second entrance on the west side of the site, a
stormwater management plan should be included to ensure stormwater management is addressed in light
of changes over the last several years and to demonstrate how the proposed improvements would affect
the site area.

11. Wastewater treatment systems, including on-site septic systems will be located and designed to
minimize any potential degradation of surface water or groundwater quality.

The property currently utilizes an on-site septic system for wastewater management. Currently, there are
no plans or proposals to upgrade, madify, or expand the existing septic system. Any future changes to the

June 3, 2025 4
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



T/

system should be included on updated site plans, which will be reviewed to ensure that this standard is
met.

12. Sites which include storage of hazardous materials or waste, fuels, salt, or chemicals will be
designed to prevent spills and discharges of polluting materials to the surface of the ground,
groundwater or nearby water bodies.

The applicant agrees that there will not be storage of hazardous materials or waste, fuels, salt, or
chemicals. During a site walk in September 2024, while the festival was operating, there were noticeable
issues with grease waste management. The MRF is working with the Building Official and NOCFA to
address operational issues such as this through facility upgrades and weekly inspections during the
festival operations.

13. The location of buildings, parking, drives, landscaping and other improvements on the site is
appropriate and consistent with good design standards for the lot size, shape and general

location.

Updated site plans, dated April 2025, have been provided. The location of all existing buildings,
walkways, and driveways are noted. This includes existing infrastructure, and also a few proposed
changes to the southwest area of the festival grounds to introduce a secondary entrance to the grounds.
This includes the extension of the existing 30-foot breakaway fence, 8-foot wide gate, 8-foot wide walking
paths and a bridge, as well as a 90 x 40 foot (3,600 square feet) gravel area for festival entrance

operations.

oV

XS/ - .
u EXIS G 12' CA'E / \
\ Cp EUSTHS WETLAD
VRN sl ; BILKDARY
(e et
B ]

—~a
¥ ™
’ \\ —— PROPOSED ENTRY
‘\,‘(ﬁ 30" BREAKAWAY FENCE (o]
”\ \ PROPOSED GATE B - 8
| WDE

Snippet from Sheet 3 of the site plans.

This additional pedestrian entrance to the festival grounds is supported by NOCFA to allow for a
secondary pedestrian entrance and exit, which is especially important during emergencies. However,
these changes are proposed in an existing floodplain and very close (if not projecting into) the wetlands.
The MRF must obtain proper approval from the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and
Energy (EGLE) prior to construction. If, during the permitting process with EGLE, the proposed layout
changes, any revised site layout must be administratively approved by Holly Township.

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1

7
o

|/



Additionally, the submission notes that building sizes are not accurate to scale. The MRF has committed
to providing this and indicated that in the fall of 2025, their engineers and surveyors will be conducting a
site-wide survey to capture existing dimensions and will provide a to-scale drawing. This must be
submitted by December 1st, 2025.

14. Landscaping, including grass, trees, shrubs and other vegetation is provided to maintain and
improve the aesthetic quality of the site and area.

The applicant provides and maintains appropriate vegetation.

15. The proposed use follows all township ordinances and any other applicable laws.

The use of the MRF is consistent with past reviews. Please see the Special Land Use criteria and review
comments on the following pages.

SPECIAL LAND USE REVIEW

Our review of the Special Land Use for the Michigan Renaissance Festival is based on the Master Plan for the
Michigan Renaissance Festival, originally dated January 13, 1989, and as amended by revised drawings dated
April 2025. Below is a list of the conditions that have been required for past approvals.

MRF MASTER PLAN

1. Approval is based upon the Master Plan for the Michigan Renaissance Festival dated January 13,
1989 and as amended by revised drawings dated April 2025.

The 2025 site plans submitted show existing features of the site, as well as several proposed changes.
Please refer to the Site Plan Review section of this letter.

2. Appropriate building, electrical, plumbing and mechanical permits for the Township, Oakland
County and the State of Michigan shall be maintained.

The MREF is working with the Township Building Official to address outstanding compliance issues. The
Building Official has provided correspondence dated May 8, 2025, which notes they are satisfied with the
progress to date. This correspondence also indicates that the Building Official has given the MRF until
August 1, 2026 to complete upgrades and address compliance issues based on inspections conducted
during the 2024 season. The site will continue to be inspected by the Township Building Department for
compliance as permits are pulled to address these items. We defer to the Building Official for additional
information on this standard.

3. Appropriate food service, water supply, and sanitation permits from the Oakland County Health
Department and Michigan Department of Health shall be maintained, with copies to Township.

The applicant has stated that the Oakland County Health Department conducts inspections throughout
the 7-week main festival. The MRF has indicated that they understand that they cannot open the Food
Areas until the appropriate permits are issued.

4. The hours of operation shall be limited from 9:00 am to 7:00 pm for a period of seven (7)
weekends, including Labor Day and School Day, starting approximately in mid-August and ending
approximately September 30.

The MRF will continue to operate under this condition, and the festival is scheduled to open this year on
August 16th. The applicant desires permission to hold additional events outside of the festival. The

June 3, 2025 6
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



“he,
0/

special use permit application indicates Hollydazzle, a winter holiday event, is being planned for the
following dates in 2025:

¢ November 28, 29, and 30
o December5, 6,7, 12, 13, 14, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, and 31

It should be noted that in 2024, Hollydazzle was open until 10 PM on Fridays and Saturdays, and 9 PM
on Sundays based on the MRF'S Hollydazzle website. The Special Land Use application notes that hours
of operation are from 9:00 am to 7:00 pm, which are the hours that have been permitted for many years.
These hours must be adhered to for both the main 7-week festival in the fall, as well as for Hollydazzle.

For any additional events larger than 1,000 attendees, operation time must be reviewed by staff, including
the NOCFA to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of Township residents and visitors.

5. Adequate trash disposal containers and collection services shall be provided to ensure the site is
kept in a litter free condition during both operation and non-operational periods.

The 2025 plans include a note on Sheet 3 regarding trash receptacles, which notes that 200 receptacles
are placed throughout the site, 6 of which are located near the festival entrance. Additionally, the MRF
has provided a copy of a signed agreement with the Hamady Middle / High School Marching Band, who
will provide at least 15 “volunteers” at a minimum on festival days to gather and dispose of the garbage.
The MRF pays the group who volunteers their time to raise funds for their uniforms, instruments, and
repairs.

The trash receptacles are shown below in photos taken during the September 2024 site visit:

AL L

In years past, there have been complaints of these receptacles overflowing, resulting in litter spreading
around the grounds. The MRF has shared that they are acquiring 100 additional receptacles to ensure
proper waste management, If this continues to be an issue during the 2025 season, we recommend that
the festival provide larger, sturdier receptacles to reduce the chance of litter and the frequency at which

they must be emptied.

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

First-aid facilities and qualified medical personnel shall be provided during all periods of
operation.

The 2025 site plan notes that an ambulance will be on site during festival operation times, and identifies
the first-aid building on the northwest end of the site.

The Festival organizers shall ensure that parking areas be occupied and utilized to the greatest
extent.

The applicant provided a parking management plan that keeps track of the number of vehicles entering
and leaving the festival grounds. This will ensure that when the parking lots are full, traffic can efficiently
be redirected to offsite areas using signage and attendants. The applicant hired a new parking
management service in 2023 to organize cars and collect parking fees. The MRF will retain this service in
2025 after a successful process in 2023 and 2024,

The Festival buildings and booths shall not be used as dwellings for craftsman or any other
participants, or in any other way that is in violation of Township Ordinances, without approval
from Holly Township. No camping is permitted on-site (added 2018).

The applicant agrees to this condition,
Landscaping shall be maintained along Lahring Road.

In 2004, twenty evergreen trees were planted along Lahring Road to act as a screen. This landscaping
appears to be maintained and still present.

Any discharges into the wetlands shall be clean and screened by a silt screen. The need for
stormwater retention/ detentions plan and plan for discharge shall be determined on a year-to-
year basis. Methods should be utilized to prevent tree damage due to soil compaction as well as
other general public circumstances.

The applicant has agreed to this condition. Any major proposed construction in the future will be required
to meet this standard.

Annual inspections and approvals of Festivals by appropriate Fire Safety personnel shall be
required.

This item will be subject to the review of the North Oakland County Fire Department (NOCFA) Fire
Marshal. All required permits will be handled through NOCFA.

Extinguisher systems shall be installed in all MRF buildings to protect against fire.

This item will be subject to the review of the North Oakland County Fire Department (NOCFA) Fire
Marshal. The Fire Marshal will confirm the location of extinguishers.

Blast furnace for glass blower and other open flame crafts must be extinguished each night and
not left unattended for any reason.

The applicant has agreed to this condition.
No electrical cords shall be run to individual craft sites creating a fire hazard.
The applicant agrees to prevent electrical cords being run to individual craft sites.

The MRF shall provide an ambulance on site during operational times.

June 3, 2025 8
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



nEp
B

The applicant agrees with this condition. A note exists on Sheet 3 of the 2025 site plans stating that an
ambulance will be on site during operational times. In the application submission, there is also a note
stating that Groveland Fire will be on site for medical assistance.

16. Adequate off and on-premises security and law enforcement personnel shall be provided to
ensure safe and efficient traffic crowd control and enforcement of liquor laws. Further, the
Festival shall have deputy sheriff on the corner of Lahring Road and Dixie Highway to ensure
ingress and egress for residents along Lahring Road.

The applicant agrees with this condition. The MRF will have an Oakland County Sheriff's Office (OCSO)
at Lahring whenever there is traffic. The contract provides for total of 16-24 deputies per event date. The
applicant shall comply with all applicable State of Michigan licensing requirements. The MRF seeks a 3-
year contract with OCSO for 2025 which is subject to the Board of Commissioners approval.
Documentation of this approval in the form of an executed agreement must be submitted prior to the start

of the 2025 season.

17. All drives and parking areas shall be treated on a regular basis to control dust. During non-
operational periods, parking areas shall be reseeded with grass to ensure stabilization and

erosion and dust control.

The 2025 site plans note on Sheet 3 that dust control will be provided a minimum of 4 times throughout
the festival and additionally if required due to dry weather conditions. A receipt from Sunbelt rentals has
been submitted demonstrating rental of a water trailer for treatment of gravel and unpaved drives
between August 13, 2025 to October 1, 2025.

18. A maximum of 9,256 vehicles shall be allowed within all parking areas, including Mt. Holly, at any
one time. Once the limit of 9,256 cars is reached the electronic changeable letter signs will being
to display a message to incoming vehicles that the Festival parking is at capacity. This system will
allow the Festival to ensure that this maximum number is monitored and enforced.

Included in the submission was a parking lot capacity protocol. In the event that parking reaches full
capacity, festival staff will deploy proper signage and coordinate with OCSO to redirect vehicles.

However, Sheet 2 on the 2025 site plans indicate that there are a total of 9,563 parking spaces.

19. The MRF shall provide a traffic and parking management plan. Parking attendants will keep track
of the number of vehicles entering and exiting. Changeable copy signs will be used to direct
traffic to offsite parking when the parking on the festival grounds is full. Generator signs with
changeable letters shall be used to direct traffic and provide timely information to incoming
Festival patrons. This may include notices that total number of parking vehicles is approaching

the on-site vehicle limit.

The applicant has agreed with this condition. A changeable letter sign will also be placed on I-75. The site
plan identifies the location of the offsite signage for the festival.

20, Traffic shall be kept to a minimum in and out of the Festival at night.

The applicant agrees with this condition. To ensure that emergency vehicles can access Dixie Highway,
the festival has provided a plan that includes important contact phone numbers and the procedure for

diverting traffic.

21. Additional sidewalks or boardwalk areas shall be provided to improve pedestrian flow and post a
crossing guard to help pedestrians across the main traffic lanes.

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



=
gl

As mentioned in the Site Plan Review section of this letter, a secondary entrance to the festival grounds
and pedestrian pathways and bridge are proposed in the 2025 site plans in the southwest region of the
site. As stated previously, the MRF must obtain proper approval from the Michigan Department of
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) prior to construction. If, during the permitting process with
EGLE, the proposed layout changes, any revised site layout must be administratively approved by Holly

Township.

22, All loudspeakers, public address mechanisms, generators and refrigerators, shall be directed to
result in the least possible impact upon adjoining uses, with particular regard to residential uses.

The applicant agrees with this condition.

23. The MRF shall submit an annual site plan by April 1st of each festival year and all applicable
review fees paid.

The applicant has met with the Township several times following the conclusion of the 2024 season. The
applicant submitted the 2025 application form and fee on April 8, 2025 which was agreed upon during
meetings with the MRF and Township. The submission included a revised site plan dated April 15, 2025,
The site plan does not include to-scale depictions of the various structures on the property, which the
MRF commits to providing by the end of 2025. To create this up-to-date plan with to-scale drawings, the
MRF’s engineer and surveyor will use drone sensor mapping to inventary existing structures, which must
be done in the fall. Should the updated site plan not be submitted by the end of 2025, the applicant risks
not obtaining necessary approvals in time to open the festival for 2026. The applicant must provide this
plan by December 1, 2025, and all necessary submission materials for the 2026 season by April 1%, 2026
for next year's approval process to ensure they obtain necessary permits and inspections ahead of the
events.

24. Holly Township shall be named as an additional insured on the Renaissance Festival insurance
policy, at a minimum value of $3,000,000.

Insurance documents included in this year's submission meet requirements, however they expire on
November 1, 2025. The insurance policy is renewed on an annual basis. As such, prior to the expiration
of the current policy on November 1, 2025, the applicant must provide insurance documentation verifying
they have coverage for the winter event, Hollydazzle, with Holly Township listed as an additional insured.
Until the Township receives these, they may not be allowed to operate following the expiration of the

insurance policy.

25. Sign application and fees shall be paid by the MRF for the large Road Commission type message
boards.

This will be completed prior to any operations by the festival.

26. The MRF shall keep track of visitors entering and existing the site to control maximum occupancy
and provide updated attendance figures.

The applicant has provided attendance counts for previous festivals in the years of 2019, 2021, 2022,
2023, and 2024.

27. The MRF shall provide copies of all leases for any booths, buildings, or any other enclosed space
being leased by others, within the Festival property.

The intent of this requirement is to provide the Building Official and Fire Marshal adequate access to
perform inspections in a timely manner. Contact information has been provided for each user. This
standard has been met.

June 3, 2025 10
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



[y )
IIJ
e

28. The MRF shall include language in all of the booth/building leases, which specifically confirms the
ability of the Township and its inspector and agents to inspect all buildings and booths within the
Festival property for compliance with all applicable building, electrical, plumbing, these
inspections may take place at any time during which the Festival is open to the public without
notice (added in 2012).

The intent of this requirement is to provide the Building Official and Fire Marshal adequate access to
perform inspections in a timely manner. Contact information has been provided for each user. This

standard has been met,

29. All booth/building leases shall include a provision that guarantees a key to all leased facilities for
the MRF. The MRF agrees that the Township will be able to obtain any keys necessary to access
any leased facilities in accordance with the inspection provisions above.

The intent of this requirement is to provide the Building Official and Fire Marshal adequate access to
perform inspections in a timely manner. Contact information has been provided for each user. This

standard has been met.

30. All required Building Use inspections for any part of the Festival property shall be completed at
least one week hefore the Festival is open to the public.

The Building Official completed 2024 inspections during the season, and a variety of outstanding items to
address have been provided in writing to the MRF and its vendors. Per the Building Official's email dated
May 8%, 2025, the MRF is obtaining permits and working towards an agreed upon August 15!, 2026
completion deadline. Some progress has been made to date which the Building Official is satisfied with.
On-going inspections will occur, and any areas deemed condemnable or unsafe for the public health,
safety, and welfare will not be permitted to open in the 2025 season.

31. The MRF shall comply with any additional conditions as determined by the Building Inspector,
Electrical Inspector, and Fire Chief as a result of future inspections.

We defer to the Township Building Official and Fire Marshal and Chief, who have all verified that the on-
going progress made by the MRF is suitable to this point and will be monitoring progress as the August
1st, 2026 deadline approaches. On-going building inspections will occur, and NOCFA maintains a
constant presence during the main festival operations. Any areas deemed condemnable or unsafe for
public health, safety, and welfare will not be permitted to open in the 2025 season.

32. Per the September 21, 2015, letter sent by Groveland Township, a traffic and parking analysis
study shall be provided with the following information:

Analysis on the appropriate directional signage, both on and off site;

Number of sheriff deputies necessary to manage traffic;

Identify the total number of parking spaces available for the festival,

Whether physical delineation of parking aisles is necessary;

Total estimated parking demand on a per day and per hour basis (account for the large swing in
usage);

Parking management plan to maximize parking utilization and minimize conflicting traffic patterns;
Level of Service (LOS) at all impacted intersections;

Revised and accurate plan; and

The basis for determining the amount for escrow to cover the payment for traffic signage and sheriff

deputies.

June 3, 2025 1

Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



Although the applicant has not provided a report with the above required information, they did furnish a
detailed traffic and parking presentation addressing past traffic and parking issues. The applicant will
work with the Oakland County Sheriff's Office to maintain access to the Lahring Road residents and to the
nearby Fire Station. The parking plan has been in effect for three seasons and there has been a
noticeable improvement in traffic conditions along Dixie Highway. All further concerns with this review
standards are being addressed by Groveland Township, whose Board will consider granting the MRF a
special use permit for the 2025 season on June 9, 2025. We will follow up on the outcome of that meeting
prior to Holly's meeting on June 11, 2025 to provide an update to the Planning Commission. Any future
revised site plan shall indicate compliance with these conditions.

SECTION 32-33 SPECIAL USES

In addition to the above conditions, the Township's zoning ordinance has the following standards to review all
Special Land Use requests:

(c) Basis of Determinations

1. Will be harmonious and in accordance with the general objectives or any specific objectives of the
Township Master Plan and will be compatible with the natural environment.

The Michigan Renaissance Festival's continued use of the site aligns directly with the currently adopted
2024 Holly Township Master Plan's designation of the area, which is Institutional/Local Recreation.

2. Will be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained to be harmonious and appropriate in
appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and will not change the
essential character of the area. Will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future nearby
uses.

The activities contained to the existing MRF site are designed, constructed, operated, and maintained to
be harmonious with the area. The MRF made improvements to their traffic and parking plan to help
reduce off-site impacts.

3. Will be compatible with adjacent uses of land and will promote the use of land in a socially and
economically desirable manner.

The MRF's proposal aligns with neighboring properties by addressing potential traffic issues through
ongoing support from a private parking management company, Elite Parking Services Inc., and the
implementation of screening measures in parking zones.

4. Will be served adequately by essential public services and facilities or that the persons
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use will provide adequately any such service or
facility.

The proposed use does not place an increased demand on emergency and medical personnel from years
prior. The plan presented by the MRF reduces the demand for these services to the extent practical,
allowing for the site to be adequately serviced and public health, safety, and welfare maintained. The
submission also includes draft agreements with Oakland County Sheriffs Office to provide additional
services for the festival to ensure proper coverage, which will be finalized before the start of the season.

5. Will not create excessive additional public costs and will not significantly decrease property
values of surrounding properties.

June 3, 2025 12
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



e/
e

The MRF has worked with the Township and Oakland County Sheriff's Office (OCSO) to limit public costs
and pays for additional coverage by the OCSO which is demonstrated in their submission. The existing
MREF site has been screened with trees to limit the effect on nearby properties.

6. Will meet all the requirements and standards of this chapter and any other applicable laws,
standards, ordinances, and/or regulations.

Compliance with all requirements and standards outlined in the Special Uses chapter, as well as
compliance with any other applicable laws, standards, ordinances, and regulations, have been met at this
time as outlined in this review. Outstanding operational items, such as compliance with the Township’s
business license requirements and on-going Fire and Building code issues, are being monitored and
resolved on an on-going basis with the Fire Chief, Building Official, Zoning Administrator, Township
Planner, and other regulatory bodies (such as EGLE, Oakland County Health Department, etc.) as
necessary. Inspections and reviews that have yet to be completed will be recorded for on-going review of
the festival's compliance. Special use permit approval should be conditional on the positive outcome of
these on-going inspections and additional reviews. Should the MRF be in violation of the agreed upon
compliance work plan, sections or the entirety of the festival may be at risk of condemnation or the
Special Land Use permit may be revoked.

June 3, 2025 13
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



P

RECOMMENDATION

Based on our review of submitted materials, there are several items that must be addressed in the short and long
term. Subject to the results of the public hearing, we are recommending approval of the site plan request subject
to the approval of the accompanying special land use request.

We recommend approval of the special land use permit request for the 2025 season subject to the following
conditions:

1. Allow administrative review and approval for events not noted in the 2025 application held on site with more
than 1,000 attendees.

2. Allow administrative review and approval for the following, which the applicant must submit by July 31st,
2025. Any delay on their part may result in delayed opening of the festival for the 2025 season:

a. The applicant must provide a copy of the approved, executed contract with the OCSO for the 2025
season.

b. The applicant must comply with and receive approvals from the Building and Fire Departments and
obtain the appropriate Oakland County permits for on-going site improvements.

c. The applicant must obtain appropriate food service, water supply, and sanitation permits from the
Oakland County Health Department and Michigan Department of Health and provide copies to

Township.

3. Hours of operation for the all festival operations, including the main 7-week festival and Hollydazzle, must be
confined to 9:00 am to 7:00 pm per the special land use permit.

4. Following the site-wide survey to capture existing, accurate dimensions of all site buildings and features in the
fall of 2025, the applicant must provide a to-scale drawing of the site. This must be submitted by December

1st, 2025 for administrative approval.

5. The applicant must provide insurance documentation once current coverage expires on November 1, 2025
verifying they have coverage for the winter event, Hollydazzle, with Holly Township listed as an additional
insured.

6. The applicant must obtain proper approval from the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and
Energy (EGLE) prior to construction of the second entrance on the west side of the site. If, during the
permitting process with EGLE, the proposed layout changes, any revised site layout must be administratively
approved by Holly Township.

7. The applicant must continue to meet with Township officials, the Township Building Official, the North
Oakland County Fire Department, and the Township Planning and Engineering consultants on an on-going
basis to discuss a timeline for completing the following items in order to maintain their Special Use permit:

a. The applicant shall comply with all condemnation notices issued by the Building Official and condemned
structures shall be off-limits unless the applicant successfully obtains a Certificate of Occupancy from

the Building Official.

b. The applicant shall work with the Township officials to address a variety of outstanding code violations
and necessary site improvements, which have been provided in writing to the MRF, by August 1%, 2026
completion deadline.

June 3, 2025 14

Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



8. Planning Commission approval of this application shall remain in effect for one calendar year. Should the
applicant not meet the conditions of approval, their Special Use permit may be revoked per Section 32-33 of
the Holly Township Zoning Ordinance.

To aid you in making a motion, we have provided recommended language below:

Site Plan:

Motion to approve the site plan for the Michigan Renaissance Festival at 12600 Dixie Highway, Holly, M{
48442 based on the plans dated April 1, 2025, conditioned on the approval of the special land use permit
reqguest.

Special Land Use:
Motion to approve the special use requests for the operation of the Michigan Renaissance Festival at 12600

. Dixie Highway, Holly, Mi 48442 subject to the eight conditions outlined in the Planner’s report dated June 3,
2025, on the findings of fact that:

a) The operation of the site will be harmonious and in accordance with the general and specific objectives of
the Township master plan, and will be compatible with the natural environment based on the site design
and operalional regulations put in place by the Festival.

b) The site is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as {o be harmonious and appropriate in
appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and will not change the
essential character of the area.

¢) The site and operation are not hazardous or disturbing to existing or future nearby uses based on the
landscape buffering and operational regulations such as parking management put in place by the

Festival.
d) The site and operation are compatible with adjacent uses of land and will promote the use of land in a

socially and economically desirable manner, based on the landscape buffering and operational
regulations such as parking management put in place by the Festival.

e) The site and operation are served adequately by essential public services and facilities that the Michigan
Renaissance Festival provides and facilitates through contracts with the Oakland County Sheriff's Office,
and services provided by the North Oakland County Fire Authority and Groveland Township Fire

Department adequately any such service or facility.
f)  The site and operation will not create excessive additional public costs and will not significantly decrease

property values of surrounding properties, based on the continuing investment into the site and its fong-

standing history in the Township.
g) The site and operation meets all the requirements and standards of the Holly Township Zoning Ordinance

and other applicable laws, standards, ordinances, and/or regulations.

We will be in attendance at the June 11%, 2025, Planning Commission meeting to discuss any questions you may
have.

Respectfully Submitted,

Ayl My

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1

15



John Jacksan, AICP, NCI Alexis Farrell, NCI
President Senior Planner

c: Karin Winchester, Township Clerk, Zoning Administrator
George Kullis, Township Supervisor
Scott Herzberg, Building Official
North Qakland County Fire Department (NOCFA)

June 3, 2025 16
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR i1



e

MCKENNA

Site Plan and Special Land Use Review

| Mg e ~ |
Holly Township Planning Commission
TO: c/o Karin Winchester, Township Clerk
) 102 Civic Drive,
Holly Township, Ml 48442
. Alexis Farrell
FROM: John Jackson, AICP
SUBJECT: Michigan Renaissance Festival 2025 — Review #1
DATE: June 3, 2025

Dear Planning Commissioners:

The Michigan Renaissance Festival (MRF) operates seven weekends a year starting in mid-August through the
end of September. In 2001, the Township worked with the MRF to create permit conditions for an orderly annual
review of this massive and unique event. The MRF contains over 300 acres, although about 75 acres are in
neighboring Groveland Township. Traffic management improvements made since 2015 and the elimination of on-
site camping in 2018 contribute to a much smoother operating season. In 2024, the Planning Commission

approved the use with a variety of conditions, including:

1. Allow administrative review and approval for non-Michigan Renaissance Festival events on site with more
than 1,000 attendees.

2. Allow administrative review and approval for documentation of a variety of operational items, such as dust
control services, trash removal services, insurance coverage, vendor contact information and leases, and
permits from the Township Building Official, Fire Department, Oakland County Health Department, or any

other applicable Township official or regulatory body.

3. Attendance at regular meetings with Township officials, the Township Building Official, the North Oakland
County Fire Department (NOCFA), and the Township Planning and Engineering consultants after the
conclusion of the main festival season in October 2024 to discuss a timeline for completing the following items

in order to obtain approval for the 2025 season.

4. The following items addressed by April 1, 2025:

a. Submission of revised, compliant site plans including up-to-date locations of all site features, all changes
that have been made to the internal layout, such as drive lanes or internal roads, buildings, walkways, or
other structures, up-to-date stormwater management plans, grading and drainage plans, and up-to-date

traffic control plans.

b. Compliance with all condemnation notices issued by the Building Official and condemned structures
marked as off-limits unless the applicant successfully obtains a Certificate of Occupancy from the

Building Official.
HEADQUARTERS
235 East Main Street O 248.596.0920
Suite 105 F 24B.596.0930 o o
Communities for real life.

Northville, Michigan 48167 MCKA.COM



c. Development of a work plan and timeline for any outstanding site improvements as discussed with
Township Officials that are required prior to the opening of the 2025 season.

To date, the applicant has met all the conditions from the 2024 approval. The Township continues to work and
meet with the MRF staff and representatives to address on-going operational compliance concerns as noted in
the NOCFA letters dated October 30, 2024, January 27, 2025, and March 3, 2025, and email from the Township
Building Official dated May 8, 2025. Also included in your packets are several letters from the MRF regarding
work plan progress updates,

2025 SPECIAL LAND USE REVIEW PROCESS

We based our review of the Michigan Renaissance Festival (MRF) application for Site Plan Review and Special
Land on the 2025 Site Plan and Special Land Use submission, correspondence from Renaissance Festival
Manager Chip Schultz, previously mentioned documents from the Building Official and NOCFA, discussions
between the Township and MRF, and the site plans dated April 2025. Additional comments on the plans can be
found in the Site Plan Review section of this letter.

The Renaissance Festival seeks Special Land Use approval to conduct the annual seven-week festival beginning
August 16, 2025, as well as 21 days spread throughout November and December 2025 for Hollydazzle. We are
recommending that the approval be granted with the attached conditions, with the special land use permit expiring
onJune 11, 2025, If substantial changes are made to the site plan between the date of approval and the opening
of the festival, a site plan shall be resubmitted to the Township for review and approval.

We reviewed the above referenced site plan and special land use applications along with the submitted response
letters according to the Holly Township Zoning Ordinance, the Michigan Renaissance Festival Master Plan (dated
1989), past approvals, and sound planning practices. The subject site is zoned AGRE and has hosted the MRF
since 1989. In 2023 the festival hosted 254,027 patrons during the main festival weekends and 5,933 patrons
during Hollydazzle, and in 2024 hosted a total of 269,464 during the main festival weekends, and 7,119 during

Hollydazzle.

We offer the following comments for your consideration.

SITE PLAN REVIEW
Sec. 32-233. - Criteria of site plan review,

1. The proposed use will not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood.

The Michigan Renaissance Festival has been held at this site for aver thirty years. The festival will
maintain the existing screening between properties and is committed to minimizing traffic impacts through
an updated comprehensive traffic and parking management plan. In 2023, MRF hired a private parking
company, Elite Parking Solutions Inc., which successfully reduced traffic on Dixie Highway during the
2023 and 2024 seasons. The submission indicates that the MRF will maintain private parking services in
2025. Additionally, the applicant collaborates closely with the Township to mitigate any negative effects
on the surrounding neighborhood.

2. There is a proper relationship between major thoroughfares and proposed service drives,
driveways and parking areas and provisions have been made for acceleration, deceleration and
passing lanes or approaches to preserve the safety and convenience of pedestrian and vehicular

traffic.

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



oy
5l 4

The main entrances to the MRF are from Dixie Highway. The 2025 plan shows two entrances on the
north and south sides of the festival offices and maintains the one-way out driveway and exit at the south
end of the site on Dixie Highway, which was established in 2022. The MRF is currently continuing to
make improvements along this exit drive, warking with the Michigan Department of Environment, Great
Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) to remediate wetland disturbance in the area and install culverts. The
submission also includes signage plans for Dixie Highway and I-75 to direct traffic to the site.

The 2025 site plans also detail the existing parking and access to the festival grounds, including an
internal perimeter drive around the southern parking area to allow for vehicle stacking. Additionally, the
plan provides for a maneuvering lane within the grass parking area, a no-parking fire lane, and
designated large vehicle parking for the festival.

The MRF presented a Traffic Management strategy to Groveland Township in May of 2023, which details
plans to prevent traffic from stacking up along Dixie Highway and blocking access for the Groveland
Township Fire Department. They presented a similar strategy in April 2024, and the Groveland Township
Board granted the MRF a special use permit for the 2024 season on May 13", 2024. For the 2025
season, the MRF sought a 3-year approval from Groveland Township at the Planning Commission (PC)
meeting on May 19, 2025. Groveland Township's PC motioned to recommend that their Township Board
approve this request. This item will be before Groveland Township’s Board of Trustees on their June 9,
2025 meeting. We will follow up on the outcome of this to update Holly's PC at our June 11, 2025
meeting.

3. The location of buildings, outside storage receptacles, parking areas, screen walls and utility
areas are such that the adverse effects of such uses will be minimized for the occupants of that

use and surrounding areas.

The existing buildings and parking areas of the MRF are reasonably screened by the existing trees that
help minimize the adverse effects of the festival for the occupants of the surrounding area.

4. It provides for proper development of roads, easements and public utilities and protects the
general health, safety, welfare and character of the township.

There are two main internal roads for the site, the main road to the north that leads to the festival area
and the south road loop that leads to parking, and ultimately back to Dixie Highway as an exit. The plan
includes the location, and signage for, fire lanes throughout the site. These fire lanes must comply with
the Fire Departments requirements for access, which we defer to NOCFA to address.

In 2018, the MRF began construction of a second entry into the festival, which is now fully operational.
The main entrance on the north side was also widened to allow for two lanes of flow in and out of the site.
In 2022, a third egress onto Dixie Highway was constructed as an exit-only drive at the very south of the
property. This drive is nearly complete with the exception of several culverts being installed and wetland

remediation carried out per EGLE requirements.

5. It meets the requirements and standards for grading and surface drainage and for the design and
construction of storm sewers, stormwater facilities, parking lots, driveways, water mains, sanitary
sewers and for acceleration, deceleration and passing lanes or approaches as determined by the
township engineers and set forth in the township design and construction standards.

The 2025 site plan includes existing site grading and does not propose any changes at this time. It is
important to understand the potential drainage patterns to determine any off-site impacts. Any future
proposed changes or expansion of the festival must include proposed grading plans.

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



6. Proper access to all portions of the site and all sides of any structure is provided. All structures or
groups of structures shall be so arranged as to permit emergency vehicle access by some
practical means to all sides. Site features such as, but not limited to, trees and other plant
materials, fences, retaining walls, berms, outdoor furniture, outdoor structures, and natural and
artificial water bodies shall be arranged to permit adequate emergency vehicle access.

This item will be subject to the review of the North Oakland County Fire Department (NOCFA) Fire Chief.
Please refer to the Fire Chief's letters dated October 30, 2024, January 27, 2025, and March 3, 2025 for
more information regarding emergency access.

7. Natural resources will be preserved to the maximum extent possible in the site design by
developing in a manner which will not detrimentally affect or destroy natural features such as
lakes, ponds, streams, wetlands, steep slopes, groundwater and woodlands.

In 2018, the festival removed trees to access the second entry and for an emergency access-only drive
that is required by the Fire Department. Most of the site remains wooded. None of the trees removed are
visible off site. The 2025 site plan does not show additional tree removal or cutting. Future tree removal
will be subject to the Township's Woodland Protection Ordinance. Any future changes that include tree
removal subject to the Woodland Protection Ordinance must be demonstrated on plans which will be
reviewed in respect to natural feature preservation.

8. The proposed development respects the natural topography to the maximum extent possible by
minimizing the amount of cutting, filling and grading required.

No changes to topography or grading are shown on the 2025 plans. Any future proposed changes must
be shown on revised plans and will be re-evaluated in respect to this standard.

9. The proposed development will nhot cause soil erosion or sedimentation.

Grading or construction may require a Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC) permit from the
State of Michigan.

10. Stormwater management systems and facilities will preserve the natural drainage characteristics
and enhance the aesthetics of the site to the maximum extent possible and will not substantially
reduce or increase the natural retention or storage capacity of any wetland, water body or water
course, or cause alterations which could increase flooding or water pollution on or off-site.

A stormwater management plan has not been provided at this time. Once the MRF is prepared to
construct the new proposed improvements for a second entrance on the west side of the site, a
stormwater management plan should be included to ensure stormwater management is addressed in light
of changes over the last several years and to demonstrate how the proposed improvements would affect
the site area.

11. Wastewater treatment systems, including on-site septic systems will be located and designed to
minimize any potential degradation of surface water or groundwater quality.

The property currently utilizes an on-site septic system for wastewater management. Currently, there are
no plans or proposals to upgrade, modify, or expand the existing septic system. Any future changes to the

June 3, 2025 4
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



=mp
i A

system should be included on updated site plans, which will be reviewed to ensure that this standard is
met.

12. Sites which include storage of hazardous materials or waste, fuels, salt, or chemicals will be
designed to prevent spills and discharges of polluting materials to the surface of the ground,
groundwater or nearby water bodies.

The applicant agrees that there will not be storage of hazardous materials or waste, fuels, salt, or
chemicals. During a site walk in September 2024, while the festival was operating, there were noticeable
issues with grease waste management. The MRF is working with the Building Official and NOCFA to
address operational issues such as this through facility upgrades and weekly inspections during the

festival operations.

13. The location of buildings, parking, drives, landscaping and other improvements on the site is
appropriate and consistent with good design standards for the lot size, shape and general
location.

Updated site plans, dated April 2025, have been provided. The location of all existing buildings,
walkways, and driveways are noted. This includes existing infrastructure, and also a few proposed
changes to the southwest area of the festival grounds to introduce a secondary entrance to the grounds.
This includes the extension of the existing 30-foot breakaway fence, 8-foot wide gate, 8-foot wide walking
paths and a bridge, as well as a 90 x 40 foot (3,600 square feet) gravel area for festival entrance

operations.

b BOLKZARY

o ey C;l’
a1

l‘v - S
L7 y O RNSTHE 12 A / \
\ ENSTHG WET-8D
= /
i

\ ~—PROPOSED

’\,‘{ 30° BREAKAWAY FENCE

Snippet from Sheet 3 of the site plans.

This additional pedestrian entrance to the festival grounds is supported by NOCFA to allow for a
secondary pedestrian entrance and exit, which is especially important during emergencies. However,
these changes are proposed in an existing floodplain and very close (if not projecting into) the wetlands.
The MRF must obtain proper approval from the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and
Enerqy (EGLE) prior to construction. If, during the permitting process with EGLE, the proposed layout
changes. any revised site layout must be administratively approved by Holly Township.

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



14,

15.

=zp
e

Additionally, the submission notes that building sizes are not accurate to scale. The MRF has committed
to providing this and indicated that in the fall of 2025, their engineers and surveyors will be conducting a
site-wide survey to capture existing dimensions and will provide a to-scale drawina. This must be
submitted by December 15!, 2025.

Landscaping, including grass, trees, shrubs and other vegetation is provided to maintain and
improve the aesthetic quality of the site and area.

The applicant provides and maintains appropriate vegetation.

The proposed use follows all township ordinances and any other applicable laws.

The use of the MRF is consistent with past reviews. Please see the Special Land Use criteria and review
comments on the following pages.

SPECIAL LAND USE REVIEW

Our review of the Special Land Use for the Michigan Renaissance Festival is based on the Master Plan for the
Michigan Renaissance Festival, originally dated January 13, 1989, and as amended by revised drawings dated
April 2025. Below is a list of the conditions that have been required for past approvals.

MRF MASTER PLAN

1.

Approval is based upon the Master Plan for the Michigan Renaissance Festival dated January 13,
1989 and as amended by revised drawings dated April 2025.

The 2025 site plans submitted show existing features of the site, as well as several proposed changes.
Please refer to the Site Plan Review section of this letter.

Appropriate building, electrical, plumbing and mechanical permits for the Township, Oakland
County and the State of Michigan shall be maintained.

The MRF is working with the Township Building Official to address outstanding compliance issues. The
Building Official has provided correspondence dated May 8, 2025, which notes they are satisfied with the
progress to date. This correspondence also indicates that the Building Official has given the MRF until
August 1, 2026 to complete upgrades and address compliance issues based on inspections conducted
during the 2024 season. The site will continue to be inspected by the Township Building Department for
compliance as permits are pulled to address these items. We defer to the Building Official for additional

information on this standard.

Appropriate food service, water supply, and sanitation permits from the Oakland County Health
Department and Michigan Department of Health shall be maintained, with copies to Township.

The applicant has stated that the Qakland County Health Department conducts inspections throughout
the 7-week main festival. The MRF has indicated that they understand that they cannot open the Food
Areas until the appropriate permits are issued.

4. The hours of operation shall be limited from 9:00 am to 7:00 pm for a period of seven (7)
weekends, including Labor Day and School Day, starting approximately in mid-August and ending
approximately September 30.

The MRF will continue to operate under this condition, and the festival is scheduled to open this year on
August 16th. The applicant desires permission to hold additional events outside of the festival. The
June 3, 2025 g

Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



=
B

special use permit application indicates Hollydazzle, a winter holiday event, is being planned for the
following dates in 2025:

¢ November 28, 29, and 30
e December 5, 6,7, 12, 13, 14, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, and 31

It should be noted that in 2024, Hollydazzle was open until 10 PM on Fridays and Saturdays, and 9 PM
on Sundays based on the MRF’S Hollydazzle website. The Special Land Use application notes that hours
of operation are from 9:00 am to 7:00 pm, which are the hours that have been permitted for many years.
These hours must be adhered to for both the main 7-week festival in the fall, as well as for Hollydazzle.

For any additional events larger than 1,000 attendees, operation time must be reviewed by staff, including
the NOCFA to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of Township residents and visitars.

5. Adequate trash disposal containers and collection services shall be provided to ensure the site is
kept in a litter free condition during both operation and non-operational periods.

The 2025 plans include a note on Sheet 3 regarding trash receptacles, which notes that 200 receptacles
are placed throughout the site, 6 of which are located near the festival entrance. Additionally, the MRF
has provided a copy of a signed agreement with the Hamady Middle / High School Marching Band, who
will provide at least 15 “volunteers” at a minimum on festival days to gather and dispose of the garbage.
The MRF pays the group who volunteers their time to raise funds for their uniforms, instruments, and

repairs.

The trash receptacles are shown below in photos taken during the September 2024 site visit:

In years past, there have been complaints of these receptacles overflowing, resulting in litter spreading
around the grounds. The MRF has shared that they are acquiring 100 additional receptacles to ensure
proper waste management. If this continues to be an issue during the 2025 season, we recommend that
the festival provide larger, sturdier receptacles to reduce the chance of litter and the frequency at which

they must be emptied.

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

First-aid facilities and qualified medical personnel shall be provided during all periods of
operation.

The 2025 site plan notes that an ambulance will be on site during festival operation times, and identifies
the first-aid building on the northwest end of the site.

The Festival organizers shall ensure that parking areas be occupied and utilized to the greatest
extent.

The applicant provided a parking management plan that keeps track of the number of vehicles entering
and leaving the festival grounds. This will ensure that when the parking lots are full, traffic can efficiently
be redirected to offsite areas using signage and attendants. The applicant hired a new parking
management service in 2023 to organize cars and collect parking fees. The MRF will retain this service in

2025 after a successful process in 2023 and 2024.

The Festival buildings and booths shall not be used as dwellings for craftsman or any other
participants, or in any other way that is in violation of Township Ordinances, without approval
from Holly Township. No camping is permitted on-site (added 2018).

The applicant agrees to this condition.
Landscaping shall be maintained along Lahring Road.

In 2004, twenty evergreen trees were planted along Lahring Road to act as a screen. This landscaping
appears to be maintained and still present.

Any discharges into the wetlands shall be clean and screened by a silt screen. The need for
stormwater retention/ detentions plan and plan for discharge shall be determined on a year-to-
year basis. Methods should be utilized to prevent tree damage due to soil compaction as well as
other general public circumstances.

The applicant has agreed to this condition. Any major proposed construction in the future will be required
to meet this standard.

Annual inspections and approvals of Festivals hy appropriate Fire Safety personnel shall be
required.

This item will be subject to the review of the North Oakland County Fire Department (NOCFA) Fire
Marshal. All required permits will be handled through NOCFA.

Extinguisher systems shall be installed in all MRF buildings to protect against fire.

This item will be subject to the review of the North Oakland County Fire Department (NOCFA) Fire
Marshal. The Fire Marshal will confirm the location of extinguishers.

Blast furnace for glass blower and other open flame crafts must be extinguished each night and
not left unattended for any reason.

The applicant has agreed to this condition.
No electrical cords shall be run to individual craft sites creating a fire hazard.
The applicant agrees to prevent electrical cords being run to individual craft sites.

The MRF shall provide an ambulance on site during operational times.

June 3, 2025 8
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



gy
i

The applicant agrees with this condition. A note exists on Sheet 3 of the 2025 site plans stating that an
ambulance will be on site during operational times. In the application submission, there is also a note
stating that Groveland Fire will be on site for medical assistance.

16. Adequate off and on-premises security and law enforcement personnel shall be provided to
ensure safe and efficient traffic crowd control and enforcement of liquor laws. Further, the
Festival shall have deputy sheriff on the corner of Lahring Road and Dixie Highway to ensure
ingress and egress for residents along Lahring Road.

The applicant agrees with this condition. The MRF will have an Oakland County Sheriff's Office (OCSO)
at Lahring whenever there is traffic. The contract provides for total of 16-24 deputies per event date. The
applicant shall comply with all applicable State of Michigan licensing requirements. The MRF seeks a 3-
year contract with OCSO for 2025 which is subject to the Board of Commissioners approval.
Documentation of this approval in the form of an executed agreement must be submitted prior to the start

of the 2025 season.

17. All drives and parking areas shall be treated on a regular basis to control dust. During non-
operational periods, parking areas shall be reseeded with grass to ensure stabilization and

erosion and dust control.

The 2025 site plans note on Sheet 3 that dust control will be provided a minimum of 4 times throughout
the festival and additionally if required due to dry weather conditions. A receipt from Sunbelt rentals has
been submitted demonstrating rental of a water trailer for treatment of gravel and unpaved drives
between August 13, 2025 to October 1, 2025.

18. A maximum of 9,256 vehicles shall be allowed within all parking areas, including Mt. Holly, at any
one time. Once the limit of 9,256 cars is reached the electronic changeable letter signs will being
to display a message to incoming vehicles that the Festival parking is at capacity. This system will
allow the Festival to ensure that this maximum number is monitored and enforced.

Included in the submission was a parking lot capacity protocol. In the event that parking reaches full
capacity, festival staff will deploy proper signage and coordinate with OCSO to redirect vehicles.

However, Sheet 2 on the 2025 site plans indicate that there are a total of 9,563 parking spaces.

19. The MRF shall provide a traffic and parking management plan. Parking attendants will keep track
of the number of vehicles entering and exiting. Changeable copy signs will be used to direct
traffic to offsite parking when the parking on the festival grounds is full. Generator signs with
changeable letters shall be used to direct traffic and provide timely information to incoming
Festival patrons. This may include notices that total number of parking vehicles is approaching

the on-site vehicle limit.

The applicant has agreed with this condition. A changeable letter sign will also be placed on I-75. The site
plan identifies the location of the offsite signage for the festival.

20. Traffic shall be kept to a minimum in and out of the Festival at night.

The applicant agrees with this condition. To ensure that emergency vehicles can access Dixie Highway,
the festival has provided a plan that includes important contact phone numbers and the procedure for

diverting traffic.

21. Additional sidewalks or boardwalk areas shall be provided to improve pedestrian flow and post a
crossing guard to help pedestrians across the main traffic lanes.

June 3, 2025
Hally Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



As mentioned in the Site Plan Review section of this letter, a secondary entrance to the festival grounds
and pedestrian pathways and bridge are proposed in the 2025 site plans in the southwest region of the
site. As stated previously, the MRF must obtain proper approval from the Michigan Department of
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) prior to construction. If, during the permitting process with
EGLE, the proposed layout changes, any revised site layout must be administratively approved by Holly

Township.

22. All loudspeakers, public address mechanisms, generators and refrigerators, shall be directed to
result in the least possible impact upon adjoining uses, with particular regard to residential uses.

The applicant agrees with this condition.

23. The MRF shall submit an annual site plan by April 1st of each festival year and all applicable
review fees paid.

The applicant has met with the Township several times following the conclusion of the 2024 season. The
applicant submitted the 2025 application form and fee on April 81, 2025 which was agreed upon during
meetings with the MRF and Township. The submission included a revised site plan dated April 15!, 2025,
The site plan does not include to-scale depictions of the various structures on the property, which the
MRF commits to providing by the end of 2025. To create this up-to-date plan with to-scale drawings, the
MRF's engineer and surveyor will use drone sensor mapping to inventory existing structures, which must
be done in the fall. Should the updated site plan not be submitted by the end of 2025, the applicant risks
not obtaining necessary approvals in time to open the festival for 2026. The applicant must provide this
plan by December 1, 2025, and all necessary submission materials for the 2026 season by April 13, 2026
for next vear's approval process to ensure they obtain necessary permits and inspections ahead of the
events.

24. Holly Township shall be named as an additional insured on the Renaissance Festival insurance
policy, at a minimum value of $3,000,000,

Insurance documents included in this year's submission meet requirements, however they expire on
November 1, 2025, The insurance policy is renewed on an annual basis. As such, prior to the expiration
of the current policy on November 1, 2025, the applicant must provide insurance documentation verifying
they have coverage for the winter event, Hollydazzle, with Holly Township listed as an additional insured.
Until the Township receives these, they may not be allowed to operate following the expiration of the
insurance policy.

25, Sign application and fees shall be paid by the MRF for the large Road Commission type message
boards.

This will be completed prior to any operations by the festival.

26. The MRF shall keep track of visitors entering and existing the site to control maximum occupancy
and provide updated attendance figures.

The applicant has provided attendance counts for previous festivals in the years of 2019, 2021, 2022,
2023, and 2024.

27. The MRF shall provide copies of all leases for any booths, buildings, or any other enclosed space
being leased by others, within the Festival property.

The intent of this requirement is to provide the Building Official and Fire Marshal adequate access to
perform inspections in a timely manner. Contact information has been provided for each user. This
standard has been met.

June 3, 2025 10
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



=gy
7

28. The MRF shall include language in all of the booth/building leases, which specifically confirms the
ability of the Township and its inspector and agents to inspect all buildings and booths within the
Festival property for compliance with all applicable building, electrical, plumbing, these
inspections may take place at any time during which the Festival is open to the public without
notice (added in 2012).

The intent of this requirement is to provide the Building Official and Fire Marshal adequate access to
perform inspections in a timely manner. Contact information has been provided for each user. This
standard has been met.

29. All booth/building leases shall include a provision that guarantees a key to all leased facilities for
the MRF. The MRF agrees that the Township will be able to obtain any keys necessary to access
any leased facilities in accordance with the inspection provisions above.

The intent of this requirement is to provide the Building Official and Fire Marshal adequate access to
perform inspections in a timely manner. Contact information has been provided for each user. This

standard has been met.

30. All required Building Use inspections for any part of the Festival property shall be completed at
least one week before the Festival is open to the public.

The Building Official completed 2024 inspections during the season, and a variety of outstanding items to
address have been provided in writing to the MRF and its vendors. Per the Building Official's email dated
May 8, 2025, the MRF is obtaining permits and working towards an agreed upon August 15!, 2026
completion deadline. Some progress has been made to date which the Building Official is satisfied with.
On-going inspections will occur, and any areas deemed condemnable or unsafe for the public health,
safety, and welfare will not be permitted to open in the 2025 season.

31. The MRF shall comply with any additional conditions as determined by the Building Inspector,
Electrical Inspector, and Fire Chief as a result of future inspections.

We defer to the Township Building Official and Fire Marshal and Chief, who have all verified that the on-
going progress made by the MRF is suitable to this point and will be monitoring progress as the August
15t 2026 deadline approaches. On-going building inspections will occur, and NOCFA maintains a
constant presence during the main festival operations. Any areas deemed condemnable or unsafe for
public health, safety, and welfare will not be permitted to open in the 2025 season.

32. Per the September 21, 2015, letter sent by Groveland Township, a traffic and parking analysis
study shall be provided with the following information:

Analysis on the appropriate directional signage, both on and off site;

Number of sheriff deputies necessary to manage traffic;

Identify the total number of parking spaces available for the festival;

Whether physical delineation of parking aisles is necessary;

Total estimated parking demand on a per day and per hour basis (account for the large swing in
usage);

Parking management plan to maximize parking utilization and minimize conflicting traffic patterns;

= Level of Service (LOS) at all impacted intersections;
» Revised and accurate plan; and
= The basis for determining the amount for escrow to cover the payment for traffic signage and sheriff
deputies.
June 3, 2025 11

Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



mwp
bt 7

Although the applicant has not provided a report with the above required information, they did furnish a
detailed traffic and parking presentation addressing past traffic and parking issues. The applicant will
work with the Oakland County Sheriff's Office to maintain access to the Lahring Road residents and to the
nearby Fire Station. The parking plan has been in effect for three seasons and there has been a
noticeable improvement in traffic conditions along Dixie Highway. All further concerns with this review
standards are being addressed by Groveland Township, whose Board will consider granting the MRF a
special use permit for the 2025 season on June 9, 2025. We will follow up on the outcome of that meeting
prior to Holly's meeting on June 11, 2025 to provide an update to the Planning Commission. Any future
revised site plan shall indicate compliance with these conditions.

SECTION 32-33 SPECIAL USES

In addition to the above conditions, the Township’s zoning ordinance has the following standards to review all
Special Land Use requests:

(c) Basis of Determinations

1. Will be harmonious and in accordance with the general objectives or any specific objectives of the
Township Master Plan and will be compatible with the natural environment.

The Michigan Renaissance Festival's continued use of the site aligns directly with the currently adopted
2024 Holly Township Master Plan's designation of the area, which is Institutional/Local Recreation.

2. Will be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained to be harmonious and appropriate in
appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and will not change the
essential character of the area. Will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future nearby
uses.

The activities contained to the existing MRF site are designed, constructed, operated, and maintained to
be harmonious with the area. The MRF made improvements to their traffic and parking plan to help
reduce off-site impacts.

3. Will be compatible with adjacent uses of land and will promote the use of land in a socially and
economically desirable manner,

The MRF's proposal aligns with neighboring properties by addressing potential traffic issues through
ongoing support from a private parking management company, Elite Parking Services Inc., and the
implementation of screening measures in parking zones.

4. Will be served adequately by essential public services and facilities or that the persons
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use will provide adequately any such service or
facility.

The proposed use does not place an increased demand on emergency and medical personnel from years
prior. The plan presented by the MRF reduces the demand for these services to the extent practical,
allowing for the site to be adequately serviced and public health, safety, and welfare maintained. The
submission also includes draft agreements with Oakland County Sheriff's Office to provide additional
services for the festival to ensure proper coverage, which will be finalized before the start of the season.

5. Will not create excessive additional public costs and will not significantly decrease property
values of surrounding properties.

June 3, 2025 12
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR i1



A
¥

The MRF has worked with the Township and Oakland County Sheriff's Office (OCSO) to limit public‘costs
and pays for additional coverage by the OCSO which is demonstrated in their submission. The existing
MRF site has been screened with trees to limit the effect on nearby properties.

6. Will meet all the requirements and standards of this chapter and any other applicable laws,
standards, ordinances, and/or regulations.

Compliance with all requirements and standards outlined in the Special Uses chapter, as well as
compliance with any other applicable laws, standards, ordinances, and regulations, have been met at this
time as outlined in this review. Outstanding operational items, such as compliance with the Township’s
business license requirements and on-going Fire and Building code issues, are being monitored and
resolved on an on-going basis with the Fire Chief, Building Official, Zoning Administrator, Township
Planner, and other regulatory bodies (such as EGLE, Oakland County Health Department, etc.) as
necessary. Inspections and reviews that have yet to be completed will be recorded for on-going review of
the festival's compliance. Special use permit approval should be conditional on the positive outcome of
these on-going inspections and additional reviews. Should the MRF be in violation of the agreed upon
compliance work plan, sections or the entirety of the festival may be at risk of condemnation or the
Special Land Use permit may be revoked.

June 3, 2025 13

Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



H
e

RECOMMENDATION

Based on our review of submitted materials, there are several items that must be addressed in the short and long
term. Subject to the results of the public hearing, we are recommending approval of the site plan request subject
to the approval of the accompanying special land use request.

We recommend approval of the special land use permit request for the 2025 season subject to the following
conditions:

1.

June 3, 2025

Allow administrative review and approval for events not noted in the 2025 application held on site with more
than 1,000 attendees.

Allow administrative review and approval for the following, which the applicant must submit by July 31st,
2025. Any delay on their part may result in delayed opening of the festival for the 2025 season:

a. The applicant must provide a copy of the approved, executed contract with the OCSO for the 2025
season.

b. The applicant must comply with and receive approvals from the Building and Fire Departments and
obtain the appropriate Oakland County permits for on-going site improvements.

c. The applicant must obtain appropriate food service, water supply, and sanitation permits from the
Oakland County Health Department and Michigan Department of Health and provide copies to

Township.

Hours of operation for the all festival operations, including the main 7-week festival and Hollydazzle, must be
confined to 9:00 am to 7:00 pm per the special land use permit.

Following the site-wide survey to capture existing, accurate dimensions of all site buildings and features in the
fall of 2025, the applicant must provide a to-scale drawing of the site. This must be submitted by December

1st, 2025 for administrative approval.

The applicant must provide insurance documentation once current coverage expires on November 1, 2025
verifying they have coverage for the winter event, Hollydazzle, with Holly Township listed as an additional
insured.

The applicant must obtain proper approval from the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and
Energy (EGLE) prior to construction of the second entrance on the west side of the site. If, during the
permitting process with EGLE, the proposed layout changes, any revised site layout must be administratively
approved by Holly Township.

The applicant must continue to meet with Township officials, the Township Building Official, the North
Oakland County Fire Department, and the Township Planning and Engineering consultants on an on-going
basis to discuss a timeline for completing the following items in order to maintain their Special Use permit:

a. The applicant shall comply with all condemnation notices issued by the Building Official and condemned
structures shall be off-limits unless the applicant successfully obtains a Certificate of Occupancy from

the Building Official.

b. The applicant shall work with the Township officials to address a variety of outstanding code violations
and necessary site improvements, which have been provided in writing to the MRF, by August 1%, 2026
completion deadline.

14

Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



8. Planning Commission approval of this application shall remain in effect for one calendar year. Should the
applicant not meet the conditions of approval, their Special Use permit may be revoked per Section 32-33 of

the Holly Township Zoning Ordinance.

To aid you in making a motion, we have provided recommended language below:

Site Plan:

Motion to approve the site plan for the Michigan Renaissance Festival at 12600 Dixie Highway, Holly, Mi
48442 based on the plans dated April 1, 2025, conditioned on the approval of the special land use permit
request.

Special Land Use:

Motion to approve the special use requests for the operation of the Michigan Renaissance Festival at 12600
Dixie Highway, Holly, MI 48442 subject to the eight conditions outlined in the Planner’s report dated June 3,

2025, on the findings of fact that:

a) The operation of the site will be harmonious and in accordance with the general and specific objectives of
the Township master plan, and will be compatible with the natural environment based on the site design
and operational regulations put in place by the Festival.

b) The site is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and appropriate in
appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and will not change the

essential character of the area.
c) The site and operation are not hazardous or disturbing to existing or future nearby uses based on the

landscape buffering and operational regulations such as parking management put in place by the

Festival.
d) The site and operation are compatible with adjacent uses of land and will promote the use of land in a

socially and economically desirable manner, based on the landscape buffering and operational

regulations such as parking management put in place by the Festival.

e) The site and operation are served adequately by essential public services and facilities that the Michigan
Renaissance Festival provides and facilitates through contracts with the Oakland County Sheriff's Office,
and services provided by the North Oakland County Fire Authority and Groveland Township Fire

Department adequately any such service or facility.
f)  The site and operation will not create excessive additional public costs and will not significantly decrease

property values of surrounding propetties, based on the continuing investment into the site and its long-

standing history in the Township.
g) The site and operation meets all the requirements and standards of the Holly Township Zoning Ordinance

and other applicable laws, standards, ordinances, and/or regulations.

We will be in attendance at the June 11%, 2025, Planning Commission meeting to discuss any questions you may
have.

Respectfully Submitted,

Ayl o]

June 3, 2025
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1

15



John Jackson, AICP, NCI Alexis Farrell, NCI
President Senior Planner

c: Karin Winchester, Township Clerk, Zoning Administrator
George Kullis, Township Supervisor
Scolt Herzberg, Building Official
North Oakland County Fire Department (NOCFA)

June 3, 2025 16
Holly Township - 2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival SLU and SPR #1



HOLLY TOWNSHIP
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Holly Township Planning Commission will
hold a public hearing on:

DATE: June 11, 2025
TIME: 6:30 PM or as soon as possible thereafter
PLACE: HOLLY TOWNSHIP HALL (Upstairs)
102 CIVIC DR.
HOLLY, MI 48442

PHONE: 248-634-9331 Ext. 301

The purpose of the public hearing is to consider a Special Land Use Permit by the
following applicants:

Michigan Renaissance Festival to operate a Festival and other Events on parcel
number 01-12-476-002 and 01-12-401-003 in an AGRE Zoning District.

The hearing is open to the public to voice their views and/or to submit written comment.
Citizens are encouraged to attend and participate in the hearing. The Holly Township
Planning Commission will consider any public comments received at this time. Written
comments may be submitted prior to the hearing by writing to: Clerk at 102 Civic Dr.,
Holly, Michigan 48442,

A copy of the proposed ordinance revisions may be reviewed at the Clerk’s office at the
above-mentioned address during regular business hours Monday, Tuesday and Thursday, 8:30
a.m. to 4:30 p.m. and Wednesday 8:30 to 6:00 p.m. except holidays.

Handicap persons needing assistance to attend or participate in this hearing are asked to contact the Township Clerk at 248-
634-9331 x 301 or by writing to the above-mentioned address at least business days prior to the meeting.

Karin S. Winchester, MMC
Clerk/Zoning Administrator






HOLLY TOWNSHIP

102 Civic Drive o Holly, Michigan 48442 ¢ Phone (248) 634-9331 e Fax (248) 634-5482

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL LAND USE |

Instructions to Applicant: For Township Use Only:

Answer each question completely. Please Date Received:

read the additional instructions provided File No.:

for this application. Incomplete submittals Administrative Fee Paid:
will not be processed. Escrow Fee Paid:

[ 1) Applicant Information:

Name: Michigan Renaissance Festival (Chip Schultz General Manager)
Address: 12600 Dixie Hwy :
City: Holly State: ~ Mi Zip: 48442
Phone: (Home) (Office) 634-5552 (Fax)
Interest:

| 2) All Parties of Interest (Title Holder, Contract Purchaser, Partners): _J
Name: James Peterson
Address: 1244 Canterbury Rd
City: Shakopee State: ~ MN Zip: 55379
Phone: (Home) (Office) 9524457361  (Fax)
Interest:

(If the applicant/petitioner is not the owner of record, a notarized letter of authority or
Power of Attorney musi be included as pari of this application)

Il

| 3) General Property Information and Description:

General Location: 12600 Dixie Hwy
Acreage: 300+
Sidwell Number:

Property is located west off of Dixie Hwy, south of

Legal Description:
Lahring Rd.

(Aitach metes and bounds description where applicable)

Site Plan Application X e

Page 1 of 2



Submitted: Yes No

4) Zoning;: J

Current Zoning;

| 5) Special Land Use Requested: J

To conduct owr annual 7 weekend Renaissance IFestival firom 9am until 7pm

Renaissance Festival weekends and Labor Day
August 16, 17, 23, 24, 30, 31, Sept 1, 6, 7, 13, 14, 20, 21, 26, 27, and 28th

Hollydazzle tentative dates: November 28, 29, 30 December 5, 6, 7, 12, 13, 14, 20,
21,22,23,24,26,27, 28,29, 30, and 31st

| 6) Signature: |

I, the undersigned, state that the foregoing answers herein contained and the
information herewith submitted are in all respects true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief. Thereby grant permission for members of the Township
Board of Trustees, Township Planning Commission and the Township’ s Zoning
Administrator, Township consultanjs, or other Township agents or employees, to

- the lI:}ove descritied properfy for the purposes of gathering informatiop related
[ icgtiol

) - 77 Signature of Applicant Date

Instructions to Applicant:

1)

2)

3)
4)

All applications must be accompanied by a site plan prepared in accordance with Chapter 32
Anticle 2 of the Holly Township Code of Ordinances.

For a special use application to be considered, fourteen (14) copies of the application, site
plan and legal description must be submitted four (4) weeks prior to a regularly scheduled
Planning Conunission meeting.

Applications must be submitted with the application fees as set by resolution “Res 2008-02”",

The Township Planning Commission will review the proposed use in terms of the standards
stated within Chapter 32 Article 2. The applicant may provide a narrative describing the
conformance of the proposed special use to the Holly Township Code of Ordinances,
particularly in response to the Basis of Determinations set forth in Section 32-33(c).

Page 2 of 2



HOLLY TOWNSHIP

102 Civic Drive o Holly, Michigan 48442 e Phone (248) 634-9331 o Fax (248) 634-5482

APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW |

Instructions to Applicant; TIfor Township Use Only:
Answer each question completely. Please Date Received:

read the additional instructions provided File No.:

for this application. Incomplete _ Administrative Fee Paid:
submittals will not be processed. Escrow Fee Paid:

I 1) Applicant: j
Name: Michigan Renaissance Festival (Chip Schultz General Manager)
Address: 12600 Dixie Hwy
City: Holly State: _MI Zip: 48442
Phone: (Home). (Office) 6345552 (Fax)

Interest:

| 2) All Parties of Interest (Title Holder, Coniract Purchaser, Partners): J
Name: James Peterson
Address: 1244 S. Canterbury Rd
City: - Shakopee State: _Mn Zip: 55379
Phone: (Home) (Office) 952445736 (Fax)

|
Interest:

(If the applicant/petilioner is 1ol the owner of record, a notarized letter of authority or
Power of Atforney musi be included as part of this application)

3) Designer: (Registered Engineer, Architect, Surveyor, Landscape Architect or
Planner)
Name: Rowe Engineering
Address: 540 S. Saginaw St
City: Flint State: MI Zip: 48502
Phone: (Home) (Office) 810341750 (Fax)
0
Interest:

Page 1 of 3



| 4) General Property Information and Deseription: J

General Location: 12600 Dixie Hwy Holly Mi 48442
Acreage: 300+
Sidwell Number:

Legal Description:

(Attach metes and bounds description where applicable)

Site Plan Attached: Yes No

| 5) Zoning: ]

Current Zoning:

| 6) Proposed and Intended Use:

Renaissance Festival weekends and Labor Day
August 16, 17, 23, 24, 30, 31, Sept 1, 6, 7, 13, 14, 20, 21, 26, 27, and 28th

Hollydazzle tentative dates: November 28, 29, 30 December 5, 6,7, 12, 13, 14, 20,
21,22, 23, 24,26,27, 28, 29, 30, and 31st

Hours of operation are from 9am-7pm

Construction Trailer or
Mobile Office on site: Yes No

Requested Location:

| 7) Signature: —l

1, the undersigned, state that the foregoing answers herein contained and the
information herewith submitted are in all respects true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief, T hereby grant permission for members of the Township
Board of Trustees, Township Planning Commission and the Township’ s Zoning
Administrator, Township consultants, or other Township agents or employees, to

entegthe ghove dgsori operty f01 the purposes of gathering information related
tothy icali /- /
e 53/
e LN V4

Signature of Applicant Date

=7
o
=
=
=

Instructions to Applicant:

Page 2 of 3



12600 Dixie Hwy, Holly MI 48442
248.634.5552
info@michrenfest.com

2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival

The Michigan Renaissance Festivalis a long-standing event that brings you the adventure, exg;}:n;er_;';;rﬁ?tdo e
spirit of the Renaissance! Travel back in time as you step into the b:eautaful landscape of. ourvi af%s .as "
exploits of Jousting Knights on thundering steeds. Roam over 150 village shoppes for Un'g”e c:;sic -
artisans demonstrate period skills like blacksmithing and woodworking. Delight in comedy, music, .

more on our 17 stages of non-stop entertainment!

2025 Themed Weekends:

Weekend 1: Pirates & Pups - Sat. Aug 16" & Sun, Aug 17"
Weekend 2: Highland Fling - Sat. Aug 23" & Sun. Aug 24" )
Weekend 3: Viking Invasion - Sat. Aug 30", Sun. Aug 31st & Mon. Se;::lt 1
Weekend 4: Once Upon a Time (proposed) - Sat. Sept 6™ & Sun. S]ept ¥
Weekend 5: Irish Bash (proposed) - Sat. Sept 13" & Sun. Sept 14"
Weekend 6: Facebook Poll - Sat. Sept 20" & Sun. Sept 21*
Weekend 7: Festival Friday — Fri. Sept 26"

Weekend 7: Sweet Ending - Sat. Sept 27" & Sun. Sept 28"

Daily Royal Events: (these events happen every
day of the festival)

Feast of Fantasy

Pub Crawl

Joust Brunch

King’s Happy Hour

Whiskey Tastings

Hawk Walk

Birds of Prey

The Quest

On Site Office Address:
12600 Dixie Hwy, Holly, Ml 48442

lollyDazzle light show:

lovember: 28" 29" and 30" ., 33
)ecember 51h G(h 71]1 12nh 13“-’ 14th, 191h Zolh, 21:-1, 22|nl, 23:d, 24111’ 26”', 27lh 28”‘, 29‘1 ] 30:1 ] and 31%






b/ ﬂ'ﬂf?ﬁ@;ﬂ/

Renmsssmmee Fostival

et Inin

12000 Dixie Highway » Holly, MEABAA2 = Phone (BOMBOT ABAG * fax (2ABDAL TAH)

2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival

Special Land Use Permit

Dust Control:

The Renaissance Festival has contracted with Sunbelt rentals to have on site a
500-gallon water trailer. Festival will monitor the weather and dryness of the
roads in and around the site. If needed Festival will water the areas of need no

later than Friday evening prior to a festival show day.

Trash Receptacles:

This year the festival has contracted 2 separate non-profit organizations to
monitor trash collections in their assigned areas of the festival grounds. Festival
will also be increasing the number of trash receptacles around the festival

grounds.

Road Commission Signs:

The permit process for these signs takes place in late June or early July at their
request.

Health Department Permits:

Health Department inspections and licensing occurs the opening day of festival
and again every two weeks.






12600 Dixie Hwy, Holly Ml 48433
248.634.5552
info@michrenfest.com

Michigan Renaissance Festival
On-going Holly Township projects

Karin,
As the first week of May comes to a close, | would like to share with you the strides that the festival is making and

taking to keep up with the on-going projects here on-site. | hope you find this information to be helpful.

Finished Projects:
0 100 gates demoed
0 300 gates demoed
o 100 area front demoed
0 700 area front demoed
0 700 gates demoed
0 700 area shrubs and trees cleaned up
o Received a bid for electrical upgrades
o Ordered and received new metal ash cans
o Removed dead trees from site
o Secured General contractor for festival items.
Current projects:
o Due to Weather outside work was limited.
o Festival staff is currently reaching out to Crafters to check on status of work.
o Grease traps have been ordered
o Currently have contractors for crafters on site preparing to start roofing projects and other need repairs.
o Power washing kitchen floors
o Demoing and replacing sheeting where needed.
o Seeking Mechanical Contractor
o Working on 400 food areas support wall
o Continued cleaning of leaves, fallen, and debris.
o Waiting on material for spraying of fire-retardant material.
Projects to finish by June 1st.
0 100 Area Roof
o Removing 700 area appliances
0 100 Area gate
o Move soup cooker to new booth
o Replace sheeting on Battle Axe Pub
o Replace speakeasy deck railing
o Trim wall sheeting on First Aid

This list is not all inclusive and can change due to weather, material availability, and manpower.

General Manager

Michigan Renaissance Festival

Sincerely,






Karin,

Michigan Renaissance Festival

On-going Holly Township projects as of 4/29/25

| would like to share with you the strides that the festival is making and taking to keep up
with the on-going projects here on-site. | hope you find this information to be helpful.

Finished Projects:

O

o 0 0O 0O 0O

Due to on-going weather conditions some projects had to be put on hold.
Entire site has been cleaned up of fallen debris, leaves, and garbage.
Bids on large trees to be cut down.

700 Area appliances have been removed.

First aid updated.

Soup cooker moved in 400.

Current projects:

O

cC OO0 0 o0

Festival staff is recalling non-compliant crafters to check on status of work.
On-going power washing kitchen floors

New First Aid building being modified.

Ripping off of 100 roof to start roofing next week.

Gates ordered for 100 and 700 areas.

Festival food areas getting painted inside and out.

Crafter projects:

o]
o]

Contact has been made with 47 out of the 62 non-compliance crafters.
Messages have been left with those who did not answer.

o Two more roofs were completed this week.

Projects to finish by June 1%,

@]

O
o]
o}

100 Area Roof (First week of June will be completed)

100 Area gate
Replace sheeting on Battle Axe Pub
Replace speakeasy deck railing.

This listis not all inclusive and can change due to weather, material availability, and

manpower.

Thank you

Chip Schultz

General Manager
Michigan Renaissance Festival






12600 Dixie Hwy.

'Mlchlgan ey Holly, MI 48433 © 248.634.5552
o) Aug 17% thru Sep 29%

Renaisgance i I Weekends - Sat & Sun
TeSthal ‘ Open Labor Day Sept. 214

Rain or Shine

April 30, 2025

Alexis Farrel, Senior Planner (McKenna)
Holly Township Clerk

Holly Township Building Dept

NOCFA

Chip Schultz
General Manager
Michigan Renaissance Festival

Re: Special Land Use Permit
Alexis,

Thank you for taking the time to speak with me regarding the Michigan Renaissance Festival and the above-
referenced Special Land Use Permit.

Pursuant to your request, | am writing this letter on behalf of Jim Peterson and the senior management team of the
Michigan Renaissance Festival, affirming our commitment to working with Holly Township to address various
concerns. We have been diligently addressing the issues presented to us by both Building Inspector Scott Herzberg

and Fire Marshal Doug Smith,

We previously presented a detailed work plan and targeted timeline for each issue. Attached to this letter is a copy
of the plan, including status updates. Upon review, you will note that some projects have been completed, and
other projects have begun. The Michigan Renaissance Festival does take these concerns seriously and we will
continue to keep the Township and Fire Department up to date with on-going progress.

It is the intention of the Michigan Renaissance Festival to have all issues scheduled to be completed timely. Itis of
course probable that some tasks will be completed both earlier and later than the target completion date. The
Michigan Renaissance Festival is committed to have all projects completed prior to August 1, 2026, as agreed to by
the parties. The only departure from this date would be contingent upon the agreement of all parties.

Alexis, please let me know if you need additional information, and/or if you think it advisable if | attend any

meeting.

Thank you for your time.

Chip Schultz

General Manager

Michigan Renaissance Festival

MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL




12600 Dixle Hwy.

Holly, M1 48433 @ 248.634.5552
Aug 17t thru Sep 29t
Weekends - Sat & Sun

Open Lahor Day Sept, 2nd
Rain or Shine

‘Michigan
“Renaissance
“Festival

Holly Township/NOCFA updated list: as of 4/30/2025

Completed:

300 Food gate

Fire retardant plywood on ceiling in 100 soda booth

Castle ceiling tiles

Removed stairs behind Bloody Mary Pub

Removed stairs to the Red Lion Pub

Cut back 25 feet of tall grass and debris behind vendor booths.

Covered electrical outlet boxes.

Re hung all the electrical conduit and cleaned up the turkey shack.

Completed the electrical upgrade to the wedding and wine tents.

Currently working on:

Demo of 100 gate

Demo of 300 gate

Demo front of 100 and 700 food areas

Replacing wall sheeting where needed

Vendors are currently contracting with Gold Metal Roofing to pull permits and replace their roofing.

Festival is contacting all vendors who are in violation to remind them of the letter that was sent out, and to geta
projected start and finish dates.

Purchasing of metal grease traps for deep fryers and griddles

Purchasing of mop buckets for cleanup

Purchasing of rubber mats for area of grease (easier cleanup)

MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL



12600 Dixfe Hwy.

Nichigan SOS Holly, MI 48433 @ 248.634.5552
Aug 17t thru Sep 29%

Renais§a nce ..::' ’ : Weekends - Sat & Sun
Tes tlval Open Lahor Day Sept, 2nd

Rain or Shine
Purchasing and installing new fryer basket brackets, to hang baskets.

Purchasing of Metal ash cans

Creating a policy and procedure for the keeping of food areas clean and free of debris.

Contracting of fire spray of vendor booths (have a copy of bid)
Meeting with Oshourne Electrical (Next week) to seek bids on updating needed electrical areas.

Have a contractor who will be pulling permits for Festival Roofs and Plumbing projects. Will be meeting with him
next week to discuss projects.

Seeking a mechanical contractor to replace the CSST lines.
Seeking a sponsor to replace the joust field dais.
Power washing of area kitchens and castle floors

Projected prolects:

100 food area roofs 7/1/25

700 food area roofs 8/1/25

600 food area roofs 9/1/25

100 Gate 7/1/25

300 Gate 8/1/25

700 Gate 8/1/25

Removing 700 area appliances 8/1/25

Moving soup cooker in 400 to under a hood 8/1/25

Painting of Kitchen and castle floors 8/1/25

MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL







l ®
ACORD
S—Z

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
03/17/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANGE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT — Kim Rowe
i PHONE Z FAX %
AssuredPartners of Minnesota LLC TN, exy; (651) 287-1161 (A6, No): (651) 644-9137
2685 Long Lake Road E%“F{'Es& kim.rowe@assuredpartners.com
INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
St. Paul MN 55113 msurRer A: Markel Insurance Company 38970
INSURED nsurerp: National Casualty Company 11991
Mid-America Festivals Corporation INSURER C :
1244 Canterbury Road #306 JNSURERD :
INSURERE :
Shakopee MN 55379 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  2024/25 Master REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DCCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR - ADDL|SUBR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WD POLICY NUMBER (fﬁ%%w: u‘.?ﬁhé%% LIMITS
»<| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
l CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) s 300,000
- MED EXP {Any one person) § EXCLUDED
Al Y MKP0000501166401 11/01/2024 | 11/01/2025 | personaLzaoviniugy | s 000,000
| GENLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 5,000,000
ﬁ POLICY El i Loc PRODUCTS - cOMPIOPAGG | s 5:000,000
OTHER: s
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
_Atfauosus LIABILITY {Ea accdent) $ 1,000,000
><| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
I~ | OWNED SCHEDULED
A || AUTos oNLY Gs MKAQ0000501166801 11/01/2024 | 11/01/2025 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| AuTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY {Per accident)
X 19 s
|| uMBrELLALIAB | X<| occur EACH OCCURRENCE s 5,000,000
A || excessuias ALRETIADE MKX0000501166901 11/01/2024 | 11/01/2025 | pcorecate s 5,000,000
DED | Xl RETENTION 5 © :
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER oTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN X! o I = 1,000,000
g (AU SAORICIORINEREECOTIVE NIA 8V-WCC-00000330130-10 12/31/2024 | 12/31/2025 | EL-EACHACCIDENT s 1'000'000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L.DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | § ' .
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE- POLICYLIMIT |§ Y
Liquor-Occurr/Agg Limits $1M/IS2M
Liquor Liability J g.;g.
A | Sexual Abuse or Sexual Molestation MKP0000501166401 11/01/2024 | 11/01/2025 |Abuse-Ea/Agg Limils $1M/$2M

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

RE Michigan Renaissance Festival
Holly Township and the North Oakland County Fire Authority (NOCFA) are Additional Insureds respects General Liability per written contract or agreement

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Holly Township
102 Civic Drive

Holly
|

Ml 48440

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVEREDIN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Brisn L Lot

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Additional Named Insureds

Other Named Insureds

Castle Kitchens Corporation (FOOD PROGRAM)

Castle) dba Minnesota Renaissance Festival (FOOD PR

dba Minnesota Renaissance Festival

dba Trail of Terror

Festival Grog, Inc. DBA Festival Grogs

Festivals Incorporated

Festivals) dba Bay Area Renaissance Festival

Kansas City Renaissance Festival Corporation

Kansas) dba Kansas City Renaissance Festival

MAFBV Center, LLC

Michigan Renaissance Festival Corporation

Michigan) dba Michigan Renaissance Festival

Scott County Ventures, LLC

St. Louis Renaissance Festival

C Corporation, Insured Multiple Names

Doing Business As

Doing Business As

Doing Business As

Additional Hamed Insured

C Corporation, Insured Multiple Names

C Corporation, Insured Multiple Names

Doing Business As

Limited Liability Company, Additional Named Insured

C Corporation, Insured Multiple Names

Doing Business As

Limited Liability Company, Additional Named Insured

Doing Business As

OFAPPINF (02/2007)

COPYRIGHT 2007, AMS SERVICES INC




Michigan Renaissance Festival
ATTENDANCE HISTORY
2024 2023 2022 2021 2019
Week 1: Sat 9,571 11,423 9,439 5,456 6,714
' Sun 8,281 8,740 5,116 5,009 5,107
Total 17,852 20,163 14,555 10,465 11,821
Week 2: Sat 15,045 12,447 14,143 6,352 15571
Sun 9,639 11,872 10,387 6,040 11,904
Total 24,684 24,319 24,530 12,392 27,475
Week 3: Sat 19,180 19,296 15,443 15,901 17,647
Sun 20,529 14,384 19,067 15,573 12,009
Mon 16,161 8,686 13,260 1,982 11,160
Total 55,870 42,366 47,770 43,386 40,816
Sat/Sun 39,709 33,680 34,510 31,474 29,656
Week 4. Sat 20,517 19,196 17,631 15,545 = 14,229
Sun 18,448 16,434 9,951 12,248 15,485
Total 38,965 35,630 27,582 27,793 29,714
Week 5: Fri
Sat 26,121 25,627 21,957 20,652 19,826
Sun 18,488 11,857 18,850 21,490 15,702
Total 44,609 37,484 40,807 42,142 35,528
Week 6: Fri -
Sat 21,551 23,419 20,780 13,306 20,270
Sun 19,764 21,087 14,847 19,361 15,688
Total 41,315 44,506 35,627 32,667 35,958
Week 7: Fri 11,037 9,688 7,304 7,196 5,860
Sat 18,742 22,187 26,074 21,246 14,773
Sun 16,390 17,684 22,978 10,157 14,438
Total 46,169 49,559 56,356 38,599 35,071
Sat/Sun 39,871 49,052 31,403 29,211
YTD 269,464 254,027 247,227 207,444 216,383
4 4 3 d

Pagelofl







Page 1 of 1

FI\EI\I'I'EEEj =
PCi: 0237 SUNBELT RENTALS, INC.
ﬁ%?ﬁf’wfﬁf?’:’;;)?fjl\g? ;‘VE Salesman: 023716 MARZEC, JASON (237)
248-348-7270 Typed By: MSPORDER
Job Sile: QUOTE
MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL
12600 DIXIE HYrY TR
HOLLY, M| 48442 8416
Contract #.. 166380523
Ciét: 952-445-7361 Jit: 952-445-7361 Contract dt. 3/13/25
Date out.... 3/24/25 8:00 AM
Cuslomer: 500282 Est return.. 4/21/25 8:00 AM
MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL e D
1244 S, CANTERBURY RD STE 306 ob No...... 11- MICHIGAN RENAISS
SHAKOPEE, MN 55379 P.O. #...... NA
Ordered By.. PARKER, TJ
NET 30
QTY EQUIPMENT # Min Day Week 4 Veek Amount
1.00 WATER TRAILER 500 GALLON ¥/ PU 156.00 156,00 456.00 924.00 924,00
0240190
SALES ITEMS:
Oty Item number Unit Price
1 ENVIRONMENTAL EA 18.010 18.01
2133XXX000 ENVIRON/HAZMAT/DISPOSAL FEE
1 MIHERSPC0237B EA 18.480 18.48
MI 2% HEAVY EQUIPMENT SURCHARGE
RENTAL PROTECTION PLAN 138.60
Sub-total: 1099.09
Tax: 64.84
Total: 1163.93

All amounts are in USD

IETHE EQUIPHENTIDOES HOT\WORK ih
PROPERLY; NOTIEY.THE OFFICE ATIONCE

- The tolal charges are a
n estimate based on the estimaled rental period and other Infermatlon

_ ggggmm:: iissumes all fisks assoclaled wih [he Equipment dun’gpelha Renlal Period, Including Injury
- {7 4stomerIs responsibie for and shall only pemnit properly Iraincd, Authorized [ndhviduals (o Use the Equipmen

Cumquunpmm?ln does nol operale propeity, Is not sutable for Customer's Intended uss, does not have operal
Eustomer shall not use the Equipment and shall confact Sunbell inmediale
lnuaﬁ,‘“m"},‘“* or using dam 'of maliunctioning Equipment may resull In serious bodily Injury or death
R bk unbelt Entilles for all clalms or damages as a result of misuse or use of dam ed or malfunclionl
Indemmléﬁcm‘w' read, understands and agrees lo Lhe eslimated charges and all th:%erms on this page
W n Seclion 8 and Ewvironmental Fee In Sectlon 16, which can also be found at wyiw,sunbeltre
7. cdat.wnbeﬂr nla1$corn15.lgréha e,

ontact SUNbatt {8 fequest plekup of Equipment, reta

o Fick-Up Humber given by Sunbell

g, cust%iffwglm?s s right to a Jury trfal | disput 1 forth | Sedln mlo 1
¢ n an e as s n
9. At the election of Sunbelt or Customer, CUSI);TIH agrees (o submit every

{Customer Inllals)

Customieris declining Rental Profection Plan {see reverse side for detalls)

koA AW
llliilillhnlaaaaaa‘annﬂi—qjllilllllllliaal.lallnltnilailllllill“"““"""

MULTIPLE SHI
OVERTINE RATES MAY/APPLY,

vided by Customer.
i andwdama o lo pe

n 19.
dispute to arbitralion and walves any right to bring a class actlon as set forth In Sectlon 20.

blill‘tlll.lil.l!ll!lillillllll.l.ll
a

ZCUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
| REFUELINGDAMAGES AND REPAIRS

FISIOR

rsons, property and the Equipment.

!fpg and safety Instructions of Customer has amy questlons regarding usa of the Equipment,
tomer (i) assumes all fisk assoclated thereunder, and (I

].! Inzhuding Release and

on Is avallable al
and will be responsible for Equipment untll actuallyretrieved by Sunbeil.

and Customer agrees Lthat Cu
ng Equlgmenl.
us all sectlions on the reverse side ol this Conlract " Sections’

nlals.com/rentalcontract. * Delivery/Fickup Surcharge fee explana

Date

Dale Name Printed

Customer Signature

Delivered By
FORYSS (Rav 02/28122)

www.sunbellrentals.com



SUMBELT REHTALG TERLS AKD CONDIMONS

1) DEFIRITIONS, ‘Autticized Indd 05" er e Broc e dd s Bl Cudese de ey o e s lase B2 Eqipr s, vha
sl be poegedy kired ba ues Ve Eqizmend, d ke d 18 yems obd erbe by a3 dn_'j-:rl,rhh{ue. l-‘ig‘..‘m gy wviz—rd‘\'rdu
b uencedmyduy, aeckd), pslnces t ohalie bapahed Cutomar 1 Mertled st e dss oy o your negreserl s, a s,
oK, h'.\.;i:,‘m 2y gring s Corbrad e yoor befel Endcomadsl Stoviens Chge' s thaps duted h Secten (1.
Ectrmen !su [ET | aTLe aanvice s berifad on the dhis o prod 2ed, Lot s i ol ieplece=aels, tipais, 1d8Ears, etshmanls
misces oy ed ol fubre Equipreen reded Trsdict” Lu wy [, ced i, Wl atd?end, castnly, bs vardzlom, oy, deshe damsge by
perin :r'm-;«*.r, i d by avy parsen o etdy il pgeans b hae excutedinceoredian ph Be Eqlmanl Lol reans Bhe Eqdprert s
n‘f.w dolen Iy l;ct-‘n.h Uit o Customarls uoble lo recovy e a padod of ) dipx T kb Elimtds (i raddvae o
B m_dx: dthe oo bl relwing to the Eqimend, plus iy ad= ridrative ftes ad [ 15U TR "rems nd ovehn 8 hous par
drg 4 h.x.u;_u;-.d ad 10 beurs mary baaeed parkd, roddsd Bl datie AR ke (0% ad Fgle I W be 200% d e terld chage
Bl whhor nee Y “oaw o ddedubon coms'da ed rpessasd'e e wquipran rertd Indusdry for Ove
S"A'}I.'ls. Taif ey Subay o Cudemw and b bher bath e Fe Pases’ * 13 B rundir Custermar oMans Beo Sunkedt
.‘;”C’“J Vit Cuderier's ¢all > ek Lp Eqpr el Recksl Pedof son=erces vhenthe Equpaintls dehared to Cudam ur i the Ste Addess
teatrungutl te Eqdpv:rllu 1eiumad s B Stre o pded 1p by SUrt dng receal busaess b, peod 584 Cuden e has dibaredss
e Fedwhie Cotract B2P" Is Bt revtd protechon pan deserdadin Section 10 She Addess’ s e bocafon B Cuslorar rejve sacds e
Eqimerd v L4 Irxde:l drig the Redd Perid MetZad eafer “$lae’ bs 152 Sunbed keaizn VeriFad paty, Tkl St pd s
oLAed conparies, B g ofean, Caadus, EIpy s md ajuts TTalte gy Data’ s dada celeded whhn e Eqipaint er via
ot (el | Whe Equipr b, i padom v, I ien, of gerd ve. Traapolation Suchags’ls o tharpe IRended by debey awi2e nge of
Verspedafon aperces (both deedd and bk ed), wiich e retalnys Ly teceaned by o baepodafion thagas
TIRLS, Cudoars ereosfen o ts Cerrad o LY paaieicen of the Eqdp= et (ahichaver ceeurs e} s\ ke dremed
pectplnte of Be Lot heien For Uiy and e pad and Rbue cordids bebhe o Sunbed e Culorsay W Cudermte's reeel of SurdeY's
Eqdment vﬂ;r Prs codyede Curlazer revis the Eqdpr ed b Swnde gt b Bis Cortract nhithls o bus baase. The Eqipret (ajls
o thall remiy B pereensl pregarty of Surbey () shal et be 8Sed by cther progerty, Culomat ool pad plede o enautar By
Eqdpmethiyr A
b - PERLYTTED USE. Cuslizer ayees eod navards thd (o) Sk X hos ro cortrel ear e paner by which the Eqdment is
eprded drmbe Perdd Petsd by Cudir o iy thid party el Cude zer bplaily o el ey pris, () phr b exchse mh:e.\..ml:
Surbel, Culimsr o8 beped e Eqip=srd b cof B L Eqipmenl ks h good condfon wibed ednly, teah¥e decals me en be
Eqdputrd, mitse Ee.l]_,nd I nlbfs fos Cudinirs i endeduse, () Cudom i has aeceis b3 and indras B epaatoy o A%ty st
ord vl cperddy G Eqrpmert in eeccdonce v2d tha anfechre's nenabans rdwth eptcatie s ey equiprart {Q sy pyeni )i
b2 S1e Addens ks mrterzed b pecepd dedvuey o Dz Equaeinl (axi T Cudoner 1equedy, Qustarss b Eories Surtedt by Weve b Eqipred
o PaSia Mimmjlt-.q.ke-.\u(_drfmnm-_'m.m Cudrog ih ke afad iy dop ues ead roby b T te Egin il dosyed,
Lnﬂl'L duate] pinEoing waming bys cane ¢, Irdxiigen reded wih s2aae, Led, o § avy inoiend oars () Cusdazer hu
recaled Foo Sut-g! al Hl'u-r\_t‘-m meded of 1eques'ed regardy Ba gt of Be Egdpast, (9 Surdel 15 red respans™e fir grovidy
eprer of @ bain rles cul?ru S Eealy reque s nwtng and Sundel s ees b predds such bering (Crdomer bing raapinitls
b dtanal Ermb.tbrn-.u-desm B B 1o Equipmarts e:), (1) Surbed b nol respanshe fie Cuetomer's b 3820 1 provde repondls
sceunsmadatas) b my (dratded) Altherzed InFAnl(s); [ eny ABoriee dIndd dun's shilute axd eperde the Equipmert, howaves Cualerar
b raponadie fx l.‘r Eqdyment l‘h! L5 ute deny B Rerdsd Pectod reaxd s of e 1ser; O e Eqda et dhol ke bied pd noivzned b a
r.ae"«.l rramer, Wi e Eqdom erl's copac by e ncomplarce vih bl apfeals Lavs, e s, o2 wed at ol ¢ erefng nd s ety s £
provdded on, b r e e Equprent md ol mppletle [ederd, stols ad bocd fans, parvds and Teense, el g b ned E=2ed 1, OSHA 2ad
.FJ)_.-\uleme-x ()0 Equprart shaYbe lepd ina srne boasfon () Customar chol prod 2 Surdal rih iarzle mid eo-pie Hom 20
eHchSunbalrefas pan b prodde the appreprals Eqipmar 1 Cuslys i,
9 _ FROMIBITED USE. Cusorar ghal rol (2) aler ur w2t up any e dls o indyia oy B Eqdr= ord, fecvore any eparatng tr
sty equpTatar Fenetiin or s e Lcg e wih e Bquiznit, (1) atsicn Le rigHts nde B Corba {() move Bhe Egiprien fen the S22
Addess wthod Surdals witen coneart (d) Lse Ba Eqip=2tin g gl e, F2d, inafuirped o dbusve panver o () putielze use of e
ExJantrt bn ey rrver (vxhydng, wihad ELeion, i, aufofand o gechen’s); o ) aboa B vie of 62 Equiamedd by anoe ofes Ban
Febirzedindladd (Codomar ed maeding thd (e Equpmerd cayte dmguous Fuse d i gregedy o by riralaad pfes)
5) PAMTERANCE. Cudom o shal parfr o r¢ufra cdndenaryze en he Equzredd, ndArgiofine hpxlics mdoeinaxs
d K‘g 203 ) InEl, gredse, corg ead Puld oyvlara, balinies, Destrachs 0tig edges, md daaring I meerdume wih e manfechreds
rpecheations, o4 bfcatie AN et ma- var e wipsn ngy oy e pedored by Surdal o ks agerls, bul SUrded hs ro 1epeast Ry d g
bt Relal Pesdd o keg ad @ pedern oy pertence o repuis trieis Cudfomar requeds a veniee cal T Surk e} delermiras thal repain LB
Eqimect mre r.u&i_cn‘wbm Ordnary Wear and Tes, Customer chal pay B ful reps thrgee, e30%3ndd fren, T oy, o rentsl of B
Eglment ulibe (paic e tergteed WEqiome s stdenw demsjedh excess ol 3% L5 Eql; =eTs FL, Cuetor b vill be 1 3 perse
£ f"c 1A/ o be Eqlpcent, noudng sifes Loy, 23 sppfeetfe Sunt e ha B g la g icL e Equpmert whs i icaled Cuales s has b
afriylo ardbarely orarts Surdad sl €8 a3ady [ Ryt loenter Fe fyved beafon o Be Eqlosin (B4 pupsies sl k£ heren Surd 2y
Shed b fe1g iralls for repais nttded betare of Ondrory Wear s Tear, Cusboreer ayees bl repoir or reginienend of te Equipnidt b
Customer's £3Leive 1as edy For SLrbad's breach o (45 Secen Hota b staebng Suels eniee te=x>=er, 7 Cude=ar brthes MsCuidnad,
Surted shadbe ns ctdpfon 1 oo Be Rerld Peted commarce g oo 1o et eqipmad b Cod et Cudeny o ks et eg s
b pirg fee mch thgen
6 QUSTOLER LWDLITY. OURR:D THE RENTAL FERIOD, CUSTOLER ASSULES ALL REK ASSOCWTED Vi TIE
FOSSESSION, CONTROL OR USE OF THE EQUFLENT, NCLUONG BUT KOT LEATED TO, FERSOMAL HJURY, DEATH, RENTAL
CHAROES, THEFT, LOSSES, DALW OES AKD DESTRUCTION, INCLUDNIO CUSTOLER TRAKSFORTATION, LOAD O AKD UNLOATING,
MEITHER ORNKOTTHE FLBIOL!R B AT FAULT, A%y minsdr, Cuelomar chal (&) ims rd ely nofy Surbe, P pelie, Trecessay, md
Cuslemes’s i'utjr Tt {t) 1tare and maintan e Eqlpmed ond tye mngundg presses n Fe c2nfen edding al Be Ev4 o swch
neenl Untl Surtalu s agerls bnestodle; (£) Evedately nbroegias of o polee er clhar BN patyrports o SunbeX ad {4 3 arpteatis,
[}

Py Sunbel, b edEialy ches nms o P e rertal rate for Eq et ut W repas mre cerdded o Equ e reglazed s her
T2 ALY of (Y 2 I dhorges d rieovsy ad repsis of dsaged Eqdprend Azened recld thorge i red be 2pted ) Bt e am ol
Scrbad ghalhoe e emed e dght, bul i ey 1o reclim ary Equion et ol vvd b iy ks v,
l?ssrf KO WARRAHTIES, SUXBELT IS CLAILS ALL REFRESENTATIONS AKD WARRANTES, EYPRESS OR LIPLIED, ViTH
PMTK:?J‘HRO THE EQUIPLENT, [TS DURABILITY, CONDITION, LERCHANTABIUTY, KOM-(RIGELIENT, OR FTTRESS FOR AWY
diiberpy FURFOSE CUSTOLER ACKNOVLEDGES ACCEPTANCE OF THE EQUPLENT ON AN *AS 5, WHERE 15" BASS, WITH “ALL
L 1O FATHOUTAWT RECQURS EVALATS DEVER AGARSTEUNBELT ENTITIES, CUSTOUER ASSULES ALLRISKS ASSOCIATED
VT THE EQUALENT AKD RELEASES SUKBELT ENTITES FROU ALL LWGLIMES AXD DARACES (HOLUDNG LOST FROFITS,
:\Eli'EDH.IL FLARY, AHD SPECUL, HODENTAL AKO CONSEGUENTIAL DAVAGES, EVEM IF AUYEED OF THE FOSSBILITY OF SUCH
MAIAOES) I AT YOAY COIIECTED ¥TH THE EQUP LENT, ITS INSTALLATION, OFERATION OR USE OR AWY DEFECT OR FARUSE
THEREQF, A BREACH OF SUNBELTS OBLIGATIONS HEREH OR ERROFS OR PUACCURACIES B RFORLIATION DBTAIED FROU
CUSTOHER 0R THRD PARTIES, UFON YAECH S UNBELT REUES; PROYIDED HOWEVER, IF CUSTOMER IS A CONSULER UKDER
AFPLICABLE LAYZ, THEH HO CONSEQUENTIAL DALAGES LENTWTION OF {JURES TO FERSONS SHALL APPLY,
g-l RELEASE AND DXDEISOFICATION. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT FERMITTEOD BY LAY/, CUSTOMER E{DELEUAES,
.UHE(%?E% J;Dlm SUNBELT ENTIMES HARLILESS AKD AT SUHBELTS REQUEST, DEFENUS SUNBELT EHTITES (WITH COUNSEL
AVTORITET I SUNBELT). FROLI AKO AGAEST ALL LIABIUTES, CLAIIS, LOSSES, DAUAQES, AHD EXPERSES (HCLUOUIO
PROPERTY Hjl:'ﬁ.’\?ﬂ LEGAL FEES AD XPEWSES) HOWEVER ARSSAI0 OR BICURRED, RELATED TD ANY DICKOENT, DALAGE TO
RiﬂULAT){;H Al OR DEATH OF ANY FERSON, CONTALATON OR ALLEGED CONTAMMATION, OR VIOLATION OF LAY OR
i CASED BY OR COMNECTED YATH TIE (4) ACCESS, USE, POSSESSION OR CONTROL OF THE EQURLIENT BY
OMER OR XY THHRO PARTY THAT CUS TOLIER DREPLCTLY OR DFPLICTLY PERLITS TO ACCESS, USE, POSSESS OR CONTROL
THE EQUIPRLENT DURMO THE RENTAL PERIOD OR {t) EREACH OF TH'S COMTRACT, YYHETHER OR HOT CAUSED H PART BY THE
:J}ﬂgigﬂ'rk&i NE HEGLIGEKCE OR DTHER FAULT OF AHY FARTY ZHDE12[FIED HEREVI AKO ANY OF TVE FOREGONO ARS DO 0A
PIoRRERE! ACCORDANCE YATH THE DOCTRINE OF STRICT OR ABSOLUTE LIAEAITY. CUSTOMER ALSO AGREES TO YIAVE (TS
V COUFERSATION RUSUNITY, TO THE EXTENT AFFLICABLE. CUSTOMER'S BDELTITY OBLIGATIONS SHALL SURVNVE ME
DFIRATION OR TERIUHATION OF THS CONTRACT. AY of Cughmsr's inde o ceafin eXpf vt indes ik pra s ol b e i andsevwal
ﬁ) i IfSLH.LHCE.!Jmm Rerdal Pedsd Crefazershal panten b bs ovn &g s, Be ldovirgrni—m reumee covwreags
i ucenet sy Eqizaent for non parsenal iee, gonerd Ty erae of nd b ben $1,000,000 P czeumeee, behdog coverae
f:i' v e’y ertrachd 257 hm.hl'.(lhu T reiaase and ndemn caon claie (erlznedin St B, () For Cuelorersusig Equipra el
<F "lrg Persnd e, poguty nerace saie §25 by o raks b e Eodzran, hm oot el besteqd s e LY Bt d, i’ RPP
;:«. o the 64 o 1tedd pod paid e rir o anglncdend, (o) verdef's compensston lnarace as reqied by by avd () adordTe 1y
arme (adidy ergnbents md (in covuage, axd iimu eddaieaed Rateiil covige), b Be st ezeus gl fth b
aiiton () msp) Tla Eqipaari 1o be teed ¢ myioodvay. Swh g6 val ke pimsy, renterbutry, en an cecunece bags,
tolen o waivu  pbvegtien, name Surded md D azeli a5 m o3 hewed (echedn) an e 30ead heued e e i) and L g payes,
end fredde Tu Suda) o vicehe o bl %) dags poa vt e e Orvelfen tendwid dorge kg et ol enedes b
AT o eabima ks b breach Cudonir thal prods Subst nih (et d bsoave b horrx e etfonles 2 yurdayede's i
;*‘j:’:';ﬂ tre Soverazes 1equired ebive gt 1y g ferkal and y 6= 8 o Surdes regril To e eterd SurkaY Eriles cary g harace,
Sark o rl:fu reapce Wl be consdued e eds bsuace Tre Farmce gured htsen doss nolreleve Cuslorer of fls Teapersbiag
1: nbcation o ke et lgLens povded here'n o for which Qustot oy be Iatfe by lra o eliverelse,
J)W REHTAL PRD]'EGMH FLAW. Cuslormtr's fepal of replateract rrponcity b Stlou § 20d § of His Cotrad Is mod?ed
id); ® RPP, { olued ca be Equipras, af Sunded uhad Ex1 b pceurt Surbed ccleds hom Cuslomer ir e Eqaps bots, dvase o
Yucfon lo e 1324l maunks foe exch pece of Eqdpran, por rch cocubige: () 1070 e P fa LedEqipes, (ph apainind
}5'-’;3 i plece dEqip=ak (b) 10%A ol e 14p 3y chage for bridendd o scoidsntd dage b Ecdpreri ip b a paceun o 4500 pet plece of
E}? P s, (o) thrgts D o cas of §8 far e B Ererepais, 2 (O rothing [ taa terld chorges which nodd cthewis e wcae dring B peviad
:\P?'ED)MH{.AMHJEQJkah!n;upa"tfunp’:r.edh'Su'ﬁe!uL«!Ew‘;ﬂn‘ut»e‘,\:lrf-'se{;rddnimiamhll’:rrq:hj
o " f 1t :-'?( mples 1w Cordlars (¢foed baoa) me 12§9ad md s D sm (Cefned b ) d= End iy The RPP K HOT
:W.CE 2 e HOT preled Cudirmer hom Estitylo Surbe) e oliwrs mfsing el o possesshon, ot o vie o the Equipaerd, ol
::\_rf u.dns;e ll_wi':m t pipsl . THE RFP B A COMTRACTUAL LIODIRCATION OF CUSTOMERS LLABATY. AN of t
h;:\ing Condltns® ruslte riafed fa B RPP end the cenecpindag [y reductzaly iy, () Cudones pcegls C2 RPP n adinrecf
E—:bu m Cuilam e pryy ls%q’te oS 1etal chages i b fee or ke RPP (pls eppicae L ts). (3) Cuaon i A2 comglies whh b
b;!:”"ii Cortred, (h) Cudocnar's accant s curvecd dl the b of e s, Bel, danbe oo dednelon o e Eqdamert, ad ) nont of the
B s Fppy Cudorer muumes e Be\n'on rals, reaning Bl @ ey Ercuaon ccorg, B KPP ¢1¢1 HOT 1rdce B [abXy of Codimer
B kel fee B kag, B dauage o drruckan e netng fom sueh Exdusicn "Exclartenr” shal 2 i, e, darage o drdructon of e
éﬁ_ﬂ;‘t (Adzly Hwﬁ.;:m! mlsuie, [6) ceued by Led Eqipren nalreporied by Cudomtr ba Bt ekt vy 43 bars of diceonry, od
Edataded by nwiden pofce repai (meo sty deeredl Surbe B (6) de 1o Pods, wates vl thanes, wid, 104, eathy.cb o3 ¢4 Ads of
Ood e (D) wecrsserits « Equpmerd fet which Cusimar by rel thaged B RPP fee. THE EXCLUSIONS RELWDE THE LWBAITY OF
CUSTOLER AKD ARE KOT LODIAED BY THE RPP. RPP 15 REFLECTED ON THIIS COHTRACT AS FART OF CUSTOLER'S ESTWATED
%RGES UNLESS CUSTOLER Il..\! ELECTED TO DECUNE FfP DV WRITIXO, FAILS TO PAY THE RPP FEE OR LADE OTHER
&1ﬂhcmum0m_bmnwaat Hetslhtndng sfhing lhe cerrary s Cotrad, Tled Equipmert s ezt ietevared,
Eos retaing M'ﬁhp o e Equip i iegarde 1s of 2y poyraats nede by Cuslrar o Cothe ot barace cempmywihregat b neh
‘t‘ et o ptch Pk o penttAndee, Cudi T g4t b prom gty tebum oy Ege st Tl b rescrnd Sondet ahel be
REiegaedla Curlymefa i's ba tecevne sl any paensn @ efy 1iiding Ty my o, B dimags te destvation o b B fvmerd, Cuderar

thal cog e wiiy esaipr Sunkel all i md precesds artsiag Bon puch b, B8 danspe er destckzn eseate md delve b Sundad
vhideardeunins me reqibed and labe al oiar recess oy slegs 12 ceaure b Sunbel such s, 28 Cusloreds Bpdvse

) REMTAL RATES. Ths sl charged sptofed NS Coryad mes (a) esfmated baged ypin Cudamar’s (epres sddion o Be
esEmded Retdl Portod Mt ed has €01 farled rates beyond he einalad Reld Petod g con ) and dher Hom2Son tonvryed by Cuforer
13 Surba end () r €t EQiprsent’s s [ Ont SHA, Lnfess eharalse noded Weedly £nd wead recled 144 thod rod be prorwled Partd
thges pzoue Arrg Sardes Sindsy vl baidrys Tha rectsd rdes ds redindords mnd Cualomer b resgpons™e (i, ) 8 tonar iles, fees,
Fearses, pressnt and Abre Laes o) &y oher govermracta dhevges based en Custon o5 poas &3 9720 and'yr vie of the Eqlp=en), beldyy
ad$5end [et s o mere ¥ Ona SHY us i (7) ¢ bewry ad plop dhvge s b and Fon B S e, ndud g b ned E26d D ay P hapeefen,
delvery, poiep and surcharpt fees Tuled in iy Cortrect (3) nmdenonce, repairs and tep!scezects 1 the Equpmpd ok prodded haysy (o) 2
deaing {12 ¥ requined, (i) riseetnecos chages, sch ot Tees B ksl begs, RPP, cedl bt Eqip2dl, eztrginy £ibizdion w slae
cpbing () Lel 1sed duing B Rerld Pastsd ad for 1o iing Equipm el a5 desodad belag (1) frsd for vsa of dyed desel bl n oviead
Eqip=ert, e (4) &1 Endreamata Senders Chags (ste g it e {u) Trngpotstn Sudchuge
(s pw prb et g gonfprchyved) The comaniance chags [ oTrcs d dasel foed doe s nat nduds gramerte modts Rel Lo g o charped
el coleds Bese fe2d 15 revee s bom o ks ditrelon

10 FAYLENT. Cuds=er ghalt pay fes Uhye rerisd el Equipmad, soe el Equine el rfedn's ond o) aivr Rers and penvees Herffed
s Cortrad ad o ety amourds dow, vk ey ofsels, InAd, i edvac e o B¢ B o redd, L ass Suntel mpgrovts Cuderad's erenvisd
o wdd oo mppeatin Conmardd (udemarswho e oV far SUnteY's exdended prymed leir s mual oy, naness ponrecsd o
SurbaYs hwste, e by ek theed o ACH Cuslorer mud retfy Sinbed nwaing of any dspded emsunts, belodog oedt cerd chorgen,
A 15 days mher e ecepl of e ineciealcerbracd ¢ Cuder o ol b deased b hve e abdy vt 2e gl b dipde mehersinla A
Suked's dswelin sy wocund vih 8 defnqued balmce riry be pixced e o cash baxs, dpidts py be g fred and B Eqiprel oy be
prdedp yHod polse Due la B dFaty infalng mbol deagas caned bylde pypmert, Cudomer aees Bl agendio chage eqed b tn
lesiar of 1 5% pernonth o e peSTUD e pamitted by Ley shad B2 astesied ¢a ol i ceents, udd pad b AL Cudzzer gl
reshirne Surbed for ol cesls barmed in ealecing ey L2 pagmardy, b 23 ¥et leddin, fareys fes Paymard olany Li= chage dots
red earuie Cuslemsr of any dofad unde BYs Correl Cuslorar dhal poy aive of 15 L exch che pelumed for id of pATeA Endi by
cerphiree Sut el loe s overhe ad far rece1ing eissed peyrent Dip2aLond ey ba refomed eter md aounls a'e prd nbAd CUSTOLER
AQREES THAT ¥ A CREDIT OR DEBIT CARD IS PRESENTED TO PAY FOR CHARGES OR TO GUARANTEE PAYLENT, CUSTOLER
AUTHORIZES SUMEELT 10 CHAROE THE CREDIT OR DEBIT CARD ALL ALXDUNTS SHOWH ON THS COMTRACT AKD CHARGES
SUBSEQUENTLY FICURRED BY CUSTOMER, ICLUDNO BUT ROT LIYTED TO, LOSS OF OA DAMAOE TO THE EQUPLIENT AHD
EXTERSHOH OF THE RENTAL PERIOD. ESectve Anie 1, 2021 ond whase pormited by Lra, Suida mry bpese aquchargs ¢ 2% 0mnicum §9)
Tt aedt ead pagracis enchage ecords THs suthagalind gede b Sutels mothridscoet e for ere @ (o d bavesctors andls
edjed by eadas L b eame praddoms.

19 RETUAH OF EQUIPLIENT, Surit | ey lerr=nad o B Cortract dl ayy Brae, For ey e 20en Tha Eqipmet shal b2 rehme d o
Surtad {ehan raeded for g ecBocs, matensce and ol B end of B2 Rerid Padad) i Ba eama condEea R ras recelad ks Ordnoy Wer
md T snd ket d engheadass patalds md cotaminats Cuslom e wil (ium B Equipr st ol the gnd of B¢ Rertd Pacisd bl will cerfiue
Lo b2 resgere e for nertdl 2o other chyges aler e Rerdsl Padsd 7 e Eqia=ed is nal rebread h B4 con8%n rigared het'n If Suntad
deFared Bt Egipment b3 Cudiry, Cudon i shal naB7 Surba bl e Equipmend I reads o te ped up A B S12 Addess mdctizna
Pl Uptertar, which Peb Up Murbas Cudemu thadd ) eep as prod of e o, provided Cudenes rem s Fbfe o 2y ot o, 8o, dimsalo
o degveen of e Eqipcsad Ut Sorbat corfrms thl e Equipoed s tebumad In e con 5o requined hesen Cueboa e ol rcd ke charged
e rentd charges ptar the dee e PiekUp Hombir ke ghn poodded Cuderar hos dheredie caopiad wh Bis Cobred, N piigs cas e
Surdays ol oy bl s ad Saurdey pid pu e digandenl en g ece Stare boure i Cuslomie Pl ed p Eqiamend, Cudortr sl b
Equip=ail lotha sazs Shoe doriny Bust Shva's nor f bosine s haur U bhe Equipeaad b ned 1esma d by B2 0 f=oted eod of B2 Rerld Pasicd
suir ealy, Culors syees b pay Be gppfeatfs reval e (o1 e EqUipmenl uild fe end of the Rl Pisdid.

1D} FURCHASES. ¥ s Certrad HertFas sy EQuiim o, madedds o oy 1avws Wad s s ba purchased by Cudioay, Sk et
s215 £ Ctewrk puch T b Cudeiza ca m "AS 15, WHERE 37 bas's, vih e fedis and vihedd oy enaafas (o bon mauSdue
varetiy § a7) nconddmnton e Cudoner’s pamet 1o Sunte) of e R4 pedhase plice of e 2oy, Serbad reeis 042 by e L wrild
Cusdtes has pddh A

15} DEFAULT, Custor 24 thel bs o dofasd ¥ Surka) deevs Lea¥ brescure o 7 Cunlorer (2 104 19 fay ums when dos; ()
breeche s 2y Sectin of Bis Cotradt (o) Betores a deblorin @ bninpley precesdeng ords Ho 1 & eip, Ledes prdedton Boa ks oedtas
uredet any uchancy kgfulon, cexes B camy enbsacs, of bes Bs astels wzad by g o, (4 Fas b inore B2 EqUp=ad as 1aqdred,
a eherefue piaces e EQUprent ol risk; (1) Fals 1o rem Equiprand b madaltly upen Surde i desnd o ) L n éa R urder oy ether cortrad
wEh Skt W a Qoo dfpll cnumy, Surted shal have, n e 48220 b ihs e rezedes o 10 o b equty, B gl 1) repossess B
Eqipzert whedt pofid prectds of pricr hokea Cusbemar shad oy o of Sund2 15 tesls, hdudng rearcne¥e cods of coeclon, courd rels,
2orayy md b fees, roured b e e g oy o 28 ighds o te edes haen Sunbed o nol b Fadde doe o seizre o Eqipn o by ety
o paveo i) Aoy CUSTOLER YAANWES ANT RIOHT OF ACTION AGAIST § UNB ELT ENTITIES FOR SUCH REPOSSESSION

15

} CARIHAL YARMPIG. Tha use of s e BT eafon b oblen FQipa el or Be Taure b rebm Eqdprert by B ead d e
RerldPedd o zybe comsiared bl audjed b ticined pyes tefion ed oh Babifty where pom ted pomusd b applietie braa
) EMYROKVENTAL SERVICES CHAROE, To prodle o ¢l mnd pudaietls enyom e, S i s valows naers by
ce=plywith appleaMe endieractd cepusfons, pam el a n2h SUr2eYe con pefices Surb el des bare 8 v rage of inderments (efed
opnces e died mibdrecl) Thase pparees ooy lntbedt tendeet ach mwnsle d g eal, contne bon e o stende of e iy leaTes,
ecquston o e fek oSl eqipmen, aoval ag bba cosls ednrisraon 1o, ele Toh'p ofiel e e ardd et e dls, Sk el assennes
nEndiereactd Senfees Chargs, pas applentle Lo s Beceen W cervec envZh cotan 1ertas The Emdon gntd Senvices Chage s red o L
o ey ceddedchags ond b pal dedgnaed f oy patouls wee o placed b swroa eecourd, Bl ks o chargs thad SondaX ocfecls
s reveee ovis s s dioeen
18) FUEL Fu Equiprert tha uses heel, Cusbrar has bree egficne B)PrpayFiel Opfca- Culexar r:[‘wdme atALsA o
Relfir tha Boipmad o Us stat o B retd, vlich cese m conenisnce cha gy wil e en Bis Cerbrad {edadaled by mubptfng te
el capxcly of Eqipzadd by Be Preprs par gelin rd). At a1 added bendfl, Codonr pay relm e Eqiprard A of hed md fe
vee thaga wl be re\ndad (rovever, Tral reumad BB, Custorar vl nf t4an mrp redt o P2 1A e Equymad Lo réum) (&)
Peg e Rebmn Opfin - T Cudevae teburs Equipsat with Bss Bl tun when rie6ved, Cudean shad poy 8 (dving dhags (exaddsd by
fg gonsniqird e i wliivd b lead vhenrecahd by Ba Pay en Rebum per g2 sa rde), i0d o) R AN Og€ o - T Cutlarmar
rebums e Eqipoent wih ol beasd as iruch Bod a8 whan  was reeehved [z eat SubsV Eqip=ar tere s wih a btack of hudd, bt red o) rafosd
chrge vl b4 nasessed The cid o Customer piheleyg Equiprment LeeW wil ganenly b2 ixaes Buaths Prepay i Opfine Rt Pay caRem
Opten has e B st ¢find each al g [ B convenvence of polrefedng Cuslormar ayess Bk noce (fthase opfons me aretal soe of Rl
13 LONTATION OF SUNSELTS LIABILITY, IN CONSDERATION OF THE RENTAL OF EQUPLENT, CUSTOMER AGREES
THAT SUHBELTS LIAEITY UMDER THS CONTRACT, FICLUDING ANY LABLITY ARS910 FROM SINBELTS, SUNBELT BIITINES, OR
ANY THRD PARTY'S COMPARATIVE, CONCURRENT, CONTREUTORY, PASSIYE OR ACTIE KEOLIOEKCE OR THAT ARISES AS A
RESULT OF ANY §TRICT OR ABSOLUTE LISBLITY, SHALL KOT EXCEED THE TOTAL RENTAL CHARGES PAID BY CUSTOLER UNDER
THIS CONTRACT.
23 WRY TRIAL VARER P4 ANY DISPUTE ARSCIO OUT OF, B COMMECTION YWTH, O 14 ANY WAY PERTARCKEG TO
THY3 CONTRACT, CUSTOLUER AHD SUHDELT REREBY KN OWH OLY, VOLUNTARLY AND EITENTIO KALLY WAMEAMY RIGHT TOA TRIAL
BY JURY, '3 YEAIVER BERNO A LATERIAL BNDUCENENT TO ENTERKOWTO THE CONTRACT.
1) ARBITRATION AOREELENT & CLASS ACTION YIANWER AT THE ELECTION OF CUSTOLER OR SUMBELT, ANY
DISPUTE ARBEIG OUT OF, IN CORNECTION VWiTH OR Bl ANT VEAY PERTARENG TO THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE SETTLED BY
ARBITPANON BROUGHT M THE PARTIS HOWDUAL CAPACITY AKD KOT AS A PLAWTFF bl A PURFORTED CLASS OR
REFRESEMTATI/E CAPACITY, ADMKSTERID BY THE AMERCAN ARBITRATION ASSOCWTION UNOER JT3 COLLERCIAL
ARBITRATION RULES OR BY 4115 FURSUANT TO [T3 S TREA LA HED ARBITRATION RULES AKD FROCEDURES AND JUDOELENT ON
THE AYZARD RENDERED BY THE ARBITRATOA(S) ZAY DE ENTERED 11 AN¢ COURT KAYRIO JURBDICTIIH THEREOF. THERE SILALL
BE HO RiGHT OR AUTHORITY FOR ANT CLARIS TO BE ARBITRATED OR TRIED ON A CLASS ACTION BASE.
) COLFLUKCE YATH EXPORT AKD BLFORT LAV, Removd of oz Equzrer Fea b Uil ed Stales (U S ks prottred
et Dis Conrael ¥ Cuddemts desres o censes e Yanepard ender opersfon of b Equps e rds'ds of B2 US, Cudas i rsl (o) cblan
SurbeXs tens el peiw b s nguh ezfen bdadg ppoad o edaliahed tur=s b, 2nd () o rede e desd LS Conded, whith
wtde el b heapirfed baen i Cudires oporls o reoods whed (or piiag vih B2 ebove sartexce, Cudime pyres B2 ) e
Eqipzen s subjecl b end rod conply weh 8 spple it opod lres, nddudsg b el £520d 1o Be Dol Ad=m'shaicn Rigdofong 5 )
Cuslizy, oa B opectedimpodan el recon, i respernde for (A) delamining whafer and etdiiny) Tr sy, opsd o e tped [otees o
clhr norzaons ug 1egded grior b e oing o e opodng D EQipmen, () lating 2y regded doam edaon recesy la i of
b Eqipr e, and £} ereuing ro unmdiodz o bandine o dvesond of Bre Equipren coad Rl b 4 dig oy P emaon
o

COLLECTIOM OF DATA. Cudomur eerderts by P cotoclon, e and dudzare of B¢ ¢ia pd Homatfon Cudiny
Ve Lrtady prodided B Suntel, el rdng parsandd BelaNe Wom afen mrd Iunss Hoamafen, 2 wed as P Te'erstios Daa ccleced en e
Eqipmard, ta Eutedin ta PAncy Py fourd ol wia wrdabslunpdne gk,
mn GOYERNNO LAY/, The Pafes envessly and ievgably e ve (o) Bs Cotracl, biadng my refxled lod dai=s, shol b
praumed by the L2as of St Caolm, wihod 1) x4 19 sy cetes o Law pleciehis end (8) Vg Sedton of B3 Cortral bs proi™2ed by ary
Ly, prh Sect 2 shal be nafTecBie 1o P ealerd of mich proveSon whed ialisfiog B remsiing Sediors

FORCE MW EURE. SurbeX thel red be Eadie o resgonsle 1 bhe Cudems, py ke deemtd I have ddodied Indle &
teveched i Cadyad, ot oy [alure o dodg i AETng er pofaring By tom o s Cocrad whan and s B eded puch [2ure o éday s
el by o s Boa s beyond Surk e cot o) ndudag, witod Brteon, B fedsvdag lrce mojzure vearls (Force Ly aore Bes) T
(8) eds of Ged, (b) fooed, Fre, embhpade, i denies, panderies o O san (W, vasion hesfdoas fubeire war B dedared or re) lamerdd
Ureals of ads, rel e ode O umedt, (§ gaerniast ode, [ax repdsters, shldoang o aclios, (1) bebarprss o Uxindes beTed on o
oar Ve dde of s Corkad ) niond of rigiond sz erpeccy, (@) 32 g LSer fegpn;as o i adaeng, or oy inDignd dsdrtaxes; ()
ghode 2 of e dequae pover o s portafon facTSes and ) dher eotls beyond e coalrd of Surdel
» SSCELLAWEOUS. THs Coired, o pether wEr sy Cudimp oxded cocmady aredl iggfeaan T ey, corafhles e
e pyreed of b Patuiggwdag B2 Eoipn it mde py rctbe r o' sd ol by e amendn et €3 d by Ve Pates Amprdeence
i Cudean’s puchare ody of dher Cuslon o dxcun il (0 ¢ther fe s Yl shall ool U berexc Bon shalbe vo'd Ths Coobred bensa selly
the Pases md thernenpecfre parced mocesieds e peifzns ed natfiog s Cerlrad, enress o i Ced cofuss oo oy dlfer pane ang
legd o eqfate i, berefl o rewedy o g ndre mhedsesins inder o by reasen of 85 Cortracl Cuslamer’s obd; o ons hereander shad
ndve T lemindend s Cortracl i ey lem s bwalbd Begd, crwrestarcess, nehinalily, Beydty, o inefor cesShy thal nel ofed my
cifas Lam o vty or pevder unerfarceate iuch b This Cotad md o of Cudemads fighs hond by B Equipr e me ebordnde la 21
rgts, We end Hered of 6 prisees (inelading Sorte¥'s knden) wha hroe A b Equipr e Headngs me Ke cenven'ence oy Tobse
wlerd bl my lsws B Cortrad confl B Pafes pyee thd e noe ipeele loms cortrol, A cepy d Is Certaed ghad bo va'dag B
efg'ral Any [are by Surded by nelsl upen sk pefomance of ey Secdton o Fis Corbalihal nd b2 cormbosd s mwador of Be £ 1y
Cerand fd peforonie nba Mhre Culsrar md B paneon Oty 1 Cot acd e e, nigresad end noarl that (i) te poricn ouifng
I 18 o B gl 0 2 el ety e e, vhickear s greder ind ey Wath hove M efiordy 1 onede, o5 end oo B Cectred, nd
() s Cocbract conette s a b, vald ind bndng (200 of Cudoven, efaceals i ceadose wil s lemn U e Pates hove a ey
orued e py ol Wendad 1o paem o VB lama and condlocs, sueh a7 ez and ahol L ¢ prece dance evat 1t loms heseny

X bt ] i 1Y Crbin O, e P i MR B ok Wi 5

3 rad {
ReeDRu (102

teuy

AdgTsnal e pad tondionu e $hacm et and =< o




AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT Is executed on this 20" day of August 2024 by and hetween MICHIGAM
RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL CORPORATION (hereinafter called “Festival”), and ELITE VALET
PARKING INC. D/B/A ELITE PARKING SOLUTIONS (hereinafter called “ELITE").

WHEREAS: FESTIVAL and ELITE entered into an agreement in August of 2023 pertaining to ELITE
managing and operating parking services for the 2023 Michigan Renalssance Festival (hereinafter
called "EVENT").

WHEREAS: FESTIVAL and ELITE want to enter into a similar agreem ent for a longer term and an

increased management fee.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises hereto and the mutual covenants hereinafter

set forth, the parties agreeto the following:

1. Engagement
The partles hereto agree that the 202
basis for this Agreement and that the 2023 Agreament is incorporated herei

and is an Integral part of this Agreement.

3 Agreement executed in August of 2023 will be the
n as Exhibit E

The terms and conditions contained in Exhibit E will be followed in this Agreement, with
adjustments in fees and comparable dates used moving forward as appropriate.

2, Term and Termination

The term of this Agreement is effective upon the execution of the parties hereto, and covers
the period from August 1, 2024, until November 1, 2027, unless otherwise terminated.

3. Adjustments to Management Fees

The following schedule indicates the revised Management Fee Numbers:

2024 2025 2026 2027
Fee perClause 3.2  $27,300 $31,500 $37,800 $44,100
Fee per Clause3.3  $37,700 $43,500 $52,200 $60,900
TOTAL: $65,000 $75,000 $90,000 $105,000

4, Miscellaneous
FESTIVAL will endeavor to accommodate re
adjusting the payment reimbursement schedule, when possible.

asonable requests made by ELITE, such as



The individual signing this Agreement have the authority to act on behalf and bind FESTIVAL and
ELITE respectively:

On behalf of FESTIVAL:

By: }:;{,,/ | ’8:2’3 M\
Name: Ro l?l.oﬁ.»-*’r S. Br&( [er
Title: Vice ~ f;‘,{ géjp{“,?ﬁﬂf’“

On behalf of ELITE:

By: e
Name:

Title:




Byers Wirecker Service Inc.
308 SOVTII ST
BOGHESTES, MIBHRAK 46307

Groveland Township Mi

To whom it may concern Byers Wrecker Service Inc. is Contracted with the Oakland
County Sheriff’s Office for Towing Service in several areas thought out the county and
will be able to handle any and all towing needs that may arise at the Renaissance
Festival either on grounds or surrounding roadways 24hr a day any questions please

feel free to contact me.

Bill Byers
O: 248-651-4180
C: 248-789-3985






(A
| 4 STATE BARRICADES, INC.

24806 Industrial Dr.
Wazrren, Michigan 48089
OFFICE# 586-756-8282
CELL# 586-405-3873
tony@statebary.com

Date; 3-14-25
To:

ATTN: CHIP SCHULTZ

From: TONY MAGGIANO

COMMENTS: MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL

8-11-25 - 9-29-25

4 MESSAGE BOARDS: $3500.00 EACH
TOTAL: $14,000.00

UOTES GOOD FOR 30 DAYS. CALL RYAN 70 SCHEDULE. DAILY ALIGNMENT 18 THE

Q
CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY.STATE BARRICADES DOES NOT INTERMIX EQUIPMENT
ADES TO BE FILLED

WITH THE CONTRACTOR, DUE TO LIABILITY ISSUES. WATER BARRIC
& KEPT THAWED BY CONTRACTOR

o RIVEL AkAvwiar L







OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into between the MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL, a
Corporation, registered and licensed to conduct business in the State of Michigan, whose local address is
and the COUNTY OF OAKLAND, a Michigan

12600 Dixie Highway, Holly, Michigan, 48442 ("COMPANY"),
1200 North Telegraph Road, Pontiac, Michigan

Constitutional and Municipal Corporation, whose address is

48341 ("COUNTY"). The COUNTY is also represented by the OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF, MICHAEL
J. BOUCHARD, in his official capacity as a Michigan Constilutional Officer, whose address is 1200 Norih
Telegraph Road, Bldg. 38 E., Pontiac, Michigan 48341 ("SHERIFF"). In this AGREEMENT, when the
COUNTY and SHERIFF are referred to jointly and collectively, they will be referred to as the OAKLAND

COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE ("0.C.8.0.").

INTRODUCTION:

A. The COMPANY has a series of one day events that are open to the general public and held annually
Michigan 48442, which

on approximately fourteen (14) acres located at 12500 Dixie Highway, Holly,
ag{ concerls, demonstrations, shows,

includes numerous performances, performers in period costum
ceremonies, and concessions fealuring both eateries and dri )(f g booths, and other activities in an
effort to recreate the atmosphere of an old European vlllage(ﬂrln e Renalssance era ("EVENT"),

B. The COMPANY has consulted with the local law enfoZ/méht deparlmer@rggarding its ability to
provide sufficlent LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES@t {he EVENT and regarding whether any

supplemenla_l LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES ar d\e\sI;a il and/or necessary.

C. The SHERIFF, subject to the limits of available. DEPUT Eisrﬁnd budgel constraints, Is authorized by
i.the jurisdiction and territorial limits o

law to provide LAW ENFORCEMENT SER IQES_“ through ul

Oakland County. R
it the possibility of supplementing limited, local LAW

D. The COMPANY has approached | éohso a
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES 0.C.3.0. DERUTIES to provide increased LAW ENFORCEMENT
SERVICES atthe EVENT; < i ¥
v e 3
E. The same fiscal and pracllgal restriglions that limit the avallability of local police resources for LAW

ENFORCEMENT SER?!C?SB the VENT also limit the abllity of the SHERIFF lo reassign DEPUTIES
to provide LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES at the EVENT as part of their normal shift assignments
and duties. Howeveh’,\bacause of&h‘s relatively large number of DEPUTIES the 0.C.S.0. employs, the
0.C.S.0. may be able‘lg prov? supplemental LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES at the EVENT on

an overtime basls. Y
B

N
F. The COMPANY, in recognition of the expense to the 0.C.S.0. in providing increased LAW
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES at the EVENT, has agreed to pay all CO UNTY costs Incurred in providing
DEPUTIES for increased LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES at the EVENT.

G. The O.C.S.0. is agreeable to providing DEPUTIES for supplemental LAW ENFORCEMENT
SERVICES at the EVENT pursuant to the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, provided that
such LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVIGES do not: (a) impair or interfere with the 0.C.S.0.'s abilily to
meet its other law enforcement responsibilities; (b) resultin any 0.C.S.0. loss of operational efficiency
or readiness; andfor (c) result in any increased financial burdens or the assumption of any additional

liabilities to County taxpayers.

THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:

1. Definitions. In addition to the terms and expressions defined elsewhere in this AGREEMENT, the

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE
FESTIVAL

Page 1 of 12



following terms, whether used in the singular or plural, possessive or non-possessive, andfor within or
without quotalion marks, shall be defined, read, and interpreted as follows:

1.1. "LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES" means the enforcement of the general criminal laws of this
slate and the motor vehicle and traffic laws of this slate, including, but not limited to, road patrol,
crime detection, crime prevention, and criminal apprehension, and/or response to any emergency
or non-emergency which, in the sole judgment of any DEPUTY, appears lo require the presence,
altention, or services of any DEPUTY to address, respond, or attend to any issue, event, or
circumstance involving public safety, a breach of peace, public health, an accident or accidental
injury, and related law enforcement functions as authorized and/or mandated by law. LAW
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES shall not include any responsibility or job duty of the COMPANY
orany COMPANY AGENT including, but not limited to, gate attendants, ticket sellers, ticket takers,
ushers, directors, supervisors, parking attendants, managers, nurses, emergency medIcal
personnel or technicians, security guards, safety personnel, complaint adjusters, or any other
plant, operational, or administrative personnel who perform any general crowd control and
supervision functions, search any packages and/or patrons for objects such as botlles, cans,
cameras, weapons, or tape recorders, remove any objeclionable patrons, signs or displays,
determine any person’s admissibility to the EVENT, become involved in any dispute resolution
with any COMPANY AGENT and/or patron or any person attending the EVENT, or enforce any
COMPANY or EVENT rule, policy, or regulation unless such agfivily Is for the prevenlion of crime
and the enforcement of the general criminal laws includinggbut not limited to, criminal property
trespass. /9 %

1.2, "CLAIM(S)" shall be defined to Include any and ali’losses, cc lblafnts. demands for relief or
damages, sulls, causes of aclion, proceedings,dirdgments, deﬂcl ngies, penalties, costs and
expenses, including, but not limited to, any rel rsem I for reasoriable attorney fees, wilness
fees, court costs, Investigation and/or litigation &x} nsé9, any amounts paid In seftlement, or any
other amount for which the 0.C.S.0. becomes legally and/or contractually obligated to pay, or any
other liabllities of any kind whatsoeverAihether dlr&g Indirect or consequential whether based
upon any alleged violation of the constit lh'!( yderal orsiate), any slatute, rule, regulation, or the
common law, whether in law or aqmty, toxt, 09 ot, or ei?werw;se and/or whether commenced or

threatened.
1
1.3. "COMPANY AGENT" eans a?) and all 'COMPANY officers, directors, board members,
employees, managers, arimp 15, divitﬂo}ls volunteers, agents, and representatives of the

COMPANY, as well as any COMPANY licensee, concesslonaire, contractor, subcontractor,
vendor, subsidiagy, joint venlorer or partner, and/or any such persons, successors or
predecessors, gﬁr’ﬂs lo eds a)ttorneys, or auditors (whether such persons act or acted in
their personai epresentativy, oro ciarcapacrlles) and/or any and all persons acting by, (hrough
under, orin con wrlh any hhem and/or the COMPANY.

1.4. "DEPUTY" shall be definefl lo include the Undersheriff, any Major, Captain, Lieutenant, Sergeant,
Deputy II, Depuly |, or any other person of any rank, classification, or title who, pursuant to state
law, is a sworn deputy of the SHERIFF.

1.5. "COUNTY AGENT" means the OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF, SHERIFF MICHAEL J.
BOUCHARD, and any and all other COUNTY elected and/or appointed officials, commissioners,
officers, boards, committees, commissions, departments, divislons, frustees, volunteers,
employees (including any and all DEPUTIES), agents, representatives, contractors, predecessors,
successors, assigns, attorneys, or auditors (whether such persons act or acted in their personal,
represenlative, or official capacities), and any and all persons acting by, through, under, or in
concert with any of them. COUNTY AGENT shall also include any person who was a COUNTY
AGENT at any time during the term of this AGREEMENT but, for any reason, is no longer
employed, appointed, or elected and serving as an agent.

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE
FESTIVAL

Page 2 of 12



2. Assignment of DEPUTIES. The 0.C.S.0. will assign DEPUTIES to provide LAW ENFORCEMENT

SERVICES at the EVENT as follows:

2.1 Each EVENT DATE will have two shifts, for a total of sixteen o twenty-four (16-24) DEPUTIES per

EVENT DATE.

DEPUTIES will be provided in accordance with the following shift schedule for August 16, 17, 23,

24, 30 and 31, and September 1 of 2025:

First Shift: Second Shift:
SERGEANT: (1) 0800-1500 hours (1) 1500-2100 hours
DEPUTY Il {(7) 0800-1500 hours (5) 1500-2000 hours

DEPUTY I (2) 1500-2100 hours

DEPUTIES will be provided in accordance with the following shift schedule for September 6, 7, 13,
14, 20, 21, 27 and 28 of 2025:

First Shift: Second Shift:
SERGEANT: (1) 0800-1500 hours (1 1500-2100 hours
DEPUTY Ii: (11)  0800-1500 hours 1500-2000 hours
DEPUTY Il: éz . 1600-2100 hours

DEPUTIES will be provided in accordance with th ’foliowing shl\r@]ule for August 22, 23, 29,
and 30 and September 5, 6, and 7 of 2026: < 2

First Shift: \' ’ Second Shift:
SERGEANT: (1) 0800-1 D hours (1) 1500-2100 hours
DEPUTY I: (7) 0800-15(0 hours b) 1500-2000 hours
\ - ( ) 1500-2100 hours

DEPUTY Il
\ p

DEPUTIES will be provide 4ccor Ance wéh the following shift schedule for September 12, 13,
19, 20, 26, and 27 and O ober3 damao

P \Fi st Shift: Second Shift:
SERGEAN};"' (T 56%6;1500 hours (1) 1500-2100 hours
DEPUTY I (11)\ , 0800-1500 hours (9)  1500-2000 hours
DEPUTY Il . ) 1500-2100 hours

 * |

T

DEPUTIES will be proﬁdcd in accordance with the following shift schedule for August 21, 22, 28,

and 29 and September 4, 5, and 6 of 2027:
Second Shift:

First Shift.
SERGEANT: (1) 0800-1500 hours (N 1500-2100 hours
DEPUTY lI: (7) 0800-1500 hours (5) 1500-2000 hours

DEPUTY Il (2) 1500-2100 hours

DEPUTIES will be provided in accordance with the following shift schedule for September 11, 12,

18, 19, 25, and 26 and Oclober 2 and 3 of 2027:

First Shift: Second Shift:

SERGEANT: (2)  0900-1500 hours (2)  1600-2100 hours
DEPUTY II: (3)  0900-1500 hours (8)  1500-2000 hours
DEPUTY II; (7)  1000-1500 hours (2)  1500-2100 hours

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE M
FESTIVAL

ICHIGAN RENAISSANCE

Page 3 of 12



3. Event Dates. The EVENT DATES are: August 16, 17, 23, 24, 30 and 31 of 2025; September 6, 7, 13,
14, 20, 21, 27 and 28 of 2025; August 22, 23, 29, and 30 of 2026; September 5, 6, 7, 12, 13, 19, 20, :
26, and 27 of 2026; October 3 and 4 of 2026; August 21, 22, 28, and 29 of 2027; September 4, 5, 6,
11,12, 18, 19, 25 and 26 of 2027; October 2 and 3 of 2027.

4. Payment.
4.1. The COMPANY agrees to pay the COUNTY for each individual DEPUTY scheduled to provide

4.2.

LAWENFORCEMENT SERVICES at the EVENT pursuant to this AGREEMENT an amount equal
to the total number of work hour(s), including any part of any hour(s), of LAW ENFORCEMENT
SERVICES to be rendered by each individual DEPUTY, multiplied by the Hourly Overlime (OT)
Rate indicated below for each DEPUTY's Rank.

Rank 2025 Hourly OT Rate 2026 Hourly OT Rate 2027 Hourly OT Rate*
LIEUTENANT $122.50 $133.65 $145.81
SERGEANT $111.00 $121.10 $132.12
DEPUTY Il $90.66 $?",, $108.15

* 2027 rates are subject to change based on the Inflatigh Rate Multiplier (IRM). Actual rates to

be determined November 2025. IRM is provided by s Mithigan State Tax Commission.
- ‘\ -

The PARTIES estimate thal the total cost of“LAW ENFOR}: MENT SERVICES will be
$570,109.26. The PARTIES agree that this apdunt is arfestimate ofily and that actual costs for
the provislon of LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVI S gaﬁld be more or less, The COMPANY will
make payments to the COUNTY according to the Tallowing schedule:

Ty

2025 Due Date _ \ /| Amgint Due
August 13,2025 "~ <+ \:. |$18,513.92
August 20,2025 ). \. | $18,513.92
August 27,2025 ..~ —__— = | $27,770.88
September 3, 2025\, + $27,236.48
September 10,2025 - $27,236.48
Septémber 17, 2035, ™’ $27,236.48
Septemiber 24, 20275 $27,236.48
Estimated 2025 Total Costs $173,744.64
2026 Due Date Amount Due
August 19, 2026 $20,198.96
August 26, 2026 $20,198.96
September 2, 2026 $30,298.44
September 9, 2026 $29,715.44
September 16, 2026 $29,715.44
September 23, 2026 $29,715.44
September 30, 2026 $29,715.44
Estimated 2026 Total Cosls $189,558.12

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE

FESTIVAL

Paged of 12



4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

Subject to the SHERIFF's sole discretion and judgme
enforcement resources and law enforcement needs, t

2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREE

" which takes any DEPUTYsaway

2027 Due Date Amount Due*
August 18, 2027 $20,036.92
August 25, 2027 $22,036.92

'_Seplember 1,2027 $33,055.38

[ September 8, 2027 $32,419.32

| September 15, 2027 $32,419.32
September 22, 2027 $32,419.32
September 29, 2027 $32,419.32
Estimated 2027 Total Costs $206,806.50

If the COMPANY fails to make any of the above scheduled payments on time, the 0.C.S.0. will
VICES under the terms of

have no further obligation to provide any LAW ENFORCEMENT SER
g LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES exceeds the

this Agreement. If the aclual cost of providin
estimated amount, the COUNTY will submit an Involce to 11{‘»9:COMPANY that sets forth the
additional amount due for each DEPUTY'S service render? fhrough the end of the EVENT, and

the COMPANY agrees to pay the COUNTY the full amo 1 gue and owing on any such invoice
aclual cost of providing LAW

within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Allernalively, if the
E'NFORCEMENT SERVICES is less than lhe esiyé!ed amount the COUNTY will refund the
difference to the COMPANY within thirty (30) days#f the last sched Ig"d,EVENT DATE.

For purposes of computing the LAW ENFORCE® EN,T_,SERVICES cosls, the total hours worked
by any DEPUTY shall Include not only all estimated hours worked in providing direct LAW
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES for the EVE,QT._but sha I?o include any time spent on the following

activities: (a) Travel time, on a daily bas{s, to C TMENT, in Pontiac,

vl t-from the SHERIFF'S DEPAR
Michigan, at the beginning or end of an '$hi§7ykan2;SHERIFF‘S DEPUTY, if that SHERIFF'S
DEPUTY shift starls or ends inPontiac (b) afy time expended transporting any person arrested
by any DEPUTY during the/ctg:rs‘é‘ f-providjng LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES at the EVENT
to the Oakland County Jaji/In Pongp, Mlchig n, including any reasonable length of time spent at

{PUTY-while booking such person(s); (c)any minimum call-in

the Oakland Counly Jail by any D
or overtime hours guarante® td DEPUTIES under any applicable union or employment contract,
and/or (d) the perfoimaice ol'any LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES related duty or obligalion
om the EVENT but which began or arose while any DEPUTY
g., hot pursuit, transporling a

was provrdingiAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES at the EVENT (e.
ublic road immedialely

person for medical attention an automobile accidenl occurring on the p
outside EVENT g?ands, ejct.).
Upon Company's reﬁxe'st. any 0.C.S.0. payroll policies, payroll or attendance records,
procedures, employment conlracts, etc. that are applicable to the determination of the total costs
{o be paid to the COUNTY by the COMPANY pursuant to this AGREEMENT, shall be made
available by appointment with the 0.C.S.0. for inspection by the COMPANY,

The COMPANY has, to its satisfaction, examined the 0.C.S.0.'S wage and cost structures and
acknowledges and agrees that the COMPANY'S payment to the COUNTY under the terms of this
AGREEMENT is not intended to result in any net financial gain or profit for the COUNTY; butis

bursed for any and all salary costs, on an

established to guarantee hat the 0.C.S.0. is fully reim
overtime basis, and other fringe benefit cosls and expenses that lhe COUNTY is required to pay
to, or on hehalf of, any DEPUTIES providing supplemental LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES for

the EVENT.
nt as to the County-wide prioritization of his law
he COMPANY may request from the SHERIFF

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
MENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE

FESTIVAL

Page 5 of 12



10.

that he assign additional DEPUTIES to perform LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES atthe EVENT. The
SHERIFF, subject to the terms of this AGREEMENT, may assign any or all such additional requested
DEPUTIES at the applicable Hourly Overtime Rate for the rank of each such additional DEPUTY
assigned.

The 0.C.S.0. and the COMPANY agree and acknowledge that the LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES
provided for under the terms of this AGREEMENT are stiictly limited to those governmental law
enforcement functions authorized by law and are exclusively governmental aclivities and functions of
the type and nature that would be normally supported by tax dollars, and that this AGREEMENT simply
acknowledges the unusual circumstances and increased law enforcement needs created by the
EVENT and the corresponding increased financial burden on government law enforcement agencies

created by such EVENT.

The COMPANY acknowledges and agrees that there may be circumstances beyond the SHERIFF’s
control when the SHERIFF, in his sole discretion and judgment as to the prioritization of his law
enforcement resources, his overall evaluation of Oakland County's immediate law enforcement needs,
and his determination as to the allocation of 0.C.S.0. law enforcement personnel at that time to best
serve the citizens of Oakland County, may be unable to assign any or all of the DEPUTIES
contemplated to providle LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES on any particular EVENT DATE. The
COMPANY acknowledges and agrees that this AGREEMENT, doegot, and is not intended to, create
eilher any absolute right in favor of the COMPANY, or any corrggponding absolute duly or obligation
upon the SHERIFF or the 0.C.S.0,, to guarantee that any s’pﬁé?flb number or rank of DEPUTIES will
be present to provide LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES. Tije CONK&ANY acknowledges and agrees
that the 0.C.S.0.'s good falth and reasonable efforls tg4ooperate Wilh the COMPANY in providing
LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES and to develop t é/necessary schegules, budgets and plans to
enable it to provide the numbers and ranks of D TIES gdntemplated- at the anticipated EVENT
DATES and the promised professionalism of the\®.C,8,0. In these regards, as demonslrated
throughout previous similar agreements, are approprialé and adequate consideralion to justify the
COMPANY'S decislon to enter Into this AGREEMENT. The COMPANY hereby agrees to waive any
and all CLAIMS against the COUNTY, SHER[FF; of the O.C:8.0. which arise in connection with, or as
a result of, any alleged O.C.S.0. failure lo pro lde/ga'aquala, W ENFORCEMENT SERVICES at the
EVENT. e ' -
// E -‘\ t‘
If the SHERIFF is unable to pfovide ghy or al\DEPUTIES necessary to supplement the exisling
available local LAW ENFORGEMENT“S8ERVIGES on any particular EVENT DATE, he will verbally
communicate that fact to the COMP{NY as soon as such fact becomes reasonably known to him.
o b

8.1 In the eye'nl oféiéfﬂng sﬁoj:tages, a shift scheduled for a Deputy Il may be filled by a
Sergeant or l_-lgu‘{enant to lﬁjli_)mizé‘lorcing a Deputy Il to fill the shift.

N 1]

N ]
The SHERIFF and lhe\SQUNTY reserve to themselves any rights and obligations relating to the
provision of any and all polite and/or governmental law enforcement services, and this AGREEMENT
does not, and is not intended to, diminish, delegate, divest, impair, or contravene any constitutional,
statutory, and/or other legal right, privilege, power, obligation, duty, capacity, immunily, or character of
office of either the SHERIFF, the COUNTY, and/or any DEPUTY.

0.C.S.0. Independent Status. The COMPANY and the 0.C.S.0. agree that neither the O.C.S.0. nor
any DEPUTY, by virtue of this AGREEMENT, or otherwise, shall be considered or asserted to be an
employee, contractor, sub-contractor, partner, joint venturer, representalive, or agent of the

COMPANY, and further agree that:

10.1. At all times and for all purposes relevant to this AGREEMENT, the O.C.S.0. shall remain
the sole and exclusive employer of all DEPUTIES and that the O.C.S.0. shall remain solely and
exclusively responsible for the direct payment to any DEPUTY of any DEPUTY'S wages,
compensation, overlime wages, expenses, fringe benefits, pension or retirement benefits, travel
expenses, mileage allowances, training expenses, transportation costs, and/or other allowances

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENATSSANCE
FESTIVAL

Page 6 of 12



11.

not limited to, workers' disability compensalion,
Act proteclion(s) and benefits, any employment
benefit based, in any way, upon any

or reimbursements of any kind, including, bul
unemployment compensation, Social Security
taxes, andlor any other statutory or contractual right or
DEPUTY'S status as an employee of the 0.C.8.0.

10.2. The COMPANY shall not grant, give, allow, pay, reimburse, compensate, or otherwise
provide any wages, fringe benefits, privileges, gifts, equipment, personal property, supplies,
benefits, entitiement, consideration (monetary or otherwise), or any other thing of value, either
directly or indirectly, to, for the use by, or on behalf of, any individual DEPUTY, except that any
money paid directly to the COUNTY by the COMPANY to reimburse the COUNTY for its costs
pursuant to this AGREEMENT shall not be deemed consideration paid hy the COMPANY to any

DEPUTY.

10.3. This AGREEMENT does not, and is not intended to create, grant, modify, supplement,
supersede, alter, or otherwise affect or control, in any manner or form: (a) any right, privileqe.
benefit, or any other term(s) or condition(s) of employment, of any kind or nature whatsoever, In,
upon, or for any DEPUTY andfor any DEPUTY'S agents, representatives, unions, or the
successors or assigns of any of them; (b) any applicable 0.C.S.0. employment and/or union
contract(s); (c) any level(s) or amount(s) of DEPUTY supervision, standard(s) of performance,

fraining and educalion standard(s); and/or {d) any 0.C.8.0. J}:I};(S), regu]atiic‘)jn(ls). :u;urs; of w#rl;;
(s), ethical guide ine(s), eltc., whic

shift assignmenl(s), order(s), policy(ies), procedure(s), direcli o
shall, solely and exclusively, govern and control the Vino_ymenl relationship between the
N

0.C.S.0. and/or all conduct and actions of all DEPUTIE®S.

10.4. This AGREEMENT does not, and is not/i ftended to, Ilmgq,dify, control, or otherwise
affect in any manner the SHERIFF's sole ang/@kclusiyd-right, obligation, and responsibilily to

determine, establish, modify, or Implement any-ghd 9If_dperallonal policies, procedures, o_rders,
rules, regulations, elhical guidelines, and/for any al '_r\judgment. policy or directive which in any
way govems or controls any aclivity of@l.DEPUTIES:, The COMPANY further agrees that this
AGREEMENT does not obligate or requife The:SHERIF o1 the O.C.S.0. to change, alter, modify,
use, or develop any different or special
procedures for use at the EVE T

W}NFOBG_EMENT SERVICES policies, praclices or

10.5. This AGREEMENTd \not intended to include any 0.C.S.0. warrany,
‘ nalure whatsoever, in favor of the

W
does nb, and I
promise, or guaranty, either prgg "ﬁrlmpliSd, of any kind or
COMPANY, any COMPANY_Af E’NiTE)ro’r any person attending the EVENT, that any LAW
ENFORCEMENT S,EEEIICEé\RLoyided by the 0.C.S.0. under the terms and conditions of this
AGREEMENT will rasuﬂ‘iliany cific reduction or prevention of any criminal activity at the
EVENT, or an{ diher such [j"}f‘orm nce-based outcome. _

is AGREEMENT, the COMPANY agrees and promises that no

\ LY
10.6. Under theMerms of/l
DEPUTY shall be 2sked’or required to perform any services directly for the COMPANY or
any olher work or assignments from the COMPANY or be

otherwise be avallable™o perform
expected lo perform any acts olher than LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES, and that no DEPUTY
r capacity by the COMPANY.

shall be employed in any manner o
r the COMPANY nor any COMPANY AGENT(S) shall
EPUTY wilh any job instructions, job descriptions, job

specificalions, or job duties, or, in any manner attempt to control, supervise, lrain, or direct any

DEPUTY in the performance of any 0.C.S.0. duty or obligation to provide LAW ENFORCEMENT

SERVICES under the terms of this AGREEMENT.

The COMPANY agrees that this AGREEMENT does not, and is not intended to, creale, by implication

or otherwise, any specific, direct or indirect obligation, duty, promise, benefit, and/or special right to any

LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES in favor of the COMPANY, any COMPANY AGENT(S), andlor any
e COMPANY agrees that at all times, and for

patron or other person altending the EVENT. Further th
any and all purposes under this AGREEMENT, the 0.C.8.0. and/or any DEPUTY present at the

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE :
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE
FESTIVAL

10.7. The COMPANY agrees that neithe
otherwise provide, furnish or assign any D

Page 7 of 12



12

13.

14.

16.

16,

17.

EVENT shall be present strictly and solely to perform its governmenlal law enforcement function
authorized by law and for the benefit of the general public, and under no circumstances shall any
DEPUTY undertake any activity or duty on behalf of the COMPANY or provide any particular or specific
service or benefit to or for the COMPANY, any COMPANY AGENT(S), or any patron or other person

attending the EVENT.

The COMPANY agrees that this AGREEMENT does not, and is not intended to, transfer, delegate, or
assign to the COUNTY, the SHERIFF, and/or any COUNTY AGENT(S) any civil or legal responsibility,
obligation, duty of care, or liability associated with the ownership, maintenance, or operation of the
EVENT. The COMPANY agrees that it shall, at all times and under all circumstances, remain solely
and exclusively responsible for any and all costs, obligations, and/or civil liabilities associated with
owning and operating the EVENT, including, but not limited to, the provision of any Emergency Medical
Treatment, rendering any first aid or medical treatment facilities, providing or implementing any fire or
emergency evacuation plans or procedures, providing for basic crowd control, security services or
obligations, safety functions, and/or any other activity associated with the EVENT that is not within the
definition of LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES or otherwise a governmental law enforcement funclion
under the terms of this AGREEMENT and which is not under the control and direction of the O.C.S.0.
The COMPANY further agrees that it shall not reduce, eliminate, or otherwise fail to provide, in any
way, the same number(s) and type(s) of security, emergency, or other personnel and/or the scope of
securily and emergency service(s) or protection(s) that the COMRANY normally provides to any
COMPANY AGENT(S) or any person attending the EVENT, due/to"fhé presence of the 0.C.8.0. andfor

any DEPUTY at the EVENT. V oa ¥

( '-..‘ e
The COMPANY agrees that no COMPANY AGENT eith;ar’és\a resullqf or arising out of any act(s) by
any person in the performance of any duty under this AGREEMENT, tslhall-l;m considered or asserted
to be an employee of the 0.C.S.0. The COMPANY,Agrees thdbil shall beSolely and completely liable
for any and all COMPANY AGENT(S)' past, present; r{uty wages, compensation, overtime wages,
expenses, fringe benefits, pension or retirement benefily; lavel expenses, mileage allowances, training
expenses, transportation costs, and/or othetfillowances orgeimbursements of any kind, including, but
not limited to, worker's disabllity compens lﬁ];-‘upsmploy‘nienl compensalion, Soclal Security Act
protection(s) and benefits, any employment ges. ind/ar any other statutory or conlractual right or
benefit based on or in any way relatedto any CQMPANY AGENT(S) employment status or any alleged
violation of any COMPANY AGENT(S)' statutory\eontractual, or constitutional rights by the COMPANY,
the COUNTY or any COUNTY AGENT(S). The COMPANY agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
COUNTY and/or any COUNTY,. AGENT(8) from apd against any and all CLAIM(S) which are imposed
upon, incurred by, or asserleti\a fAinst the COUNTY and/or any COUNTY AGENT(S) by any
COMPANY AGENT(S)avhich are aged upon, result from, or arise from, or are in any way related to
any COMPANY AGENT(S)' wages,“gompensation, benefits, or other employment-related rights,
including, but not lignited to, thosd describad in this Paragraph.
k J

N
The COMPANY sha]l\b solely afid exclusively responsible, during the term of this AGREEMENT, for
guaranteeing that all C&MPAN,Y AGENT(S): (a) follow all lawful orders of any DEPUTY performing

any duties under this AGREEMENT; (b) fully cooperate with all DEPUTIES in providing any LAW
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES pursuant to this AGREEMENT; and (c) conform their activilies to comply
with the terms of this AGREEMENT,

The COMPANY freely and voluntarily consents to and agrees that the 0.C.S.0. and all DEPUTIES,
while providing LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES under the terms of this AGREEMENT, shall have
free and open access to any and all premises, areas and locations at the EVENT.

The COMPANY, at its sole cost and expense, agrees to comply with the insurance requirements set
forth in Attachment A, which is hereby fully incorporated into and made part of this AGREEMENT.

The COMPANY agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the COUNTY and/or any COUNTY AGENTS
harmless from and against any and all CLAIMS that are imposed upon, incurred by, or asserted against
the COUNTY by any person and are based upon, result from, or arise from, or are in any way related
to any alleged error, mistake, negligent or intentional aci(s) or omission(s) by the COMPANY and/or

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE
FESTIVAL

Page 8 of 12



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

any COMPANY AGENT(S), including, but not limited to: (a) any alleged breach of legal duly to any
lleged failure by the COMPANY

person by the COMPANY and/or any COMPANY AGENTS; (b)any a

or any COMPANY AGENTS to comply with any COMPANY duty or obligation in this AGREEMENT; (c)
any plher CLAIM(S) based, in any way, upon any COMPANY or COMPANY AGENTS' services,
buildings, equipment, or any other event, occurrence, duty, or obligation related or attendant thereto.
The COMPANY, however, shall not be obligated to pay any portion of any court ordered judgment or
award for which a court has determined that the COUNTY andfor any COUNTY AGENT(S) was either
solely negligent or solely at fault for any specific dollar amount of damages or loss to any person other

than the COMPANY or any COMPANY AGENT(S).

17.1. The indemnification rights contained in this AGREEMENT are in excess and over and

above any valid and collectible insurance rights/policies. If the validity or collectability of the
COMPANY'S insurance is disputed by the insurance company, the COMPANY shall indemnify
the COUNTY and/or any COUNTY AGENT(S) for all CLAIMS asserted against the COUNTY
and/or any COUNTY AGENT(S), and if the insurance company prevails, the Company shall
indemnify the COUNTY and/or any COUNTY AGENT(S) for any uncollectable accounts.

demnify, pay and hold harmless the

17.2. To the extent that the COMPANY's promise to in
in this AGREEMENT may become

COUNTY andfor any COUNTY AGENT(S) as sel forth
unenforceable or uncollectible, the COMPANY shall conttib}u&) the maximum portion that it is

permitted to pay and salisfy under applicable law toward e payment and satisfaction of any
CLAIM(S) against the COUNTY and/or any COUNTY A 14S).

17.3. COMPANY shall have no rights agalnst lhepOUNTY a}d!'g;;\any COUNTY AGENT(S)
on); gonlribution, subrogalion,

for any indemnification (e.g., contraclual, equllabés, or by Implication),
and/or any other right lo be reimbursed by the YUNTY, énd/or any COUNTY AGENT(S) except
as expressly provided in this AGREEMENT. :

W 4
The .COMPANY agrees that all COMPANY, (p‘der,rlnific;ﬂoiiéa\nd hold harmless promises, waivers of
liability, representations, insurance coverag obligations, |i hllities, payment obligations, and/or any
other related obligations provided for in this AGRE EMENTMwith regard to any acls, occurrences, events,

transactions, or CLAIM(S) either ogeurring or\jiaf ing theif basis in any events or transaclions (hat
occurred before the cancellation of expi ajtlon ol this AGREEMENT, shall survive the cancellation or
/ - \'.

expiration of this AGREEMENJ{'

The COMPANY agrees thal it E‘I ) -ﬂol'égsﬁb“n‘,‘dglagate, contract, subcontract or otherwise, transfer,
%8.0.'s or any DEPUTY'S LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES or

promise, commit, or | afi_apy O, ;

duties under this ;xp EEMENT ‘to any other person and/or public or private corporation, entity, or

organization of any(kind. k-

S

The COMPANY repre ents and yarrants that it has reviewed all of its current or proposed lease and

licensing agreements withJls.fatrons, concessionaires, promoters, vendors, and other persons who

are or may become contraaually involved with the COMPANY for the EVENT, and hereby represents
any other contraclual

and warrants that the COMPANY does not have, and will not In the future have,
agreement that will in any manner restrict, interfere with, or prohibit the COMPANY, any COMPANY
AGENT(S), or any other person from complying with the COMPANY's obligations and duties as set

forth in this AGREEMENT.

eliver to the 0.C.S.0. wrilten notice and copies of any
r accusalion(s) or allegation(s) of negligence or other
wrongdoing, whether civil or criminal in nature, that the COMPANY becomes aware of which involves
in any way the 0.C.S.0. or any DEPUTY. The COMPANY agrees to cooperale with the 0.C.S.0. in
any investigation conducted by the 0.C.S.0. into any acl(s) or work performance of any DEPUTY.

Term. This AGREEMENT shall become effeclive on August 1, 2025 and shall remain in effect
continuously until it expires without any furlher act or notice being required of any party at 11:59 p.m.
on December 31, 2027. Either the COUNTY, the SHERIFF, or the COMPANY may cancel this

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE
FESTIVAL

The COMPANY agrees that it shall promptly d
CLAIM(S), complaint(s), charge(s), or any othe

Page 9 of 12



23.

24,

25,

26.

27.

28.

29.

AGREEMENT for any redson without incurring any penalty or liability to any Parly as a result, before
its scheduled expiration, by delivering a wrilten notice of cancellation of this AGREEMENT to the other
two parties at least two (2) business days before the effective date of cancellation (which cancellation
date shall be clearly stated in the notice), and at 11:59 P.M. on lhe stated effective date of cancellation,
this AGREEMENT shall be canceled. COMPANY will remain obligated to reimburse the O.C.S.0. for
any and all costs (e.g., minimum overtime pay, minimum contract call-in or overtime notice provisions,
etc.) already incurred by the COUNTY and/or SHERIFF prior to the cancellation effective date.

This AGREEMENT, and any subsequent amendments, shall not become effective pfior to the approval
by resolution of the COUNTY Board of Commissioners. The approval and terms of this AGREEMENT
shall be entered into the official minutes and proceedings of the COUNTY Board of Commissioners

and shall also be filed with the office of the Clerk for the COUNTY.

The parties shall send, by first class mail, or alternatively may deliver in person, all correspondence
and written notices required or permitted by this AGREEMENT to each of the signalories of this
AGREEMENT, or any signatory successor in office, to the addresses shown in this AGREEMENT.
Except as otherwise provided for herein, all correspondence or written notices shall be considered
delivered to a parly as of the date that such notice is deposited with sufficient postage, with the U.S.
Postal Service or delivered to such person'’s office during normal business hours.
A

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into in the State of/Nll't_’:/?/ﬁgan and shall in all respecls be
interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the Statp©f Michigan. The language of all parts
of this AGREEMENT is intended to and, in all cases, shall be{onsthied as a whole according to its fair
meaning, and nol construed strictly for or against any par}y:'.-As used l‘n{hr!s AGREEMENT, the singular
or plural number, possessive or non-possessive shyuba deemed lo in Qd.e the other whenever the
context so suggests or requires. & //,

Absent an express written waiver, the failure of a} arly to pursue any right granted under this
AGREEMENT shall not be deemed a waiver®f that righ?}e arding any existing or subsequent breach
or default under this AGREEMENT. No failu “?:r-dg_lay ont rt of any party in exercising any right,
power or privilege hereunder shall operate as\a walvér thereof, nor shall a single or parlial exercise of
any right, power or privilege preclude any othergr firther exercise of any other right, power or privilege.

Vs d |

y N
The COUNTY, the SHERIFF, it the CO\MPANY‘ tknowledge thal this AGREEMENT shall be binding
upon each of them and, to th exte’pl/p,éjgjﬂlled; y law, upon their administrators, representatives,
subsidiaries, executors, succes Q\!B‘ﬂnd assigns, and all persons acting by, through, under, or in

concert with any of 1?}911'. R N

This AGREEMENT sets forth mk\é_mir‘é\a’greemant for increased LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES
for the EVENT befvgan the 0.0.5.0. and the COMPANY and fully supersedes any and all prior
agreements or undersﬁandingspeMeen them In any way related to the subject matter hereof. It is
further underslood and agrgedhat the terms and conditions herein are contractual and are not a mere
recital and that there are no ather agreements, understandings, contracts, or representations between
the O.C.S.0. and the COMPANY in any way related to the subject matter hereof, except as expressly
stated herein. This AGREEMENT shall not be changed or supplemented orally and may be amended
only by concurrent resolutions of the Oakland County Board of Commissioners and the COMPANY

Board of Directors.

For and in consideration of the mutual promises, acknowledgments, representations, and agreements
set forth in this AGREEMENT, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy
of which is hereby acknowledged, the COUNTY, the SHERIFF, and the COMPANY hereby agree and
promise to be bound by the terms and provisions of this AGREEMENT.

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE
FESTIVAL

Page 10 of 12



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, JAMES H. PETERSON, President and CEO of MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE
FESTIVAL hereby acknowledges that he has authority to execute this AGREEMENT on behalf of
MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL, and hereby accepts and binds MICHIGAN RENAISSANGE

E(I)EZSSTIVAL to the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT on this day of )
WITNESS: MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE FESTIVAL

a Corporation registered in Michigan

By

"JAMES H. PETERSON
President and CEO

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, DAVID T. WOODWARD, Chalrperson of the Oakland County Board of
‘“resolution of the Oakland County

Commissioners, hereby acknowledges that he has been authorized by
Board of Commissioners to execute this AGREEMENT on behalf 9 ‘the COUNTY OF OAKLAND, and
hereby accepts and binds the COUNTY OF OAKLAND to the terpis ind condilions of this AGREEMENT
on this day of , 2025, & \
/A A N
// & l,’

WITNESS: COUN?E OF OAKLAND, a Michigan

Constit ’Ongg{ld Municipal Corporation

S

Cay
o

AVID T. WOODWARD, Chairperson.
pard of Commissioners

VYR
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, MICHAELN, B(bUEﬁA‘RD;ﬁ'i?n his official capacity as the Oakland County Sheriff,
hereby accepls and binds 4176 Office of.the Oakland County Sheriff to the terms and conditions of this

AGREEMENT on this _ - day 0f ___N , 2025.
WITNESS: \'\\ 4 OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF, a Michigan
) g Conslitutional Officer
\b

By:
MICHAEL J. BOUCHARD
Oakland County Sheriff

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE
FESTIVAL

Page 11 of 12



ATTACHMENT A
COMPANY PROVIDED INSURANCE

1. The COMPANY agrees, at ils sole cost and expense, to purchase and maintain the following insurance
coverage(s), in the minimum coverage amounlts indicated below, protecting the COUNTY and
COUNTY AGENTS from any and all CLAIMS (as defined in the AGREEMENT), for the entire duration
of this AGREEMENT and to provide the COUNTY with appropriate Certificates of Insurance. The
COMPANY acknowledges that all insurance obligations, bonds, and/or certificates or proof of same
required shall be subject to the approval of the COUNTY'S Risk Management Division.

a. Comprehensive General Liability Broad Form Endorsement in the minimum amount of
$3,000,000.00 C.S.L., and with the following as minimum requirements:

i. Broad Form Property damage;

ii. Premises/Operalions;

iii. ~(Blanket) Broad Form Contractual;

iv. Personal Injury - delete contractual exclusion "A" and employee exclusion "C"; and

v. Additional Insured - The COUNTY OF OAKLAND, the 0O.C.S.0. and all COUNTY
AGENT(S) as defined In this AGREEMENT to include, without limitation, all COUNTY
elected and appointed officlals and their employé/;l and agents for CLAIM(S), actions,
lawsults, etc., arising out of the sole acts< il {he COMPANY and/or COMPANY

AGENT(S).

b. Professlonal Llabllity (Errors and Omissions); including Pollce F‘r,ofessional Liability in the
minimum amount of $1,000,000.00; and ] ya

/
c. All Cerlificates of Insurance shall contain the foflqwing clauses:

f
i. "Any coverage afforded the \OUNTY sh\l gpply as primary and not excess to any
Insurance issued in the name\pf th CGUNTY OF OAKLAND, et al.";
ii. "The Insurance cogpany(s) i%sufng the policy or policies shall have no recourse
against the COlﬂ\l OF OAK D for payment of any premiums or for assessments
under any form®f polscy)”
ii. "Any and all de\ducoée’s In the abbve-described Insurance policles shall be assumed
by and be for th&.@count of, and at the sole risk of, the COMPANY"; and
iv. "There.will. ha no éddiﬂonal exclusions running to the Additional Insured based upon
any, tlions or achwtiés\?f the named insured."

d. All Cemrca\(as of Insuran ar are to provide 30 days' notice of material change or cancellation.
All Cemﬂcaleé\of Insurance must be provided no less than ten (10) working days before
commencement bl dalc of this AGREEMENT to the COUNTY'S Risk Management Division.
Insurance carriers, “coverage(s), and policy limits are also subject to the approval of the
COUNTY'S Risk Management Division as to conformity with the requirements of this

AGREEMENT,

2. The COMPANY agrees that the COUNTY shall be legally subrogated to any rights to recover or any
benefits the COMPANY may have in any insurance policy and to the full extent of any payment made
under any insurance policy as may be required to make the COUNTY whole for any CLAIM(S). The

COMPANY agrees to cooperate and do any act necessary to secure such rights for the COUNTY.

OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
2025-2027 LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE MICHIGAN RENAISSANCE
FESTIVAL

Page 12 of 12



2025 Michigan Renaissance Festival
Parking lot capacity protocol

In the unlikely occurrence that the Parking Lots at the Michigan Renaissance Festival are
approaching capacity, the Festival will close its gates for the remainder of the day, or until

sufficient parking spaces become available. The following procedures an

d protocols will bein

place for 2025:

10.

Upon notice from the on-site director of parking operations for the independent third
party professional parking company retained by the Festival that the Parking Lots are
likely to reach capacity in thirty minutes, the designated Festival management person
will notify the Sheriff's Office Command.

Sheriff’s Office Command will then notify those Deputies currently on Dixie Highway to
prepare to close the gates.

Festival staff will prepare to deploy proper signage a
closed due to capacity”.

Sheriff Deputies on Dixie Highway will be given signs to be pla
read “Festival closed due to capacity”.

Upon execution of closing the gates all signs will be p
patrons of Festival closing.

Festival management will change the digital sig
read “Festival closed due to capacity”.
Festival management will post on all so
to capacity”.

Sheriff’s Deputies will begin the monitoring of traffic on Dixie Highway and enforce the
no parking ordinances where applicable.

If needed Byer’s towing will be dispatched to impound any vehicles thatareinano
parking zone. Vehicles will be towed to the Groveland Township fire station and placed

in the impound lot.
This protocol will continue until the parking loth

parking to resume.

long Dixie Highway to read “Festival
ced by patrol cars that also
laced onto Dixie Highway to advise
ns located on I-75 and Dixie Highway to

cial media platforms that “Festival is closed due

as been cleared enough to safely allow






Assiened Posts:

1. North Drive. ‘ .
ffic should

This is the main entrance to the venue for southbound Dixie Hwy Traffic. No Northbound Dixie Highway tra
ound.

enter from this point. Exiting traffic will be able to go either north or southh

North Drive

[NeT 7o ScaLE

—

Dixle Hwy.

__b,' ;

>

=1

¢ — -
—_ s e =P
i—1
—_—

Diagram (a)



2. South Drive- thisis the main entrance to the venue for north bound Dixie Hwy Traffic, If a vehicle needs

to take a left turn from Perryville Rd to southbound Dixie Hwy, all effort will be made to accommaodate that
motorist as quickly and safely as possible. All traffic exiting from this point must to right and head south on Dixie

Hwy.

Ml s

Vel e pd
” [y
—

- m.;\gl
_ l

'y
i
|

MNo7 TD SCALE]

Diagram (b)

3. Lot Access Drive- the deputy will assist the parking lot flagger (see diagram b) with the directing of
patrons to the south lot, Generally, the only vehicles allowed to access the North lot from this point would be;
handicapped, festival employees, or motorcyclists. *This can be subject ta change based on the needs of Festival

Managenient.



4, Box Office Security- The Deputy will park their vehicle along Gatehouse entrance. The Deputy will
maintain a highly visible presénce In and around the box office courtyard area, Diagram (c)

\ Placsimint ol Pt
.. Vehice
Lz Dk fvim Herd Lt /

F — ]

Vel Osie

Box Offles-

Bax O Courtysnd

thati) o9a by Fastial

Diagram (C)

5. North LOt/RE"Ef/SpECiB}I Assignment= When assigned to this position he Deputy will
patrol the North Lot, They are a visual deterrent for any criminal activity that may occur. They will assist with
lockouts, or helping patrons find their vehicles. During this assignment the deputy is expected to take at least one

* pRE-LABOR DAY Assignment.

foot patrol down the hoard walk that connects hoth the north and south lots.
after 5pm both the North and South Lot assigned Deputies will report inside the venue near the GUINNESS PUB
y as needed.

forfoot patrol. Monitor the area for disruptive behavior and assist Festival Securit

6. South Lot/ReIief/Special ASSigﬂ IM1ent- When assigned to this position he Deputy will
patrol the South Lot. They are a visual deterrent for any criminal activity that may occur. They will assist with
t the deputy is expected to talke at least one

lockouts, or helping patrons find their.vehicles. During this assighmen
foot patrol down the board walk that connects both the north and south lotse * bRE-LABOR DAY Assignment.
rt Inside the venue near the GUINNESS PUB

after 5pm both the North and South Lot assigned Deputies will repo
for foot patrol. Monitor the area for disruptive behavior and assist Festival Security as needed.



7. Relief/Rover Assign Ment. When assigned to this detall the deputy may be tasked with relieving
a posted position, assisting with any additional traffic Issues, or act as additional foot patrol within the venue,
LABOR DAY and POST LABOR DAY Assignment. After 5pm the Relief/Rover assigned Deputies will report inside
the venue near the GUINNESS PUB for foot patrol. Monitor the area for disruptive behawor and asslst Festival

Security as needed.

8. Late shift Cash Office SECUI’itV= This is staffed with one Sergeant and two deputies. This post s

to provide armed security for the Cash Office. Once the proceeds have been transferred to private securlity,
escort the vehicle out to Dixie Hwy. Once all units are clear of the venue, the Sergeant will advise dispatch that all

units are clear, and the radio channel can be secured.

Site map

Ex R (1
RED GATE Indleales an Emergoncy Exll

@jmmmd@ Ridu& . I% @ SL?;

Food & Merchnnts Privies

Drone pOIiCV- The Renaissance Festival has a strict policy against the unauthorized use of drones on site, Ifa
violation is ohserved. Try to identify the pilot and have them ground the drone. Write an informational report, A
subject can be cited under Michigan Public Act 46 of 2016 Sectlon 259.313 under the following:

259 321 . UNMANNED AIRGRAFT - INTEREERENCE WITH DUTIES OF PUBLIE SAFFTY PERSONNEL
269.3221 - UNMANNED AIRGRAF T OPERATIINE TO HARASS
259:3229 - UNMANNED AIRGRAFT - OPERATING [N VIOLATIDN OF RESTRAINING ORDER

25&.3223 "UNMANNED AIRCRAET < OPERATING TO: SURVEIL, PHGTOGRAPH ETC UNCLOTHED
PERSON OR TO INVADE PRIVAGY o

2593224 - UNMANNED. AIRCRAFT - SEX GFFENDER OPERATING ﬁ{iﬁéﬁﬁﬂ@éFs‘EﬂTﬁNéﬁ



*Keep in mind, the act of flying a drone over a crowd of people is in violation of FAA rules. Currently that violation
has not been adopted by MI State Law. The above violations are in CLEAR, and a citation can be issued.

Lost and Found- the information booth directly inside the main gate or at the Box Office outside of the

venue

Medicals- Groveland Fire is on scene within the venue (see map)

Extra Patrols- Deputies assigned to the North or South Parking Lot details (Pre-Labor Day Staffing) will be

reassigned from 5pm to Closing to foot patrol around the Guinness Pub area to monitor the area for disorderly

conduct, (Post Labor Day Staffing) this detail will be handled by the Relief/Rover positions. THIS IS A TWO DEPUTY
DETAIL, Stay in pairs,

Requests for public announcements via the patrol vehicle in-car Public Address system-in the
event of safety issues venue management may request information to be broadcast to patrons via the OCS0 in carr
public address system. These requests will have prior authorization by on site Command before broadcasting. Every

attempt to accommodate these requests shall be made when practical.

Traffic Enforcement-an Deputies shall enforce the Michigan Vehicle Traffic Code while working at 'this
event, MCL codes of interest: ,

MCL 257.602- Compliance with the order or direction of a police officer.
IMMICL 257.606- Impound of an illegally parked vehicle.

Reminders- Arrive with a clean marked patrol vehicle and traffic vest. It would be a good idea to keep a spare
fully charged replacement battery with you as well, Food is provided (hamburgers, hotdogs, chicken) underneath the

white dining fly directly across from the Cash Office,

Phone Numbers:

Chip Schultz: 248 343 2259

Groveland Fire: 248 634 7722 (direct)

OCSO Dispatch: 248 858 4950

LEIN: 248 858 4955

Byers Towing: 248 651-4180 (to give to the public)






@00 Dixle Hwy. Hally, M) 48442
e ' : 248.634,7590

Office: 248.634.,6552 ® Fax:

e Allebla)y
\enaidsince Festival
2025Valunteer G ounds Cleanup Contract ] _
heralnafter refertd o ar lhe FEATIVAYL, pnd Wesl Wood
\lon of the Grounds it the niichiganRenslssants Festvil.
ptembar 281h,
UHDS CLEMN

1ha spreement bulwecn MitHgan Ranplrianca Ferllval,
Teleried 10 83 1he OAGANIZATION, £ontelolng your opers
(ueday's B Sundays) August 16th thro Se

toslefl,operate apd manage the entlre GRO'
Inteifere with the operatien and muum'ln_;.‘lht fesihval

The
h!f.fhll.i'(hmg' hetelnfler
1, ong,

:rom‘ﬁ;,’,ﬂ"’" aprecs, dalng 1he 2025 MicNzan Renalisance Feitval {53
CPhrs e ey atpthnber 18 6 Fesltval Fridsy Saptember 26, 2015,
operater s upenfilon of Feillval, Adwrse weather condillons musl pot

uccess fully during inclement weather.
1o 7:00 p.m. on each 234 1EN|

Mlowing wlj conllim

ONGANIZATION sgrecs to operate saldares Irom approxlmately 9:003.m. eddayof the Festlvalvithroles
to.proide support: s1aff for ary perled ol tirné,OBGMIIU\‘HON wiil be charped
\Ire such as matchlrg T-Shirts o3 10 be sble to Idznify grovp membert

2,
1
N A5 Employess @ a time, Il FESTIVAL Is required

- ORGANITATION I5 required to be Inmatching at
e and local munlddpit

while on feitival grounds,
3. ORG

law;,AmmnDH agrees lo operate sald bopth[s) Inaccordance with all FESTIVAL rules, regulations, federa), s1a

4 o0 .

pu'}i‘,",'.‘i‘;':‘”;"mvwwm the FESTIVAL, [1s successofs or asslgns louse [t pame of photographls) or facsimile for premational

rade In connection with the promotion of the Bay Area Renalssance Fesilval.
e to provide 3 suitable work-area due to3anact of God
/16 of ORGAN ZATIONS fees will bededucted for each

5. CANCE
iy s S A S PO L et DML 0 R
Hlement wealher
date ORGANIZATION does not wmﬁ olher adversiiles), anamebnl equal to 3,
6, M
ONIES: FESTIVAL shall pay ORGANIZATIOH $10,000wilihin 45 days of the festival's end. Along vith a $2,500 bonus 11 seld group has
upon request Michigan Renalssante Festiwl
rying appropriate [nsurance shall name

7
shall name ORGANIZATION as a i i :
n additional Insured for General Uabllity. Organirations c3r
Michigan Renafssance Fesllval responsible as an additlonal insuced fer Gerieral Uability.
form whatsoever for fallure to be open or be
hall be solely responsible for alldamage of any
participants and to 2ll-third partles

::EAN’:’::;';‘:"‘::‘" Renalssance Festival shall iot ba responsible In any manner or
P o :’a ‘:‘L or cause beyond the control of the FESTIVAL ORGANIZATION s
Including, but not FLImr the operation of booth o the feilalzjctndy, Lo the Hcperey slolhel 2 %
FESTIVAL. ORG mited to, customers of ORGANIZATION andother persons entering the ren_ivalgmunds with or vilthoul consent of
IRGANIZATION shall Indemnifyand ho!d: Mjchigan Renalssance Festival harmless ftom any and all cJalms, debts, or liabilities
lawsuits or clalms brought agalnst Michigan
s operationincluding attomey’s

;:ﬂiﬂ[‘ by contract, tort, or othenwise out of the operation of the booth, and shall defendany
nalssance Festival byamy third parties of any nature of formwha Lsoever asaresult of ORGANIZATION'
agreement does signlfy hls o her Intent to

15 pzople averyday
INSU, '
RANCE: Il ORGANIZATION does not canry Insurance valld for activities at the festival;
8.

fees Incurred in defending such [aw/sult or clalm.
ORGANIZATION shall ablde by all rules and regulations, ORGANIZATION's signature to this
d inthe followlng areas, as per the rules,

9.
cooperate with Michlgan Renalssance Feslivalin education and direction of all persons nvolve

regulations, and guldelines of Lhe Festival:
e Cleanlp

*  Sanllatlon
*  Prepiration *  Dlalogue and Altitude

IFACCERTED&'APPROVED c 3 T e o |
= Avihorized Representative: /]’7;'(;( 1297} (Fre
redennon: SF (LA ADO

Name of Organtzation:
wes _H§504

Representallve Address: 4 :
_E/r'r) “I‘ State: .
ﬂdfm’ 3’0 & Ei]g -—26 5 ({ ] Fax:
e B3AF DS

Gty:
Emai: Y
Sknature: % M

F B =

s :



|

Michigan sBay Area =
enaisdince Testival

NON PROFIT ORGAN IZATION APPLICATION

—_—
TLEASE PRINT
Ongunizuion Name: meB ;
ddrege.
Maes 823 3 Norhenten
Egpe L\lupb*’ *

Chicf Administragar:
Address:
Cige —_— State: Zip:
Daytime Phoae: Evening Phone:
Email Address;

S

Contact Person: r i Joaike

Address: A Tost Olere Bare

Ciry: Sue: /T ImdSEe0s 1)

Daytime Phone: @;D& (G ~/ (2S00 Evening Phone: _ "5,y b
LA tary £ evme A

Beail Addeess /00 iaprn Sfse- V55 B -

How many volunteers do You estimate your group will be able to provide for this fundraising event?
i3

Number of Volunteers: Age Range:
your organization has participated prior to the upcoming season, please indicate which arsa(s) and boothys).
Grounds ((frask ) Fronk qa b
Which areas are you interested in workin g? (You may mark more than one or nofe if You're not sure.)
Beerand Wine _

Parking Grounds Food Service Souvenirs

How much money does your group need to vam? ), DO -
How will the money from this event be used? ( ), £ ﬁ.w. LISHr 22Y a_ﬁ I \W.‘b.n.‘r_.,\fm

Please write in the dates of the festival and citcle to indicate the woskends that your organizaton will be
able to commit 0. (Dates zre available at michenfest.com or baryarearenfest.com or via phone.)
(Groups that can commit to all of the dates will recejve preference.)




oz %
; S-2
~ 926 gp,....

AEEK 1 WEEK 2 vh WEEK 1 VN 2r
_ o weekas___ WEEKS ___ % WEEK &
4 WEEK 7 N
1

Emﬁ?ﬁ%\ﬁ. LA Date: m lﬁ.nw JU..n.U

Michigan Renaissance Festival/Bay Area Renalssance Festval © 248.634.5552
Jenntfer Lee® Jenrenfest@gmail.com







PO Box 129
Holly, MI 48442

eputy Fire Chief
. Douglas Smith CSP CFPS

Mobile: 248-459-8322

Email i
1 WWW, Fax: 248-634-3817

dsmith@nocfa.com FIRE AUTHORITY

Date: 01/27/2025

Holly Township

Karen Winchester, Holly Twp Clerk
102 Civic Dr.

Holly Michigan 48442

RE: Review of Michigan Renaissance Festival response to the Fire Departments
2025 Fire Safety Improvement/Upgrades requirements

Dear Karen,

The Fire Department has reviewed the response and actions the Michigan Renaissance Festival
is proposing to satisfy the joint Fire Department and Holly Township Building Department’s
requirements. These fire/safety & building code requirements were from observations made
during the festival’s 2024 operating season including carryover code requirements from the 2023
season and earlier. '

The Festivals response is extensive but appears to be related to the Building Departments
findings. The requirements itemized in the Fire Departments letter of 10-30-2024 and reviewed
at our joint December meeting were not specifically addressed, though there is some overlap in
the two reports showing partial movement toward correction. Most of the fire departments’
requirements show no plan for correction.

Specific topics that need a corrective action plan are summarized in the listed below and are
from the fire department’s comprehensive 10-30-2024 letter. The requirement numbers, from
this letter, are included next to each item for reference for ease of locating the full scope of the
Fire/Life Safety issue that needs correction.

Key Fire Safety Issues that need to be corrected as itemized in the Fire Departmen
Safety Review Lefter, presented to the Festival during the December 2024 meeting.

ts’ Fire

The items listed below need a corrective action plan and timeline,

1. Meeting the onsite water supply, Need Fire Flow (NFF).
o 2023-09, Water Supply to Meet the Need Fire Flow (NET) (Revised 2024)

Festival will get a quote (o have a well dropped and is also _cmv'cm{]* wailing
10 see how the curvent project of gettiig wafer down Dixie Hhwy will work out
so as (o fie infa the system when ready,
2. Means of Egress, Gate Replacement finalization.
o 2023-03, Crowd management. 7%is falls in line with the current profject list
firom Holly Tovenship, more gates will be replaced this upcoming season.

Proudly Serving Holly and Rose Township



PO Box 129

eputy Fire Chief
Holly, MI 48442

. Douglas Smith CSP CFPS

Mobile: 248-459-8322

Email WW
Fax: 248-634-3817

" ‘
dsmith@nocfa.com FIRE A UTHORITY

3. Upgrade cooking equipment, design & arrangement, and ventilation,
o 2024-01, Commercial Cooking, Design, Arrangement and Protection. 7/is
line item also falls within the parameters of projecis currently on-going o
satisfy Holly Township

4. Grease, Ash and Rubbish control.

o 2024-02, Turkey Cooking Areas. Grease management, solid fuel
management and venting need substantial improvement 7/is line item
also falls within the parameters of projects currently on-going to satisfy Holly
Township

a

5. Electrical Upgrades, Outdoor Area 51, Stable, Wine Tent and Wedding Tent, Inside
various throughout complex.

o 2023-04, Electrical Maintenance / Upgrades. (Revised 2024) 7/iis line item
also falls within the paramelers of projecis currently on-going fo satisfy Holly
Township We have already ugraded the electrical for the Wine and IWedding
lents.

0

6. Tree Trimming, Shrubs, Organic Debris and Cattails control.

o 2023-05, Trees, shrub frimming around and behind as well as general
cleanup in most Crafters Area, (Revised 2024) 7his line iten also falls
within the parameters of projects curvently on-going to satisfy Holly Township

o [Festival has already cut back 25-30 feet behind booths in the affected areas,
will also be cleaning up any debris lefi behind

7. Maintenance Repair and Hounsekeeping

o 2023-13, Daily Rubbish Disposal. (Revised 2024) Festival has contacted 2
separate Nonprofit organizations to clean up the site and handle the removal
of thrash. Will also be adding more trash recepiacles prior to the opening of
the season.

8. Walking Surfaces and Slip & Fall exposure, Playground.

o 2023-06, General Safety Issues 7his line item also falls within the
parameters of projects currently on-going lo salisfy Holly Township

[+]

9. The spraying of all wood in the building with an intumescent coating is still required.
The spraying cycle requires application prior to the 2025 season.

o 2023-14, Limiting Spread of Five. (Revised)/estival currently has the

spraying on « time schedule so as lo make sure this is complete.

Proudly Serving Holly and Rose Township



PO Box 129

eputy Fire Chief
Holly, MI 48442

. Douglas Smith CSP CFPS

Mobile: 248-459-8322
Fax: 248-634-3017

Email

dsmith@nocfa.com F’RE A UTHOR’TY

10. A vehicle access drive from the former campground to the westem end of the south

parking lot needs to be created.
o 2023-03, Crowd management. /7
handle an ongoing wetlands project and will look at |
due to the extensive wetlands. That this would effect.

stival is currently working with EGLLE to
his project in the fulire

Please call my cell, 248-459-8322, at any time to review these items,
In Fire Safety,

C Douglas Smith CSP, CFPS

Deputy Fire Chief

Matt Weil CFI
Fire Chief

C. Chip Schultz, General Manager, Michigan Renaissance Festival
C. Scott Herzberg, Holly Township Building official

C. Alexis Farrell, Planner McKenna

C. T.J. Parker, Michigan Renaissance Festival

Proudly Serving Holly and Rose To wnship






From: Karin Winchester

To: Alexis Farrell
Subject: Fw: Mrf approval letter
Date: Thursday, May 8, 2025 1:02:10 PM

Karin S. Winchester, MMC
Clerk/Zoning Administrator

Holly Township

102 Civic Drive

Holly, MI 48442
248-634-9331 Ext. 301

From: Scott Herzberg <scottherzbergl@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 8, 2025 10:32 AM
To: Deputy Clerk <deputyclerk@hollytownship.org>; Karin Winchester <clerk@hollytownship.org>

Subject: Mrf approval letter

Good morning

Alexis from McKenna asked for a written statement of approval the the Michigan Renaissance
festival 2025 season from our building department. They are moving forward with obtaining
permits and working towards our August 2026 completion deadline. Some progress has been
made and I am satisfied with what has been completed to this point.

Thank you






From: Chip Schultz

To: Alexis Farrell; Karin Winchester; Matt Weil; Doug Smith
Subject: Hollydazzle
Date: Thursday, May 1, 2025 3:23:19 PM

Hello again, I don’t have the Hollydazzle attendance on anything official but here is the last years attendance:

2024: Over 19 day we saw 7119 which is an average of 375/day. our lowest day was 56 and our highest day was

1124 (5k run effected this day)
2023 Over 22 days we say 5933 which averaged 270/day.

Chip Schultz
General Manager
Michigan Renaissance Festival

Operations/Safety Services
Bay Area Renaissance Festival
St. Louis Renaissance Festival
cschultz@michrenfest.com
248-343-2259






